Tillamook County Transportation District
Board of Directors
Regular Monthly Meeting

A Service of Tillamook County Transportation District

Dial-A-Ride . RIDES

Thursday, October 22, 2020 at 6:00PM

Transportation Building
3600 Third Street, Tillamook, Oregon



Account Code

Tillamook County Transportation District
Normal Trial Balance
From 9/30/2020 Through 9/30/2020

Account Title

Debit Balance

Credit Balance

1001
1006
1009
1011
1020
1030
1040

Report Total

Report Difference

Date: 10/7/20 01.57:20 PM

General Checking Account
Payrolt Checking

NW RIDES ACCOUNT
Prop. Mgmt. Checking
LGIP - General Account
LGIP - Capital Reserve
Petty Cash

398,355.61"
9,273.04 -
136,328.58 -
22,726.40 *
869,397.04 «
1,089,688.94 °

200.00

2,525,869.61 0.00

N
2,525,869.61 C)X,\I
o A-10

MONTHLY BOARD REPORT - CASH Page: 1



[ @8k 20UBLIBA 79 195DNE (L A/ O (OE ATuopy N §1:90:50 0T/S1/01 P

%9€'81¢ 00°0S6°THE 00°0¢0°LS1 00°000°00¢ 000 00°000°008 116¥ pun jeiauac)y wiosf rajsues |
%96°01 (899z0°91) 00°000°81 TCELGTI LY 1pE 6L°0€9 016¥ awoaup dxy puopeied(y asea
%8L+T (0000 L) 007000°¢T 00°00L°¢ 00°00¢°1 0070061 006% AWOoU| a5La7]
%0070 (00°000°1) 00°000°1 000 £6°€8 00°0 Ty 2woou] BUISIHIAPY
%6711 (69 179°82) 0000S°¢¢ $e8L8E £C'80L°C $9°861°1 0lst DUODUY JSaIIU]
%0070 (00°000°01) 00°000°01 0070 £€°€€8 000 0ltF 2WI00U] - 19SSV JO I[BS
%PRSE] 60°C6L'1 00°000°¢ 60'T6L°9 L99L¥ 000 00t¥ SWIOOUT SHODUB]JIOSIIA
%00°0 (00700¢°T) 00°005°T 0070 £€°80T 00°0 00+ suonered(y sng [eroeds
%000 (00°000°ZEE) 00°000°CEE 000 00°0 000 SHey 01§ - sweln
%6L L1 (00-gsT'Ict) 00700081 00°ThLTE 00°0 00°THL'TE 0vy ) 11gc - smip
%00°ST (00°¢LL°0S) 00°00L°L9 0052691 000 00°0 0Ty ALS - s
%00°¢T (00°005°1€) 00°000°CH 00°005°01 0070 000 STy U2JeRN “Ju0) Jauled VIOMN
%P8+ (00°098°967) 00°000°56¢ 00°011°86 00°0 00°0+1'86 oTTh [1€S V1 - suein
%0070 (00°000°160°T) 00°000°160°I 000 000 000 ikad sjuein) rerde)
%99t (00" 165°¢€€) 00°000°¢SE 00°60¥ 91 000 00°60%°91 LEIF A1euoRRSIq A1LS
%081 (00°190°59D) 007000 +0€ 00°6€6°8¢ 000 00°6€6°8¢ 9¢1y Ajununuedsiuy J11LS
%€1°07 {(002P1°L8¢) 00 1TLP8Y 00°6LELG 00°0 00°0 Sy B|RULIO JLLS
%0070 (00°000°¢8) 00°000°¢8 00°0 £€'€80°L 000 0€It Xe | [Jotfe ] oeg usuel] SSe
%0070 (00°000°¢LD) 00°000'¢LT 000 L9'916'TT 000 0Tl ANUIADY IequuL L, Al
%P8 b1 (00°88T°17) £0°000°¢T 00Z1L'¢ ££°¢80°C 00TILE OLlP xe] Apadosd s1ea g 1sed
%00°0 (00°000°0¢6) 00°000°056 000 L9991°6L 00°0 001y xe] Auadolg
%657 1T (08210989 00°000°SLS 07286881 L9'9167TL 8ERYT6EL 0ZOF SNUIANY 10RNUOS
%881 (26955 PPT) 00°000°00€ 80 EFP S 00°000°5T §9'888° 71 000% 211,
%000 (00°5€8°916° 1) 00°S€8°916°1 000 00°0 000 005¢ rende)) Bunyiopm
SAIN0SY
%5T AIUBLIBA 133png jei0]. |enjoy 108png] polray [BmOY polad
193png 1e10} IO A 2R WL )y

0T0T/0€/6 USNOIY L, 0Z0Z/1/6 Woid
UETIE 3 TN S GHETT

1LYsi( uoperiodsue. y {3juno]y oo,



T 19%eg VUBLIA % 193png (LLAM Hoday (O Aoy

%L671T 91°009°1 ¢ 00700801 7876688 00°6LEE Y6 ELET (SR
%6891 PEPTEE 00°000°F 99°6L9 geeee TTSTE OFic
%5581 oLl 00°000°S1 8678LT 00°0ST'1 66'L9¢ 0cis
%9LCE 88°691°0C 00°000°0¢ TI0E8'6 00°00¢°C 656188 £01¢
%0070 00°00¢°L 00°00§°L 00°0 00°529 000 zols
%0070 00°000°6C 00°000°sT 000 £€€80°C 000 101¢
%%687LS $9CCL9t 00°08T011 SEFEYE9 05°L81°6 STRIEYI 0015
%60°ST €€°6T9°C9L 00°TS679¢ET LY9TE 168 LYTIF961 6007861

AR E4] (€9°€18°L) 00'000°CE £9°CI8°68 L9999°C 67 098°L $c0s
%S6'TT oLigree 00°009°S¥ 0£°89%°01 00°008°¢ 8T1€8°¢ £€0¢
%58V 6E9LETS 0070050 19°€TS°L1 00°5LY'S 615909 7508
%S0T PR TLS LTS 00°TSCLEY 9$°6LL°6S 0091t 9¢ LO'SE6'6T 150
WETVT 99 $9C €6 00°00S°€T1 PESEG 6T LY 162701 ¥$95¢%6 050¢
%Py 9T Or88yIc 00°000°0L 0911681 €E'EE8C 88°LCT9 0%0¢
%90'ST 86 PRT'6ER 00°00070Z1°1 TOSIL'08C CEEEEE6 £0°€5€°96 DEQS
%97 0€ LOTEUPY 00°000°26 £6'LYRLT £9°999°,, 01v16°6 0zos
%96°0C T€'897°68¢ 00°000°99¢ 89 1EL°9L 00°005°0¢ 6F90T°€T 010¢
%P0Zl  {96900PL8L) 00°LT61S6'S F00TLLLOT £C8CKCIT Ot 8P8LYS
%00°0 (00°000°S76) 00°000°¢k6 000 000 000 QL6b
%0070 (00°98L79%) 0098L°9¢% 00°0 00°0 000 916F
%0070 (00°5£8°1€) 00°5€8°1¢ 000 000 060 Ci6v

46T J0UBLIB A 108png oL ey 193png pouag [BUI0Y pOLIRd

193png [e10],

0T0T/0€/6 USNOIY L 0Z07/1/6 WwoL]

JBDA ALY

ANy

JUDWIAEIS [B1OURUI]

Hnn,

JLIsI( uonelrodsues ], yuno)) yooweyjuy,

Nd $1:90°€0 02/S1/01 81

Wy emdwo)

W wawdinbyg 2050
suondpuosgng 29 sang
Suuug g

20UBUDIUIBIAL D)ISQI M
yoddng salenSIuIWpPY
S2OIALIDS [BUOISSAJOI]

S30IAIRS PUE S[ELISTEIN
SID§AIDG [2ULOSIR] 210

‘suj uonesuadwio)) soMI0M
BOIA J10IAR(

JHAWAIRY [J04AR ]
2IBDYIBIY [j018RY
asuadxy [joiley
JouRUAUIRI ([]0IKe]
SI2ALI(T :]]0IKB ]

yotedsi(q :jjoided
UOTIRISTUILIPY ([[OLAB{

S301AI9S [2UUOSIA

$32.N0SY 810 ]

pun.f JLLS Woly 1ajsuesy
pung 1§ Wouij tajsuei]

'$9Y 'YoINd Yo A WIOL) I9jSUBL],



£ a8y 22URITEA 39 135png LA/ Bodoy OF Ajuop
%00°¢T 00°¢89°¢1 00F%16°0C 00°672°¢ CRTHL'I 000
%181 06'176'8E1°] 00'8ECTHE"T 01°919°¢eT 91'€16°C6 £0°982°08
%61°0¢ 11T6LT 00000F  63L0C1 £CEEE ELEL
%98°1 € 90°cL0 LI 00°000°SC ¥6°996°L £E°€80°C 0£€S6™p
%0070 00°00¢ 00°00¢ 000 L91% 00°0
%0¢€°L1 66°09T°0T 00°00$+T 10°6£CTY L9 1p0°C 88071
%0070 00°000°0ST 00°600°0SC 00°0 000 000
SH6T LT LLL8DE] 00°0006°81 £TTI6Y 0070051 §8'L6EE
%0070 (00001'2) 000 0070012 00°00L 00°00L
%00°0 00°80LC 00°80L°C 000 L9°CTT 000
S%LETT PCTIC] 00°000°C or L8y L9799 8¥°90T
%<8l €€'8L9°€0C 00°000°0¢T LO1ZE9T €EEER0T SLIES P
%8¢'€T 81°9¢87°C¢1 00°000700¢ TYE9L LY £9999°91 £ECHYTI
%S8 1 S8 PYTLT 00°000°CE CIeeLd 89°999°C LY'L6Y
%0¢°6C 01'9¢8°€1 00°009°61 06°EPL'S £EEE9°] 0L vPE"L
%0070 (£8285°T) 000 £8°L8t°T 000 €8°L8Y°T
%99°8 00°005°89 00°000°cL 00°00¢°9 00°0SC°9 000
%8P P 1LSEO'LY 00°000°¢¢ 6T P96°L PEESSH £8'697°¢
%0t €1 00°'$91°¢ 00°008°T 00'cge £€°80T 00681
%9L°CE TT6ITLe 00°005°0F 8L0LTE] 66°PLEE 11°86H'y
%8L Y1 CRLLOTY 00°000°¢1 817261 £E°€80°1 00'+Ty
%LLTY L6'€85°8 00°000°61 £0°91+°9 0070871 PSigect
%00°0 00°000°001 00°000°001 000 £EEEC’8 000
%SEEl £0°198°9C 0070001 € L6 8EL Y £EE8CT 66’701
%ST 2OUBLIBA 123png je10, |enioy 128png potisd [BNIDY polag
108png (B0, 1R9 A JUOMN) oLy AL

0T0T/0€/6 YBNOIYL 0TOZ/1/6 WOL]

JUSWRIE)S JEIoUBUI,]

pLsiq uvonepodsurea 1, {3ano)) soowery,

00c¢

obeS
0rES
0£ES
00£<
06ts
€87s
082S
oLze
0928
TS
ores
0Tes
olzs
961§
1615
061s
c8ls
081s
cL1s
ATS
091§
0s1¢

N §1°90°80 0T/SL/AOT :ed

swuaidioay o1 siuswAeg 41S

SjuautA ] [pioadg
S20IAI2S PUR S[BLISIEIA] [BI0[

‘uiepy L1p1oe,] suoneidQ
atedyf @ urep Ausdory
892, 135827 X2

sasuadxy] Junetodo Luadoiyg
o) JuneiadQ jeiauon
JUIBIA] 121U JOJISIA 39 NISURIY
ISBAT 12IUDY) JOUSIA P USUBIL]
punj uojeaiosy] JogeAWsiA
a3eisod

sasuadxy] [an,g

asuadxg 3)21ya A

Fuiutelf ® [oArl],

ssuadxr suoydaja

19301, $S000Y JISURI ],
ugIsacg-9y 1sgom

Funeyien

uonRNSIUIWLPY [0yodyy % Srug
sasuadxy reuonerado
sasuadxy prmog

sasuadxg 201J0

Q0URINSY|

$ISUDIT] 99 $994



p 128ed UBLIEA 3 198png QLA/M Hoday (O Qpuopn
%00°0 00°000°9 00°000°9 00°0 00°00¢ 0600
%00°0 00°000°¢ 00°000°¢ 00°0 L99LY 00°0
%0070 00°000°€0¢ 00°000°50S 000 000 000
%00°0 00°000°0+8 00°000°0+8 00°0 00°0 00°0
%6¥%0 70°068°6T 00°000°0¢ 86611 00°005°T 000
Sa8F T [ FO'L8E' 88 000501 96°C96 1 0STIL’S 08'LeL7¢l
%<8tk SLPF89I 00°000°0¢ Imm.mmﬁm_ 00°0 [(FASY RN
%000 00°008°¥ 00°008% 000 00°0 600
%01'+C 9TTE9'C 00°00S°L YLLOYL 00°€Z9 86209
%00°0 00°050°9 0070509 000 L1%0¢€ 000
%0070 00°000°¢S 00°000°¢ 00°0 £EE8S Yy 00°0
%000 00°€C17906°C 00°€S1°906°T 0070 000 000
%00°0 00°LF9°020°T 00°L¥9°0701 00°0 000 0600
%00°0 00°GE810L 00°E8°10L 000 000 000
%0070 00°000°9L 00°000°9L 00°0 000 000
%000 00°000°01 00°000°01 00°0 00°0 00°0
%0070 00'98L°0¢6 00'98L°0£6 000 00°0 000
%00°0 00°020°¢E1 00°050°¢¢T 000 0600 00°0
%00°0 00°6£8°1¢ 00°SE8° 1€ 000 000 000
%00°¢T 00°sEr 61 00'r16°CE 00°6L¥°0 £8°THL ] 000
%00ST  000SLE 00°000°C 00°0ST' 000 000

%57 DUBLIEA 128png e, BNy 198pNng pouag [BNOY poLagd

198png (e10]

0T02/0£/6 UBNONY T, 0T0T/1/6 Wol]

ABI A aLiny

plichifyiet

JUILLIdIELS erouRUl g

JuaLny

w1LYsI woneytodsuea §, Ayuno)) yjoowepy,

1209
0209
0109
0009
gsec

0816
CL16
0916
0slo
0E16
0116
0016

Nd £1°90-50 0T/€1/01 21eQ

Wiod vonengurLLl []30) [0
apesddpn) ondwo)
uonIppy/Auaundedey e A
uonIppyAuawaoe]day] sng
uoneAouNY 79 teday Suip|ing

saseyoan g [ende))

2014125 1G3(] [B10].
MRS I92J gLLO
NVOTOAL 4110

asuadxd B0t (dNd
1S2IDMU] 25BYT X3l
[ediounr ] :asea xoy.]

D21AIIS 192(]
AepnQ [eude)
SI9JsUeBL] [B10L

jeg] pun,j Suipuy patendoaddeun
amppuadxg 21nng 10} 341983y
pung ¥.LOMN 01 13jsuei]
QAIISIY JDIYIA 0] JaJSUBRI]

pun [eIsuary 0} Iojsied]

WS Auadold 0y Jgsuesy

1€6S d1D7T 01 1335ueL],

sI9jsuel ]
swawded [eoadg v10]

sjua1dioayy 01 sjuswied J11S



¢ 38eyg PWUBLEA 7 195png] (LLA/M H0day (JOg AJYuopn WNd S1:90:50 0Z/S1/01 =P1B(]

%L0°01 1 Y6L050°8 00L761568 6LCEI 106 91 187°89¢ PESTr 68T sasuadxy [e1a],
%61°C 86'8£9°020°C 000SE0LTT 201 1L°6k 0STITHL C61£9] Kepng (ende) w0
%091 T peIsTeeEl 00000L91°C 90°'8rLpE 0000589 b 195z saseyoing [ende) [eio],
%ST'S 76°0€9°€8S 00000919  80'69€CE CEEECLS TrTee 0509 swoloid jende) 12y10
%c¢'] 00'1LL7T91 007000591 00'622°C 00°0SL°€1 00'622°C 0P09 siojayg/eFeudis doig sng
%67 IDUBLIBA 138png [e10], [BIOY 193pngl potiag [ENDY pouag
103png w0, Jea A juaun) juaLmy) juaLm)

0Z0T/0€/6 USNON L, 0TOT/1/6 WOI]
JUDLIDRIS [EIOUEUL]
p1ysi(] uoneptodsurd I, A3Unor) HOowsiL



HICELE douRLIRA % 195png (LLA/M 11009 QOg Alpuop Wd €F0-50 0Z/51/01 e

%G68'8S 89°07T°8 00°000°0Z TEBLLTL £9°999°1 €0°088°6 01T asuadxy suoydaja |,

%0 8T 97°6L0°1 00°00€°1 PLOTE 0021 0070 081¢ sosuadxy feuoreladg
%90°C1 60°€6L"8 00°000°01 1690Z°1 ££7€C8 61°9%¢ 0LIS sasuadxy 20550

%0070 00°000'T 00°000°T 00°0 L9991 000 091¢ sourINSU]
%9999 00°000°¢ 00700071 00°000°01 00°0ST' 1 000 0S1¢ SOSUADIY 5P $09]
%008 0046401 00°600°51 00908 % 00°0ST't 007081 cric Y eIndwo)
%6891 PEPZEE 4070007 99°6LY £EEgE 7T$TT ovic W9y wetdinby 20140

%0070 00°00¢°1 00°00$°1 000 00°SZI 000 0TIS suondiiosqug 2 seng
%9LLC] (00°888°2) 00°000°¢ 00°888°L L991% 000 001¢ S2DIAIOG [BUDISSAIOL]

SIVIAIRG pUB SIBLIDIRIA

%80'%C $6°868°T9¢€ 00°000°8LY 90°101°ST 1 €L ECR6E LISLTEE $221AIDG [FUUOSIA ] [210]
%00°0 (¢r's1e) 000 rgle 00°0 000 §20s "SuJ uoIEsuaduIo]) SIaIoM

%LY 1T P6'SS101 00000°¢ 1 90'F¥8°C ££°ER0°1 T0'8%6 £60¢ Bgo A 110148
Y%LLLT 90'¥£8°01 00700051 PGSOy 00°0ST°I 66°L91°1 T50s juswaay jjoiked

%6Z'¢ £P'9LEPS 000007011 LSETYST L9991 99'810°8 1€0¢ amoyeaH [ja1led
%80°9Z 859LFST 00°000°6T AN A ££7¢80°C POPTHT 0505 asuadxy [joike

%0T 01 00°0P6°92 00°000°0¢ 00°090°¢ 00°005°C 00°0zL 1405 19911pu] fjoike
%9%°CT ceTEYTIT 00°000°¢8Z $9°L9CTL 00°0SL°€T 9€'966°61 0108 UOIRISTUIIPY {0158 ]

SADIAIDG [QUUOSIa]
sasuadxg

%0L L1 {L09%09TE D) 00°008°LFTS £6°ESLIE6 LO9IELEY PSLTEEIE $901Mm0SY [BI0L
%000 00°00T 000 00°00T 00°0 007007 oLy SULODU] 1S2430U]

%S4 LY (LOOPTo1E ) 00°008°L¥T'S £665C°1€6 L9918 LEY POLTIEIE  9T0F QMUAATY AMN

SADIOSAY
@\cmm uu:m_,_m\/ wv.mmu:m _ﬁo,.r wngoz& ﬁmw:@ ﬁom._om, _N_Su< Cctma
198png B0, 182 A JuaLny) juaLny)y juaLmnyy

0202/0€/6 UBN0Iy Y, 0707/ 1/6 WoL]
JUBUISIE]G [BIOUBUI]
PLYSIE voneiodsued I, Ayuno)) yoowryy,



T adeg WURIIBA 79 198png LA/ Moday O Alpuopw
2%9+'9C 96'850°658°¢ 00°008°L¥TS O 1FL788E71 99°91€°LEY 08°LL1T66
%000 (00°000°00¢) 000 00°000°00¢ 000 000007008
%000 (00°000°00¢) 00°0 00°000700¢ 000 00°000°00¢S
%LC 91 70°091°966°¢ 00'008°69L 86'6£9°ELL £E €8P LOE £9°C06 85y
%66'C 660076 00700001 10°66S £ees 06v67
%00°ST 00°009°¢ 00°008°% 0000T°1 0000+ 00700t
PN TLPST6LE 00°000°00F 8TEHSOL cEeeeee T6'ETELE
lrEl 00°080°8¢T 00°000°¢LT 00°0T6°9¢ LI 916°CT 00°09£°91
%69°CL 6LOCTTLEE 00°000°000° 1T°69L°L79 CEEeeiees TP 09¢7T6¢
%86°ClH S1'0L8 00°000°1 86l £eE8 §6'6
%0070 00°000°¢ 00°000°¢ 00°0 LSOy 00°0

%GT AULBLIZA 128png g0 [eny 128png ponad [BTOY POLI3]

103png] 1ei0 ],

JB3A juaLIn)

WMD)

070T/0£/6 USNOM L 0T0Z/1/6 WwoL]

JUOWIBIS [BIDURLL

Juonnyy

1PLasIg vonelodsuely A1uno)y yoowueL,

0016

00¢€
18¢¢
L9¢S
9928
€9C¢s
09z¢
02es

WNd SFe0°80 0T/€1/01 “oed

sasuadxy [e10L

sIgjsuel] |e10]

1€66 1077 01 1agsuel}
SI9JSuRI ]

SOD1ATOS PUR S|BLIARIA {210 |
sasuadyy JuneradQ Lusdolg
Y DO
ISINQUIY 239N 122IUNOA
JUBLIASINGUIDY 25es]1A JOqUISTA
uonepodsuer] paseyaind
ade1so
Juiurely % [9ABL]



Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register
1001 - General Checking Account
From 9/1/2020 Through 9/30/2020

Document Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description

15701 9/4/2020 1,001.70 ATU LOCAL #757 AUGUST DUES

15702 9/4/2020 1,790.00 APW DISTRIBUTING HAND HELD MISTER/COVID

15703 9/4/2020 568.20 Fred Meyer Customer Charges AUGUST CHARGES

15704 9/4/2020 50.00 Gary A. Hanenkrat 082020 BOARD MEETING

15705 9/4/2020 3,825.00 INNOVA LEGAL ADVISORS LEGAL

15706 9/4/2020 183.23 J. 1. Keller & Associates, Inc PRE CHECK FORMS

15707 9/4/2020 50.00 JACKIE EDWARDS 082020 BOARD MEETING

15708 9/4/2020 50.00 JIM HUFFMAN 082020 BOARD MEETING

15709 9/4/2020 50.00 JUDY RIGGS 082020 BOARD MEETING

15710 9/4/2020 96.50 KEMPS NORTH COAST TOOLS SHOP SUPPLIES

15710 9/4/2020 75.05 KEMPS NORTH COAST TOOLS SHOP SUPPLIES

15711 9/4/2020 50.00 Linda Adler 082020 BOARD MEETING

15712 9/4/2020 50.00 MARTY HOLM 082020 BOARD MEETING

15713 9/4/2020 50.00 MELISSA CARLSON-SWANSON 082020 BOARD MEETING

15714 9/4/2020 1,025.00 NATHAN LEVIN SEPTEMBER LEASE

15715 9/4/2020 865.01 NoviClean LLC BUS WASH

15716 9/4/2020 120.96 PACIFIC CITY SUN advertising

15717 9/4/2020 228.80 Pacific Office Automation copies

15718 9/4/2020 715.08 PETROCARD INC. fuel

15719 9/4/2020 42.12 PORTLAND GENERAL SALEM ELECTRIC

15720 9/4/2020 2,188.81 PLANNING SOLUTIONS propane project

15721 9/4/2020 283.80 Schetky Northwest Sales, Inc. SHOP INVENTORY

15722 9/4/2020 14,379.79 Sheldon Qil Distributors FUEL

15723 9/4/2020 75.00 STEPHANIE OLSON HYDRO FLASK STICKERS

15724 9/4/2020 50.00 TILLAMOOK PIONEER ADVERTISING

15724 9/4/2020 50.00 TILLAMOOK PIONEER ADVERTISING

15725 9/4/2020 42.24 Tillamook PUD LARGE BUS BARN

15725 9/4/2020 30.67 Tillamook PUD SMALL BUS BARN ELECTRIC

15726 9/4/2020 4,160.70 CARDMEMBER SERVICE AUGUST CREDIT CARD

15727 9/4/2020 90.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST BUS 32 COOLANT

15727 9/4/2020 396.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST BUS 304

15727 9/4/2020 72.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST BUS WASH REPAIR

15728 9/4/2020 229.70 Western Bus Sales INVENTORY

15728 9/4/2020 211.45 Western Bus Sales INVENTORY

15729 9/4/2020 700.00 City Of Tillamook SEPTEMBER LEASE

15730 9/4/2020 850.00 WAVE TELEPHONE

15731 9/4/2020 107.04 COMCAST INTERNET SALEM

15732 9/4/2020 39.77 CENTURYLINK AUGUST

15733 9/4/2020 495.00 GISI MARKETING GROUP FACILITY SIGNAGE

15734 9/4/2020 9,979.50 JORDAN SCHRADER RAMIS, PC LEGAL INCLUDING PROPANE &
ECOLANE

15735 9/4/2020 58.69 Office Depot Credit Plan OFFICE SUPPLIES

15735 9/4/2020 91.45 Office Depot Credit Plan OFFICE SUPPLIES

15735 9/4/2020 21.99 Office Depot Credit Plan QFFICE SUPPLIES

15735 9/4/2020 42.34 Office Depot Credit Plan OFFICE SUPPLIES

15735 9/4/2020 10.72 Office Depot Credit Plan OFFICE SUPPLIES

15735 9/4/2020 32.84 Office Depot Credit Plan OFFICE SUPPLIES

15736 9/4/2020 41.25 Oregon State Police backgroung checks

15737 9/15/2020 298.96 ALSCO - Portland Linen AUGUST

15738 9/15/2020 1,107.00 COUNTRY MEDIA ADVERTISING

15738 9/15/2020 58.90 COUNTRY MEDIA ADVERTISING

15739 9/15/2020 100.00 CRYSTAL AND SIERRA SPRINGS WATER

15740 9/15/2020 29.90 DAVID WHEELER mileage for I block

15741 9/15/2020 264.00 FleetPride, Inc. VEHICLE MAINTENANCE

15742 9/15/2020 150.95 KEMPS NORTH COAST TOOLS SHOP SUPPLIES

15743 9/15/2020 993.53 KITTELSON & ASSOCIATES, INC. stif planning

15744 9/15/2020 3,805.04 LES SCHWAB WAREHOUSE CENTER TIRES

Date: 10/7/20 01:57:32 PM

Page: 1



Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1001 - General Checking Account
From 9/1/2020 Through 9/30/2020

Document Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description

15745 9/15/2020 1,272.76 Marie Mills Center, Inc janitorial at transit center
15746 9/15/2020 5,915.13 McCOY FREIGHTLINER VEHICLE MAINTENANCE
15747 9/15/2020 579.36 DAVISON AUTO PARTS, INC. VEHICLE MAINTENANCE
15748 9/15/2020 33.00 Newport News-Times ADVERTISING

15749 9/15/2020 303.26 NORTHSIDE FORD VEHICLE MAINTENANCE
15750 9/15/2020 74.75 Office Depot Credit Plan PAPER TOWELS/OFFICE SUPPLY
15750 9/15/2020 13.30 Office Depot Credit Plan MARKERS/OFFICE SUPPLY
15751 9/15/2020 8.00 OR DEPT OF MOTOR VEHICLES driver record checks

15752 9/15/2020 120.96 PACIFIC CITY SUN ADVERTISING

15753 9/15/2020 105.81 Rosenberg Builders Supply SHOP INVENTORY

15754 9/15/2020 355.00 Tillamook Chamber of Commerce MEMBERSHIP DUES 2020-21
15755 9/15/2020 68.46 TILLAMOOK FARMERS COOP SHOP INVENTORY

15755 9/15/2020 (68.46)  TILLAMOOK FARMERS COOP SHOP INVENTORY

15756 9/15/2020 49.95 VANIR BROADBAND, INC. INTERNET

15757 9/15/2020 2,245.20 VERIZON PURCHASE 12 DRIVER TABLETS
15758 9/23/2020 100.00 DEBBIE GRAHAM cdl physical

15759 9/30/2020 1,251.25 ADP, LLC PAYROLL SUPPORT

15760 9/30/2020 355.00 ALL CLEAR AUDIO AND GLASS LLC BUS 303 WINDSHIELD

15760 9/30/2020 120.00 ALL CLEAR AUDIO AND GLASS LLC WINDSHIELD REPAIRS

15760 9/30/2020 115.00 ALL CLEAR AUDIO AND GLASS LLC BUS 32 RESEAL SEARS

15761 9/30/2020 185.00 BIO-MED TESTING SERVICE, INC. DRUG SCREENING

15762 9/30/2020 5,904.00 Bullard Law, P.C. LEGAL

15763 9/30/2020 900.00 Care Inc. STF AND STIF QTR PAYMENTS
15763 9/30/2020 1,250.00 Care Inc. STF AND STIF QTR PAYMENTS
15764 9/30/2020 700.00 City Of Tillamook TRANSIT CENTER LEASE
15765 9/30/2020 107.04 COMCAST INTERNET SALEM

15766 9/30/2020 79.36 O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES VEHICLE MAINTENANCE
15766 9/30/2020 90.75 O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES INVOICE CORRECTION

15766 9/30/2020 (90.69)  O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES CREDIT

15767 9/30/2020 29.90 DAVID WHEELER MILEAGE 1 BLOCK

15768 9/30/2020 484.67 Fred Meyer Customer Charges CARD CHARGES

15769 9/30/2020 50.00 Gary A. Hanenkrat BOARD MEETING 9-17-20
15770 9/30/2020 496.14 GenXsys Solutions, LLC COMPUTER SUPPORT

15770 9/30/2020 1,498.00 GenXsys Solutions, LLC COMPUTER SUPPORT

15770 9/30/2020 169.80 GenXsys Solutions, LLC COMPUTER SUPPORT

15771 9/30/2020 30.00 IconiPro Security & Alarms SERVICE LABOR

15772 9/30/2020 3,856.00 INNOVA LEGAL ADVISORS LEGAL

15773 9/30/2020 50.00 JACKIE EDWARDS BOARD MEETING 9-17-20
15774 9/30/2020 50.00 JIM HUFFMAN BOARD MEETING 9-17-20
15775 9/30/2020 1,690.84 KITTELSON & ASSOCIATES, INC. STIF PLANNING

15776 9/30/2020 50.00 Linda Adler BOARD MEETING 9-17-20
15777 9/30/2020 4,329.00 Marie Mills Center, Inc STF QTR PAYMENT

15778 9/30/2020 50.00 MARTY HOLM BOARD MEETING 9-17-20
15779 9/30/2020 50.00 MELISSA CARLSON-SWANSON BOARD MEETING 9-17-20
15780 9/30/2020 830.00 North Coast Lawn LAWN MAINTENANCE

15781 9/30/2020 1,025.00 NATHAN LEVIN OCTOBER LEASE

15782 9/30/2020 8.00 NEW AGE CAR WASH VAN WASH

15783 9/30/2020 44.97 Office Depot Credit Plan OFFICE SUPPLY

15783 9/30/2020 29.98 Office Depot Credit Plan OFFICE SUPPLY

15783 9/30/2020 43.52 Office Depot Credit Plan OFFICE SUPPLIES

15783 9/30/2020 5.89 Office Depot Credit Plan OFFICE SUPPLY

15783 9/30/2020 13.19 Office Depot Credit Plan OFFICE SUPPLY

15783 9/30/2020 155.35 Office Depot Credit Plan OFFICE SUPPLY

15783 9/30/2020 44,97 Office Depot Credit Plan OFFICE SUPPLIES

15783 9/30/2020 103.09 Office Depot Credit Plan OFFICE SUPPLIES N
15783 9/30/2020 21.99 Office Depot Credit Plan OFFICE SUPPLY U
15783 9/30/2020 17.40 Office Depot Credit Plan OFFICE SUPPLY

Date: 10/7/20 01:57:32 PM

Page: 2



Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register
1001 - General Checking Account
From 9/1/2020 Through 9/30/2020

Document Document Transaction

Number Amount Payee Transaction Description
15783 9/30/2020 (91.45)  Office Depot Credit Plan CREDIT

15783 9/30/2020 (32.84)  Office Depot Credit Plan CREDIT

15784 9/30/2020 82.50 Oregon State Police BACKGROUND CHECKS
15785 9/30/2020 120.96 PACIFIC CITY SUN ADVERTISING

15786 9/30/2020 442.57 Pacific Office Automation TCTD COPIES

15787 9/30/2020 993.78 PETROCARD INC. FUEL

15788 9/30/2020 37.70 PORTLAND GENERAL ELECTRIC

15789 9/30/2020 225.22 Pacific Office Automation COPIER LEASE TCTD
15790 9/30/2020 497.63 Prevailing Communications VEHICLE RADIOS

15791 9/30/2020 399.00 STATESMAN JOURNAL ADVERTISING

15792 9/30/2020 42.83 Tillamook PUD LARGE BUS BARN

15792 9/30/2020 30.90 Tillamook PUD SMALL BUS BARN

15793 9/30/2020 557.49 DEBBIE GRAHAM ATU RETRO PAY FOR SUBS
15794 9/30/2020 130.08 GWEN RUSSELL ATU RETRO PAY FOR SUBS
15795 9/30/2020 236.56 JENNIFER WRIGHT ATU RETRO PAY FOR SUBS
15796 9/30/2020 443.78 JIM BROWN ATU RETRO PAY FOR SUBS
15797 9/30/2020 20.84 ROBERT SOUTHWICK ATU RETRO PAY FOR SUBS
15798 9/30/2020 130.81 ROGER LEWIS ATU RETRO PAY FOR SUBS
15799 9/30/2020 137.68 RONDA FLYE ATU RETRO PAY FOR SUBS
15800 9/30/2020 42.83 TERRA BUCHANAN ATU RETRO PAY FOR SUBS
Report Total 94,245.44

Date: 10/7/20 01:57:32 PM

Page: 3



Document Document
Number Date

5585 9/3/2020
5586 9/3/2020
5586 9/3/2020
5588 9/15/2020
5589 9/15/2020
5590 9/22/2020
5591 9/30/2020
5592 9/30/2020
5593 9/30/2020

Date: 10/7/20 01:57:39 PM

Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1006 - Payroll Checking
From 9/1/2020 Through 9/30/2020

Payee

KARRI HOOKER
JENNIFER WRIGHT
JENNIFER WRIGHT
SPECIAL DISTRICTS INS.
SERVICE

HRA VEBA TRUST
JENNIFER WRIGHT

HRA VEBA TRUST

ATU LOCAL #757
PACIFIC SOURCE

Page: 1



Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1009 - NW RIDES ACCOUNT
From 9/1/2020 Through 9/30/2020

Document Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description

2649 9/4/2020 215.65 Fred Meyer Customer Charges AUGUST CHARGES

2650 9/4/2020 47.97 Pacific Office Automation copies

2651 9/4/2020 360.00 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. PAYROLL INDIRECT

2652 9/4/2020 11,703.15 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. NWR 082820 PAYROLL

2653 9/4/2020 134.85 CARDMEMBER SERVICE AUGUST CREDIT CARD

2654 9/4/2020 701.22 WAVE TELEPHONE

2655 9/4/2020 31.34 CENTURYLINK AUGUST

2656 9/4/2020 6,004.00 JORDAN SCHRADER RAMIS, PC NWR LEGAL

2657 9/15/2020 131.58 CRYSTAL AND SIERRA SPRINGS WATER

2658 9/15/2020 503.40 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. AUGUST RENT/UTILITY

2659 9/15/2020 10,994.40 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. NWR AUGUST BENEFITS

2660 9/15/2020 11,608.36 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. NWR PAYROLL 09.11.20

2661 9/16/2020 1,109.65 JANNA SMITH VOLUNTEERS

2662 9/16/2020 609.35 JOHN REKART JR VOLUNTEERS

2663 9/16/2020 699.15 KANDIS LIDAY VOLUNTEERS

2664 9/16/2020 3,501.65 SEAN REKART VOLUNTEERS

2665 9/16/2020 2,504.50 VAL HOLYOAK VOLUNTEERS

2666 9/16/2020 2,523.25 WILLIAM NERENBERG VOLUNTEERS

2667 9/29/2020 1,407.44 AAA RIDE ASSIST NWR TRANSPORTATION PROVIDI
2667 9/29/2020 2,025.24 AAA RIDE ASSIST NWR TRANSPORTATION PROVIDI
2667 9/29/2020 2,137.80 AAA RIDE ASSIST NWR TRANSPORTATION PROVIDI|
2668 9/29/2020 4,950.13 COLUMBIA MEDICAL NWR TRANSPORTATION PROVIDI
2668 9/29/2020 5,446.37 COLUMBIA MEDICAL NWR TRANSPORTATION PROVIDI
2669 9/29/2020 6,607.95 K & M MEDIVAN NWR TRANSPORTATION PROVIDI
2669 9/29/2020 618.30 K & M MEDIVAN NWR TRANSPORTATION PROVIDI
2669 9/29/2020 5,618.40 K & M MEDIVAN NWR TRANSPORTATION PROVIDI
2669 9/29/2020 6,251.30 K & M MEDIVAN NWR TRANSPORTATION PROVIDI
2670 9/29/2020 6,965.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE NWR TRANSPORTATION PROVIDI
2671 9/29/2020 5,593.75 MTN RETREAT SECURE TRANSPORT NWR TRANSPORTATION PROVIDI
2671 9/29/2020 718.75 MTN RETREAT SECURE TRANSPORT NWR TRANSPORTATION PROVIDI
2672 9/29/2020 13,610.88 RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE NWR TRANSPORTATION PROVIDI
2672 9/29/2020 13,661.66 RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE NWR TRANSPORTATION PROVIDI
2672 9/29/2020 16,422.24 RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE NWR TRANSPORTATION PROVIDI
2673 9/29/2020 5,267.25 WAPATO SHORES NWR TRANSPORTATION PROVIDE
2673 9/29/2020 6,222.75 WAPATO SHORES NWR TRANSPORTATION PROVIDE
2673 9/29/2020 4,355.50 WAPATO SHORES NWR TRANSPORTATION PROVIDE
2674 9/30/2020 34.84 CATHY BOND REIMBURSE CATHY BOND

2675 9/30/2020 49,55 CENTURYLINK HARD LINER FAX

2676 9/30/2020 14.39 Fred Meyer Customer Charges CARD CHARGES

2677 9/30/2020 1,502.00 GenXsys Solutions, LLC COMPUTER SUPPORT

2678 9/30/2020 213.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE NWR PHONE SERVICE

2679 9/30/2020 200.00 North Coast Lawn LAWN MAINTENANCE

2680 9/30/2020 55.59 Pacific Office Automation NWR COPIES

2681 9/30/2020 225.22 Pacific Office Automation COPIER LEASE NWR

Report Total 163,558.77

Date: 10/7/20 01:57:46 PM

BOARD - MONTHLY CHECK REGISTER - 1009 NWR ACCOUNT

Page: 1

o



Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register
1011 - Prop. Mgmt. Checking
From 9/1/2020 Through 9/30/2020

Document Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description
4327 9/4/2020 700.00 CHRISSY'S CLEANING SERVICE JANITORIAL

4328 9/4/2020 1,285.59 Tillamook PUD ELECTRIC AND LOAN
4329 9/4/2020 780.00 Hillsboro's Finest Pressure GUTTER CLEANING
4329 9/4/2020 (780.00) Hillsborao's Finest Pressure GUTTER CLEANING
4330 9/4/2020 13,155.22 Oregon Department of Transport OTIB LOAN SEPTEMBER 2020
4331 9/15/2020 464.82 Marie Mills Center, Inc janitorial at 3rd st
4332 9/15/2020 283.67 TILLAMOOK CITY UTILITIES AUGUST

4333 9/15/2020 167.95 CITY SANITARY SERVICE AUGUST

4334 9/30/2020 780.00 Hillsboro's Finest Pressure GUTTER CLEANING
4335 9/30/2020 2,560.00 North Coast Lawn LAWN MAINTENANCE
4336 9/30/2020 1,261.72 Tillamook PUD ELECTRIC & LOAN
Report Total 20,658.97

Date: 10/7/20 01:57:53 PM

Page: 1



__ - [UMPQUA BANK: CLOSING DATE 9/25/2020 _ -
 Date |Vendor | Description of Transaction Amount
|
_ ) | ~ DOUGPILANT Py
08/27/20 |VIRTUAL POSTMAIL.COM ~ |POSTAGE - $ 25.00
09/02/20 | AMAZON.COM MARKETING MATERIALS B 38.34 |
09/04/20 | SQ RECESS FOOD TRUCK ~ IMEAL/MEETING - DOUG/TABATHA/BRENT $ 32.00
09/08/20 | AMAZON.COM - MARKETING MATERIALS - |8 3537
| 09/09/20 |AMAZON.COM MARKETING MATERIALS s 1941
- - - $ 15012
_CATHYBOND L |
|
08/25/20 |FIELDPRINT INC BACKGROUND CHECK - ' $ 12.50 |
08/28/20 |LANGUAGE LINE NWR TELEPHONE 13 23.70
08/28/20 [LANGUAGE LINE NWR TELEPHONE i 7.90
09/03/20 |ENDICIA - ~ |POSTAGE/NWR B 9.95
109/08/20 | ADOBE ACROPRO |SOFTWARE BE 24.99
09/14/20 [FIELDPRINT INC. |BACKGROUND CHECK | $ 12.50
09/23/20 | IRON MOUNTAIN - SHRED - '8 97.06
- ) ) '$  188.60
- | I BRENTOLSON -
09/04/20 |PACIFIC RESTAURANT MEALS/MEETING $ 74.93
09/10/20 |WERNER GOURMET MEAT MEALS/MEETING ) $ 32.90 |
09/16/20 | SAFEWAY OFFICE SUPPLIES/COFFEE - $ 5.99
09/21/20 | THE FERN CAFE MEALS/STAFF MEETING ~$  113.06
09/23/20 |BLUE HERON ~ |MEALS/STAFF - HAILEY'S 1ST DAY $ 10168
- o % 32856
B i - TABATHA WELCH , ]
|
| 08/31/20 |ENDICIA STORE - POSTAGE LABELS - |$ 5649
08/31/20 | WALMART.COM 'WELLNESS CENTER/WALKING CHALLENGE $ 39.60
09/02/20 | INDEED.COM |JOB POSTING _ '$ 19775
09/09/20 |POSITIVE PROMOTIONS |WELLNESS CENTER/PEDOMETERS 58.85
09/10/20 /AMAZON.COM |WELLNESS CENTER i $ 10.99
09/11/20 | AMAZON.COM  |WELLNESS CENTER _ $ 9.99
| 09/14/20 | AMAZON.COM OFFICE SUPPLY s 16.98 |
09/14/20 |BELNICK RETAIL, LLC/BIZCHAIR.COM | OFFICE FURNITURE/HAILEY'S CHAIR ~|$ 13899
09/14/20 | AMAZON.COM OFFICE SUPPLY B ' § 5445
09/16/20 | USPS STAMPS ENDICIA POSTAGE $  100.00
09/16/20 [ENDICIA ~ |POSTAGE |8 2499]
09/17/20 | AMAZON.COM AMAZON PRIME MONTHLY MEMBERSHIP FEE $ 1299
09/18//20 WERNER GOURMET MEAT MEALS/STAFF MEETING - $ 21.45
| 09/18/20 [SQ LAS MARGARITAS MEALS/BOARD MEETING $ 40.85
09/18/20 | AMAZON.COM |EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION $ 44.98
09/18/20 | AMAZON.COM . OFFICE SUPPLY $ 999
09/21/20 | AMAZON.COM - 'OFFICE SUPPLY _ $ 24.95
09/21/20 |FRED MEYER ~ |WELLNESS CENTER/PEDOMETERS B 39.98 |
- | S ' $ 90227
| _CLAYTON NORRBOM T N
09/02/20 |SQ MARIAS TAQUERIA MEAL/TRAINING - CLAYTON/ROY R 21.00
il B - $ 21.00
- ] | STATEMENT TRUE UP - il 1
iy B ) Charges totall $§  1,590.55
] - - Grand Total' i $ 159055
Y
APPROVAL (. g/ e DATE [6-7T-2 O
(7




g

September 2020 Statement {By Page 10f5
Cpen Date: 08/25/2020 Closing Date: 09/23/2020 —— Actount:
> Visa® Company Card with Rewards Cartdmember ‘be’*!rvsce { 1-606-552-8855
TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) BUS 30 EMN 1
New Balance Activity Summary
Minimum Payment D Previous Balance + $4,295 .55
Payment Due Date Paymenis = $4,295.55¢CR
Other Crediis $0.00
Reward Points Purchases + $1,590.55
Earned This Statement 1,873 Balancgﬁ e e $8'OO
Reward Center Balance 56,021 Advances $0.00
Other Debits $0.00
as of 09/22/2020 Fees Charged $0.00
= tails see vou Nare THTIATY. = ded ;
For details, see your rewards summary Interest Gharged $0.00
New Balantce = $1,5580.55
Past Due $0.00
- Minimum Payment Due $16.00
’ , Teaneroriation District
Tilamook Sounty Transportation DFs Credit Line $10,000.00
Account.. Available Credit A $8,409.45
Ace Ua‘:!‘ﬁ. L Days in Billing Period 30
P Mail payment coupon Pay onling at Pay by phone
Payment Options: with a check \i_:: Myaccountaceess.com (: 1-866-552-8855

UMPQUA BANK

UMPQUA BANK

Please detach and send coupon with check payable to: Cardmember Service

Dl’

24-Hour Cardmember Service: 1-866-552-83355

c . to pay by phone
« to change your address

000030763 01 8P D00638587832490P Y

TILLAMOOK CNTY TRAMNS
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

3600 3RD ST STE A
TILLAMOOK OR 9714 1-2730

U R LT ST U TR L L LR L R LT

CPN 007469460
o
Account Numbey S J
Payment Due Date 10/22/2020
New Balance $1,580.55
Minimum Paymeant Due $16.00

Amount Enclosed %

Cardmember Service

P.O. Box 780408

St. Louis, MQ 83178-0408

(PR TP PRy T PR D IS PO [T R TR IR ERTETET

Lo



UMPQUA BANK

September 2020 Statement 08/25/2020 - 09/23/2020 Page 2 0f 5
TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) Cardmemntber Service @: 1-866-552-8855

Visa Business Rewards Company Card =~

Rewards Center Activity as of 09/22/2020
Rewards Center Activity* 0

Rewards Center Balance 56,021

*This item includes points redeemed, expired and adjusted.

This Year
Rewards Earned \ Statement to Date
Points Earned on Net Purchases 1,309 22,873
Gas, Restaurants & Telecom Double Paints 564 9,084
Total Earned 1,873 31,967 |

For rewards program inquiries and redemptions, call 1-888-229-8864 from 8:00 am to 10:00 pm (CST)
Monday through Friday, 8:00 am to 5:30 pm (CST) Saturday and Sunday. Automated account information is
available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

Paying Interest: You have a 24 to 30 day interest-free period for Purchases provided you have paid your
previous balance in full by the Payment Due Date shown on your menthly Account statement. In order to
avoid additional INTEREST CHARGES on Purchases, you must pay your new balance in full by the
Payment Due Date shown on the front of your monihly Account stafement.

There is no interest-free period for transactions that post to the Account as Advances or Balance Transfers
except as provided in any Offer Materials. Those transactions are subject to interest from the date they post
to the Account until the date they are paid in full.

Speed through checkout while earning rewards with PayPal. Go to the Mobile App or manage your account
online. Link your card to PayPal today.

Account Security is very important to you and to us. When you use your Card to make a purchase,
particularly over the phone or online, you may be asked to provide a card security code, sometimes called a
CVV. This information is used to help confirm that it is you using the Card and that the Card is authentic.

Transactions  PILANT,DOUGLAS - Credit Limit $5000
Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation
Bl simmad : Purchases and Other Debits =~ i =
08/27 08/27 8838 VIRTUALPOSTMAIL. COM  909.235-6245 CA $25.00
09/02 09/01 6296 Amazon.com*MUB942V/31 Amzn.com/bill VYA $38.34
09/04 09/02 9258 SQ *RECESS FOOD TRUCK gosgq.com OR $32.00
09/08 ©09/06 6551 Amazon.com*MUSIGAVY2 Amzn.com/bill WA $35.37
09/09 09/08 2429 Amazon.com*MU1IXIBBF2 Amzn.com/bill WA $19.41
Total for Account o ) $150.12
Transactions BOND,CATHY = . Credit Limit $2500

Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation

i Purchases and Other Debits . = . : S

Continusd on Next Page



UMPQUA BANK

September 2020 Statement 08/25/2020 - 09/23/2020

Page 30f 5

TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) Cardmember Service €: 1-866-552-8855

Transactions BOND,CATHY
Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description
08/25 08/25 5586 FIELDPRINT INC 838-291-1362 PA
08/28 08/27 2341 LANGUAGE LINE, INC. 800-7526096 CA
08/28 08/27 7408 LANGUAGE LINE, INC. 800-7526096 CA
09/03 09/02 7125 ENDICIA 800-576-3279 CA
09/08 09/05 8118 ADOBE ACROPRO SUBS  408-536-6000 CA
09/14 09/12 1127 FIELDPRINT INC £888-291-1369 PA

09/23 0922 7503 (RON MOUNTAIN 800-934-3453 MA
Total for Account -

Credit Limit $2500

Amount Notation
$12.50
$23.70
$7.€0
$2.95
$24.99
$12.50
$97.06
$188.80

f!é'ér@ansactions | WELCH TABATHA

Post Trans
Date Date

08/31 08/29 3318 ENDICIA STORE 800-576-3272 CA
08/31 08/3¢ 1687 WALMART.COMAY 800-966-6546 AR
09/02 09/01 8532 INDEER 203-584-2400CT

09/02¢ 09/08 0302 POSITIVE PROMOTIONS 800-8352666 NY
09/10 09/09 8067 AMZN Vkip US*MU7887XMO Amzn.com/bill WA
09/11 09/10 8438 AMZN Mkip US*M444P1CZ1 Amzn.com/bill WA
09/14 09/12 2186 AMZN Mkip US*M489T3LM1 Amzn.com/bill WA
09/14 09/11 2290 BELNICKRETAIL, LLT 770-721-8200 GA

09/14 09/11 3517  AMZN Mktp US*MUSA 17712 Amzn.com/bill WA
09/16 09/14 6646 USPS STAMPS ENDICIA  310-482-5800 CA
09/16 09/15 0318 ENDICIA 800-576-3279 CA

09/17 09/17 8240 Amazon Prime*M47835NQ2 Amzn.com/bill WA
09/18 09/16 4526 WERNER GOURMET MEAT SN TILLAMOOK OR
09/18 09/17 2816 SQ *LAS MARGARITAS Tillamook OR

09/18 09/17 6154 AMZN Mictp US*M483VEPP 1 Amazn.com/bill WA
09/18 09/17 1038 AMZN Mkip USTVIUISBSSWUO Amzn.com/bill YWA
09/21 09/19 2191  AMZN Mkip US*M47S12FU0 Aman.com/bill WA

09/21 09/19 4028 FRED MEYER #5377 503-815-1400 OR
Total for Account .

Amount

Credit Limit $2500
Notation

$56.49
$39.60
$197.75
$58.85
$10.99
$s.0¢
$16.88
$136.98
$54.45
$100.00
$24.99
$12.99
$21.45
$40.85
$44.98
$2.99
$24.95
$39.98
$902.27

Transactions  OLSOMBRENT

Post  Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description

09/04 09/02 0021 PACIFIC RESTAURANT TILLAMOOK OR
09/10 09/08 0294 WERNER GOURMET MEAT SN TILLAMOOK OR

Continued an Next Page

{1 purchases and Other Debits

Amount Notation

$74.93
$32.90



UMPQUA BANK

September 2020 Statement 08/25/2020 - 09/23/2020 Page 4 of 5
s TH.LAMOOK CMTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) Cardmernber Service g 1-866-552-8855
Lﬁ Transactions  OLSONJBRENT = _ CreditLimit $3000
Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation
09/16 09/14 (683 SAFEMWYAY #2723 TILLAMOOK OR $5.99
09/21 09/18 9849 THE FERN CAFE SILLAMOOK OR $113.06
09/23 09/21 1343 BLUE HERONFRENCHCH TILLAMOOK CR $101.68
Total for Account ’ $328.56

Credit Limit $2500

Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount

Notation

09/02 09/01 5988 SQ *MARIAS TAQUERIA Tillamook OR $21.00
Total for Account $21.00

Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation

09/08 09/08 4 PAYMENT THANK YOU $134.85¢cr
09/08 09/08 4 PAYMENT THANK YOU $4,160.70cR
Total for Account \ $4,298.55CR
| 2020 Totals Year-to-Date
Total Fees Charged in 2020 $0.00
Total Interest Charged in 2020 $0.00

interest Charge Calculation

Your Annual Percentage Rate (APR) is the annual interest rate on your accoum.

**APR for current and future fransactions.

Baiance Annual Expires
Balance Subject to inforast Percentage with
Balance Type By Type Interest Rate Variabie Charge Rate Statement
*BALANCE TRANSFER $0.00 $0.00 YES $9.00 12.24%
"PURCHASES $1,590.65 $0.00 YES $0.00 12.24%
*ADVANCES 30.00 $0.00 YES $0.C0 23,99%

A

Continued on Next Page



UMPQUA BANK

September 2020 Statement 08/25/2020 - 09/23/2020 Page 5 0of 6
TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) Cardmember Service @: 1-866-552-8855

Phone @) Questions =27 Mail payment coupon = Online
=S /> \ ’ e |
with a check
Voice: 1-866-552-8855 Cardmember Service Cardmember Service myaccountaccess.com
TDD: 1-888-352-6455 P.O. Box 6353 P.O. Box 790408
Fax: 1-866-807-9053 Fargo, ND 58125-6353 St Louis, MO 63179-0408

E£nd of Statement

' ' TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS

PayPal

Link your credit card
to PayPal today!!!

Earn rewards while you shop the millions of sites that accept PayPal.
Experience faster checkouts, added security and convenience.
It's all there for you when you link your card to PayPal.

Link your card in the Mobile App or online teday.

Recent updates to your account may impact your eliqjlbility to enrolt in PayPal. Account must be open and in good standing to earn and redeem rewards
and benefits. Rewards are based on eligibie net purchases (purchases minus credits and returns). Not all transactions aré eligible to earn rewards
limitations ag:_ply.

See your Cardmember Agreement for detalls.

i

EF T



Tillamook County Transportation District

MONTHLY PERFORMANCE REPORT SEP 2020
RIDERSHIP BY SERVICE TYPE SEP SEP YTD YTD YTD %

2020 2019 FY 20-21 FY 19-20 Change
Dial-A-Ride Service
Tillamook County 859 1,013 2,580 3,247 -20.5%
NW Rides 491 680 1,226 2,269 -46.0%
Dial-A-Ride Total 1,350 1,693 3,806 5,516 -31.0%
Deviated Fixed Route Service
Rt 1: Town Loop 2,488 3,475 8,184 10,992 -25.5%
Rt 2. Netarts/Oceanside 350 569 1,351 2,058 -34.4%
Rt 3: Manzanita/Cannon Beach 1,959 3,115 6,453 9,485 -32.0%
Rt 4: Lincoln City 787 1,466 2,633 5,132 -48.7%
Local Fixed Rt Total 5,584 8,625 18,621 27,667 -32.7%
Intercity Service
Rt 5: Portland 481 877 1,522 2,924 -47.9%
Rt 60X: Salem 511 980 1,674 3,160 -47.0%
Rt 70X: Grand Ronde 269 473 847 1,405 -39.7%
Inter City Total 1,261 2,330 4,043 7,489 -46.0%
Other Services
Tripper Routes 41 132 57 284 -79.9%
Special Bus Operations 119 106 516 1,069 -51.7%
Other Services Total 160 238 573 1,353 -57.6%
TOTAL ALL SERVICES 8,355 12,886 27,043 42,025 -35.7%
ONE-WAY TRIPS BY USER GROUP

Fixed YTD YTD YTD %
USER GROUP Route DAR FY 20-21 | FY 19-20 | Change
General (18 years to 60 years of age) 4177 216 14,542 22,924 -36.6%
Senior/Disabled 2,285 1,080 10,716 16,126 -33.5%
Child/Youth (less than 18 years of age) 542 54 1,785 2,976 -40.0%
Total 7,005 1,350 27,043 42,025 -35.7%
OTHER RIDER CATEGORIES Fixed YTD YTD YTD %

Route DAR FY 20-21 | FY 19-20 | Change
Ride Connection 84 209 285 -26.7%
Tillamook Bay Community College 160} 393 394 -0.3%
NWOTA Visitor Pass 52| 298 610 -51.1%
NW Rides 442 1,122 2,013 -44.3%
Helping Hands Shuttle 61 148 483 -69.4%

09-20 RIDERSHIP REPORT .xlsx

10/11/2020

“l

\?h

(



Tillamook County Transportation District Aug 2020

MONTHLY PERFORMANCE

Operating
Service Passengers Farebox Cost
Month per Hour Ratio per Hour
Dial-A-Ride Services
Sep-19 1.6 55.4% 74.06
Jun-20 1.6 53.5% 78.13
Jul-20 1.4 32.2% 100.77
Aug-20 1.5 39.6% 86.31
Sep-20 1.5 40.7% 85.48
STANDARD 1.3 65.3% 56.36
Deviated Fixed Routes
Sep-19 6.2 9.5% 74.01
Jun-20 5.3 6.4% 77.65
Jul-20 4.2 4.6% 101.65
Aug-20 4.3 5.5% 87.09
Sep-20 4.1 5.2% 86.13
STANDARD 7.0 12.4% 64.60 B
Intercity Services
Sep-19 3.4 21.5% 81.56
Jun-20 2.5 13.4% 89.27
Jul-20 1.9 7.8% 113.23
Aug-20 1.8 9.9% 98.10
Sep-20 1.8 9.8% 96.77
STANDARD 2.9 31.5% 72.86
Other Services
Sep-19 5.0 7.3% 67.74
Jun-20 4.8 7.8% 67.68
Jul-20 2.4 0.2% 90.29
Aug-20 2.1 1.0% 77.26
Sep-20 2.4 0.2% 77.05
STANDARD 6.9 10.7% 67.00

Dial-a-Ride includes Central, North and South Counties Dial-A-Ride Services

Deviated Fixed Routes: 1 Town Loop, 2 Oceanside, 3 Manzanita/Cannon Beach, 4 Lincoln City
Intercity Routes: 5 Portland, 60X Coastal Connector, 70X Salem/Grand Ronde

Other Services: Trippers and Special Bus Operations



Tillamook County Transportation District Summer Quarter
FY 2020-2021

QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE
Operating Cost
Service Passengers Farebox Cost per
Quarter per Hour Ratio per Hour Passenger
Dial-A-Ride Services
Summer -19 1.6 55.6% 73.66 47.15
Fall - 19 1.6 56.6% 70.76 44.21
Winter - 20 1.6 53.6% 76.90 48.35
Spring - 20 1.6 53.5% 78.13 49.99
Summer -20 1.5 40.7% 85.48 56.33
STANDARD 1.3 65.3% 56.36 4519
Deviated Fixed Route Services
Summer -19 6.3 9.5% 73.64 11.66
Fall - 19 6.1 9.3% 70.98 11.62
Winter - 20 59 8.1% 76.51 12.88
Spring - 20 5.3 7.2% 77.65 14.74
Summer -20 4.1 5.2% 86.13 20.96
STANDARD 7.0 12.4% 64.60 9.29
Intercity Services
Summer -19 3.4 19.6% 83.54 24.93
Fall - 19 3.1 19.1% 81.60 25.95
Winter - 20 2.9 15.9% 88.54 30.21
Spring - 20 2.5 13.4% 90.07 36.55
Summer -20 1.8 9.8% 96.77 54.35
STANDARD 29 31.5% 72.86 24.86
Other Services
Summer -19 5.0 7.3% 66.97 13.30
Fall - 19 5.3 10.5% 62.92 11.76
Winter - 20 5.4 9.5% 66.85 12.28
Spring - 20 4.8 7.8% 67.68 14.11
Summer -20 2.4 0.2% 77.05 32.18
STANDARD 6.9 10.7% 55.54 8.28
10/11/2020

TCTD MIS Report 2020-21_09.20.xlsx

L)



| ebed %10 618°2¥9 1500 08IIQ '® JOge] ‘ebesli)y [BjoL
grel YRY $0°0 %ES £8'Z 9788 GE6'ZP8 [9LL'SEL  2S8'LZ Zeo'zey  SEELZL  |sEv0ST 29F'LlL 0S5'6 ev0'Le viL'82L S801AJ8S 0101 [Bl0L
G1°0 900 €00 %2 0 e G0 LL 18781 00€+ 869 8.2l 1921 18%C 9/t 6C €5 GE S80IAJ8S JBYI0 [BI0L
000 000 €00 %0°0 €C 169 G92°/L 1207 769 PLYLL 69171 66C°C GZe ¥eZ 915 0 uolesedQ sng |eeds
€ee 190 S0°0 %0°¢ 8¢ vL8L L VA 44 €9/ 26 28l 05 Gl 15 Ge staddi |
EERIINEISEEDN TS
vv'6 0€G 200 %86 gl 11796 vS.6le  [g2L6r 229'9 6.1ccl 8T iy €80°18 189C 1ze cv0'y cev'le AnosB)u| jelo L
29¢ 191 200 %L'T 9l 9196 170°2G eLlLL 851 6Ll62 1/G'6 €288l 089 1vS 178 P apuoy pueisy X0/
7L 158 200 %C L 0zC 78'66 £59'28 0z.'8l Sib'e 0557 $96'91 zle'ee 210°) 8z8 vL9'L G/6'S weles X09
166l €26 200 %SG 9L L' vev6 090°8 FANALTE 6292 0LS'8p 88971 888°82 786 Z06 228" L0yl puejuod 50
NI
vy 80} G0°0 %Z'S (57 €1°98 BSE06E |€L0°16 L12°el 1906  82¥'SS 110601 €92 zeSY 12981 zeloe 9oy pajeIns(] (810
e 9Ll €00 %Ly ST £V 26 8€7'66 £Gl'eg i€1e 0v9%S vie8lL 8109 ziTL ¥20°1 £€9C oY A3D ujoourt 0
ZL's £e'L S00 %6°'G 8¢ 6848 veL'rL  |PET'vE 168 8P 68 ¥51'22 LLS'Er ove'L BL9°L £GP’ 765’8 ejluezuey €0
(KA vLL €00 %0°E zZ 6.8 1£0'28 ovLzL 062'L (RorARS 9/8'9 ¥Z5'st 9z8 ¥19 Lge'L LSl apIsuesdQ/SHElSN Z0
65V G9'0 600 %8G 0L 72°6. LGe'26 sz 00V’ 22£'65 £80'8 868°Gl Gze'l 991t ¥8L'8 IYE'S dooumo] 10
aInNoyYy paleinaqg
LIRS 1622 €00 %L 0¥ gl 868 G8Erle 810706 r1EL GE9'/CL  6lL¥'6C 8G8°/G Tvee 80G°C 908t ¥81728 ¥va [eloL
5099 G/°€9 €00 %9'€9 60 0188 v8cZl [199'82  L90% 096°0L 65161 189'/¢ 028’} ¥6eL 9zcl GS1'8. Sepid MN
Lg 05 £0°0 %6°6 £€C 6128 9€5°L6 9ge'le 8ve'e ¥19'95 65201 12102 zer') L 0852 620'6 apId-v-iela
BOIAIBS opIg-v-Telq
uny/aInoy
Awov_ﬁwm ($)oreq  Apisang oey  JnoHJed () sley | ($)sisoD | ($)sisoD  ($)isoD aﬁwmwwmo wwwmw siBussed m:hww,mm
JanusASY abelony ¢ Busseqd xogele4 sibussed AlInoH fejo | Jo811pU| Jo811Q AInoK obesly alA o184 LA
020Z/VLI0L 020z des nuy |

8oUBULIOLIBSd PUE SO1JSIIE)S 3)B(J-03-1BdA

1202/020C Ad IENOY

1o13sIg uonepodsuel ] AJuno? yoowepji ],




D

z abedq
%C L |0.5'9G S£6'2b8  99£°08L %b'8- [1i8" 0556 220l %L'GE- |286'WL-  £v0°LZ SZ0'Zy  [%Zob- [9vi'es-  pLL'8ZL  02S'SLT Sa%IAIeS 01O1L 2101
%EL  |62C 1EV8L 8028} %0 1L~ |0E- 6ce 692 %9°2G [08Z- S £GE'L %¥'16- [00E°)- Ge GEe’l S82IAIBS J8YJQ [BI01.
%69 |8LL'} eI SvL'ol %G |¥i- vZe 8€C %2 1S |55 915 690°} %000k~ |1Gh - 0 XTI uopesadQ sng [eroads
%Leh- (888~ zL'L 090°C %916~ |9L- St Le %6'6.- |/22- 25 ¥82 %018~ |6l Ge v8l sJaddu |
EERIINETSPEDN o]
%8¢ |0GL0F  ¥S.6lc  v00'6LL %S¢ |9 122 S6l¢ %0 9%~ [9vbe- cv0Y 68V %E ¥h- |60 ZL- Eovle Z15'8E Ayois| [e1o].
%L €C |SGL6 1w0CS  98CCF %LE |91 [ GeS %466~ |8SG 178 SO¥'L %98l |£ce- e ovL'L apucy puels X0/
%lez  |ses'st £69'Z8 81129 %l |oy 828 88/ %0 Ly~ |981'L- ¥.9°'L o9L'e %9'82- |86¢°C- G/6'S £€'8 wales X09
%2TT  |6GP'GL 090'68 009°69 %ee |0z 206 z88 %6'Ly-  |20v'L- zes'L ¥26'2 %906~ [8SEVL- L0V 66£'8C pueniod S0
Aprsy
%06l |0€2C9  6SG806E 621 82E %CC |66 ST PErY %L28- |9v0°6 12981 199'72 %C e~ [IP6'0L- 2202 £90°ILE aIN0Y paxi] (€207 [BI0L
%¥'8lL |SBEG 8E7 66 £V8e8 %ZcC |ecC v20'} 0501 %L'8y- |66V £€9C ZeL’g %E - [8FSE- oY 0618 AND ujodurT 0
%06l |0LP'€Z  pEL'OvL  £2e'eC) %Ze |l& 69'L £ro'L %028 |2e0'e- €59 G8Y'6 %L'€C- (048 265'8 296°CL ejuezue €0
%0'6L |SLE'S 1£0'2S zel'sy %ZT |El 719 009 %y ye- [L0L- Kol 8G50'2 %6'62- 859 LpS'L 661°C 9pISUBDQ/SHEIRN Z0
%961 |0LL'GL 16226 0T Ll %ZZ |52 991l ovL'L %G'GZ-  [808'2- 7818 z66°01 %206 [59€°C Ve’ ZLLL dooumoy L0
BN IEIERETY|
%6LL- [6€9°9F- G8EVLZ 20 L9C %882~ [210°1- 805 G28'e %07 LE- [0LLL- 908°¢ 916G %.l6E- |9Zv'LG-  ¥8L'/8 0191 dva el
%L06- [PLEVS-  Z¥87TZL 29l Z/L %E 0V |cv6- 6EL 9gee %0°9v- [€v0'L- 922’} 69C°C %E Ty~ |6LCLS- GGL'8L  vEv'SEl S8pRd MN
%Z6 [619'L 9€5°1L6 298'c8 %e'9- |Gl 7L 881l %G°0Z- |99 085°C ve'e %9'L-  |LplL- 620'6 9lL'6 apid-v-fela
SOIAISS epig-v-IEId
uny/8INno;

goualalig | eoualaylq 1500 [B10] 1507 2101 aouUBIBYIQ | BoUBIBYIT  SINOH SINOH soualayiq | soualayiq sibusseq  siBusseq 90UaIaYI | 8ouUBIBUI] SNUBAASY  OnuoAdY H/eIn0y

Juadiad unowy Juadtad unowy [N AVINIBG Juadlad junowy Wiadlad junouwny aled aled

12/02 0z/6l 12/02 0z/61 12/02 0z/61L 12/0Z 0z/61L

020z dag niyL 020z deg nuy]. 020z deg niyy 020z deg nuy

uosiHedwon ILBA-ISAQ-JES A

L2/0Z Ad 01 02/6LAd

jouisiq uoneuodsuelsy Ajuno9 yooweyi |



%l'E gLL'8z £80'GL8 99€'98/ SIS0D BloL
S5€9 $ %00 40id snid - $1S00) PEaYIBAQ
LLLS $ syey AunoH yaeod %68 9z0'9L 911661 060'6.1 S)800 103411g
%1°0€ PE3WYIBAQ SNid sng |lews %0'€ €0T'v) z€9'C6¥ 62¥'8LY s1s0) paseg Aunoy
orvy  $ sjey Aunoy ueAuliy %C L (Lig'y) Gee'Lel 9v8'8zl S1s0) paseg abeajiy
%E'E $1s00 32343 snid Wold PeE3YIBAQ 1eny %88~ (G21'v2) EEP'0ST 809'v/2 abesjiy
862h % 2y AHNOH [enoy waah souaseyl]  PauLIRNg 12/02 0¢/61 uonduassg
uoienaje s ey APNOH %Gk snid snid ‘uonenofes ajiw Jod 3509 JUadId4d  junowy 12/0C Ad 03 02/6L AL
1509 uonenoje s uonesadQ sng |e1oadg 020z bny ybnoiyl aiA uos|edwo)
¢ abedq
%l°L- 1£°0- 9L’y €L's %C vy |%LTL %E'G) %V LC %89'62- A 8¢ oY %021 1821 92'88 Sv'sl SaJIAIBG JBYIO [EJOL
%8'€6- £6°0- 900 66°0 %b 167 %L %0 %E'L %v'TS 9¢c v 0's %l'EL 1E6 S0°2L vl'19 S0IABS 18U [BIOL
%0°00L-  [80°1L- 000 80t %000k %14 %00 %lb'L %881~ GG 54 Sy %¥ el 20’6 1692 06°29 uonesadQ sng |eads
%C'S- €00~ 190 S9°0 %999~ %6'G- %0'€ %68 %S85~ 'S 8¢ 26 %9LL 1911 14374 L¥'99 siadduy
SBIAIES BUO
Y%l'€ 910 oE's 143°] Sl ¥S- %8'LL- %86 %S 1T %8 ¥ 91- gL 12 %L'8L ¢c'st 12°96 96'18 Ripisu) €101
%1'SE £¥'0 291 ¥l %8ee-  |%tb'L- %L°¢ %'t %S - L' 9l L'e %EBL 85'GL 91'96 1508 Spuoy puels) X0
%L vE 260 JARS S9¢ %2y |%C'S- %C L %STL %961~ oe 0z oY %Z'LL S9'vL 29'66 81’68 wajeg X09
%0°G~ 610 €26 1.6 %565 |%EVZ- %S 9L %8 oY %l 61~ 9'L- Lt €€ %961 £¥'S1 PE'V6 168 puejuod G0
Ryorsyay
%8e [¥00 801 zLl %GGr- [%EV- % S %G 6 %2 VE- Le- 57 29 %v'oL  |ziel €198 HovL 30y pajeIAag B10 L
%S 0L PARY 9/’ 9L Yol'ES- Y%l G- hlY %86 %8 6%~ ye §c 6% %8St 09'Zh £¥'C6 €86 AN ujedury ¥0
%9’ v0°0- €e’} LE°} %L v Y%l v %6°S %S 0L %Y ee- 61" 8¢ 8'G %v' 9L Lezh 6€°28 80'GL BJUBZUBIN €0
%L'9 100 140" L0} %L W %l %0°€ %0'S %8'Ge- o4/ e e %¥ 91 9611 64'¥8 €8'2L opIsuead/SHeIdN Z0
%6'9- S0°0- 590 00 %0°CY-  |%C - %8S %001 %< Le- 9¢ [oF) 9'6 %0°LL 6711 [44:7A 219 dooumoy Lo
SNy pafeneq
%8Cl- Lee- L6¢e (LT %99 Yl ¥l %l 0% %b'SS A VK] S} 9l %Y’ Sl fA A" 898 90'vL yva el
%89 90y S.'e9 6969 %8 91- %8 Cl- %9'€9 %¥9L %S'6~ L0~ 60 ol %91 yRAAS oL'ge £8'6L Saplyd MN
%8€C  |L9°0 0s'e €82 %66~ %l - %6'6 %6701 % GL- o €T FArA %S94 XLl 6128 L1504 apry-v-elg
SJIAIBS SP-v-BIq
HiQ Wadiad | yiq wunowy EYCH] aJe Wiqg aoiad | ig wnowy oney oney g uadiad [ mQ unowy JNoH/ oY/ g usduad | migunowy 8jey AnoH  ejey AUnoH uny/amnoy
abesony sbessay x0qaley X0qaJe 1Bussey JBusseq
Le/oe 0z/6L 12/0C 0c/6l L2/0e 0Z/el Le/oe 0c/61
0z0Z dog niyL 0z0z dog nuyy 020z dog nuy L 0z0Z dog nuyy

uosiiedwon ssuewLIOUSd 8)e(] 0} JEdA

12102 Ad 03 02/6FAd

jo181g uoneuodsues) AJunos yoowejji|

Al



Coordinating Committee Meeting
October 16, 2020
Tillamook County Transportation District
3600 314 St
Tillamook, OR
1:00 pm—3:00 pm

Join Zoom Meeting:
https://uso2web.zoom.us/i/87505081238

1253 215 8782
Meeting ID: 875 0508 1238

Agenda

-ONNECTOR

1:00—

1:05p 1. Introductions. Welcome to guests.

Doug Pilant

2. Consent Calendar (Action Itemms)

- % September 25, 2020 Meeting Minutes (Attached)
105~ % September 2020 Financial Report

1:15p 4+ Ridership Tracking

#+ Calculating Average Passenger Miles Update

Doug Pilant/All

3. NWOTA Standing Items
4+ [GA Distribution (Mary to coordinate)
% Website STF Grant Status (Mary + Hailey)
4 Marketing:
= Status of Travel Studio Car-Free grant (Mary/Ken)
= NW Connector system map update (Mary/Hailey/
Chris)
= Visitor Pass Map update (Hailey/Selena)
1:15— = Developing a NWConnector information card
1:452 (Hailey/Selena)
= TCTD bus wrap (Doug)
= Pictures of bus stops without OXO logo (Doug)
%+ Website
= Alert Implementation (Jeff/Cynda)
= Add a bicycle page (Mary)
= OXO logos removed (Mary)
4 NWOTA Policies
= Bicycle Policy update (Mary)

Doug Pilant/All

4. STIF—Discretionary for some NW Transit Access Project Bus
Stops Update
+ Potential Stops Cost Estimates
% Stops to include in Application (Action Item)
#% Preliminary Draft of Application Narratives

1:45—
2:30p

Ken Shonkwiler
Doug Pilant/All
Mary McArthur

WWW. NWCONnector.org

Bentah tounty

TRANSPORTATION

P
SURSEY EM TR
% by TRANSPORTATION
1‘,«-‘ MSTRIGT

oy



po— 5. COVID-19 Transit/NW Connector Updates
2:30 % Sanitizer System Purchase Update All
-20p % Partner Updates
2:50— 7
. 6. Other Business and Member Updates All
3:00p
Attachments:

September 25, 2020 Meeting Minutes
September 25, 2020 To Do List

NWOTA meetings are open to the public and accommodations will be provided to persons with
disabilities. If a sign language interpreter is needed, please call Mary McArthur at 503.397-3099 at least 48

hours prior to the meeting.

2|Page 1%
L



Oregon Transit Alliance (NWOTA)
Coordinating Committee Meeting Minutes (via Zoom)
September 25, 2020
Tillamook County Transportation District

Tillamook, OR

1. Introductions: Doug Pilant, Coordinating Committee Chair, opened the meeting. Doug
introduced Hailey Fields who is TCTD’s new Administration Manager. She will be assisting
NWOTA with social meeting and marketing. Meeting attendees included:
~ Jeff Hazen—Sunset Empire Transportation District
— Doug Pilant/Hailey Fields—Tillamook County Transportation District
— Cynda Bruce—Benton County
- Ken Shonkwiler—ODOT
- Ayreann Colombo, Mary McArthur—Col-Pac EDD

Announcements: Not going to be having the annual Oregon Transit Conference this year. Doug
was awarded one of the top three outstanding Transit Managers of the Year. Nominated by
NWOTA. Congratulations. Mary was nominated and awarded Tiocal Transit Coordinator.

2. Consent Calendar: Unanimously approved. (CB/JH)

4+ August 14, 2020 Meeting Minutes—No changes
August Financial Report—Only changes were quarter partner dues received..

&
%+ Ridership Performance Report—NW Connector was on target to-increase ridership by
%

over 10% prior to COVID.

Calculating Average Passenger Miles Progress—Doug will work with Brad on calculating
passenger miles.

3. NWOTA Standing It(j,,ms:
% IGA—Doug will get TCTD's signed copy to Mary. Mary will follow up with Columbia
County. ' '

4 Website Alert System Imnlementation—Working fine for SETD, TCTD. Was utilized
during the highway closures due to the wildfires. Cynda will get trained and start using
it. Jeff willhelp her to started. Important to remove outdated alerts.

%+ Trip Planner—Leave the interactive map as is, geared to the most common usage of the
website.

% Marketing/Travel Tourism Studio/Transportation Committee—NWConnector system
map in the shelters needs to be updated. Still shows the combined SETD/CCR combined

route along Hwy 30. Hailey has Adobe skills to do the update. Will add update date on
the map going forward. Partners will look for any other needed updates. Doug will show
his new bus wrap at the next meeting and pictures of bus stops without OXO logo. Mary
will go through the entire website to ensure no OXO logos remain on the site.

Next meeting Tourism Studio meeting is Monday afternoon, add Hailey to the group.
There has been some conversation around exploring the option of starting up a Columbia
River Gorge-type Express service at some point. The Tourism Transportation
Committee will be re-energizing after the first of the year. Still have a couple of draft
projects that can be worked on early next year. Will check to see if there is still grant
funding for the planned Car-Free Travel promotion.

4 Visitor Passes—Partners reviewed the most recent draft of the visitor pass prepared by
Selena Barlow. Updates to the map needed include:

NWOTA September 25, 2020 Board Meeting Minutes 1|Page

M



Adding Lincoln County’s blue line to the Newport to Albany route

Making the route from Manzanita to Cannon Beach solid red

Adding Greyhound bus stations

Adding Facebook icon

Replacing the “Plan our trip with Google Maps” with the NWConnector Trip Planner
as the transit icon link

= Include NWConnector 800 number

Mary will check with Selena to see if there is still budget to make the updates. She will
also connect Hailey with Selena, as some of the update may be ableto be done in-house.
Partners will verify that no other updates to the map are needed:

The general discussion on the system map resulted in the partners agreeing that the
visitor pass map was preferred to the system map currently in use for the bus shelters.
Mary will talk to Chris at Trillium about coordinating se that there is only one map being
used. Cynda suggested and the partners concurred that the front of the Visitor Pass
would make an excellent ."General information about
the NWConnector policies could be listed on the back of the card. This could beranother
way to extend NWConnector marketing and branding.

4+ NWOTA Policies

All policies pertinent to riders will be added to the NWConnector website under “More”
information, other than the Bicycles policy which will be:on a separate Bicycle page if it
can be done.

= Bicycles Policy—Current policy needs to be updated with wording stating that riders
are responsible for properly secuting their bicycles on the NWConnector bike racks,
and that they need to ask the bus driver if they are unielear about how to do so. Jeff
will update the video.demonstrating how to secure bicycles to the bus bike racks.
Mary will worksvith Chris to get a bike icon/tablonto the NWConnector website.

= Holidays Pohcy—Cynda will work on net having New Years Day service so that all the
NWConneetor buses will only not operaté on three holidays: Memorial Day,
Independence Day and Labor Day. Once that is implemented, Mai will uidate the

EOhCi and that information can be added to the back of the new

u 'I'ransportlng Anlmals Pohcy—The hnk to the ohc on the NWConnector web page
will be added to the Back of the new } ton '

¥ Use of CONNECTOR Branding Graphlcs—Mary w111 update for the October meeting.

= Participation in the NW Oregon Transit Alliance—Mary will update language to
NW~Connector, but no other specific changes were suggested.

4+ NWOTA Partner Opportunities—Doug has been having conversation with Ride
Connection ontheir Westlink between Banks, Forest Grove, Cornelius, and Hillsboro.
TCTD also reeently completed their ridership survey and one of the highest requested
service expansion was for a third round trip into Portland, which connects with
Westlink’s transit services in Banks and North Plains. This service could also potentially
benefit Columbia County Rider’s service between Banks and Vernonia. Partners at the
meeting all agreed that including Ride Connections on the website appears to be a
positive, subject to the other partners agreement, and whether it can be done technically.
Doug will continue to explore the possibility with Westlink, although it is not clear
whether they would need to be a full NWOTA partner. October meeting agenda item.

NWOTA September 25, 2020 Board Meeting Minutes 2|Page



4. STIF Discretionary Funding for Some NW Transit Access Project Bus Stops

Ken led a discussion on how the STIF grant would work NWOTA wanted ODOT to do the
work. ODOT can’t award funding themselves, only to transit agencies. Would need an IGA
for ODOT to manage the project and contractor with NWOTA maintaining fiscal control of
the grant and paying the invoices. Given how complicated it could get, it might be better to
look at smaller, less complicated stops and manage the stops in-house. Jeff—Will still want
to do Ensign stop. NWConnector could hire a project manager. Go out for bid. This group
would be part of the management team, including Ken for those stops on the State highway
system. TCTD Pacific City stop is on the county system. Lincoln County looking at a Hwy
34 stop. Only 5 weeks to submit the application, so time is of the essence. Will need to have
project cost estimates from Ken, including cost to finish design and construiction. Mary will
check with Brad and John to see if they want to be part of the project, and which stops. Add
a project management contingency of 15%. In the application, each stop will be a separate
project. NWOTA will need to prioritize. Both SETD and Bénton stops are upgrading
existing stops. Each partner needs to write up their own'project component. TCTD as fiscal
agent will submit. Doug will send the link to the application'to Mary. Ken will help Mary.
Each agency will be responsible for their 20% mateh.

5. COVID Transit/NWConnector Updates

4+ Sanitizer System. Money has been appropriated, but thé contract has not be finalized.
ODOT has been short-staffed. At a minimum, NWQTA could go out for bid, but not
award a contract. Doug will talk to TCTD’s attorney. -Contract should arrive in the next
couple of weeks.

6. Partner Updates

% SETD—Jeff noted that six years ago hie was hired, and thanked all the partners for their
support. Board member Kevin Widenér passed away, and the Board appointed his
replacement. A homeless woman has been living in'SETD shelters and it has been
difficult to get her services, as the property landowner is the entity responsible for
seeking help. 77 employees tested positive at Pacific Seafood in Warrenton. Have closed
schools. Scott Claney, a long time transit figure, lost his house in the Talent fire. SETD
has repurposed some of 5311 COVIDfunding to purchase video equipment to produce
training videos to learn how to ride the bus and navigate the district system. Will share
the videos with NWConnector partners and eventually statewide.

4 Lincoln County—Pacific Seafoodin Newport also had a big outbreak a couple of months
ago. Resulted inissnes county-wide. Most recently, Lincoln County Transportation has
helped with wildfire evacuations. Had to do this without any prior training or
experience. Started getting calls from assisted living centers, all staff helped out. Have
been taking notes on what has transpired and will be setting up MOUs with assisted
living centers in the event another evacuation is neeeded. When buses got in gridlock,
received police escorts through the traffic so they could continue evacuations. 8 buses
going over 12 hours a day moving evacuees. Went really well, very proud of staff and
how they stepped up to help out.

4 Tillamook—Good news on both of his sons promotions. Since the last board meeting,
had some significant damage to the Transit Center and a couple of incidents with unruly
riders that subsequently had to be arrested. Testing the new Port of Tillamook Bay
route, Portland service priority in the recent surveys, collective bargaining agreement
has been approved, which will result in a savings to the District. Doing fare policy
analysis, will have alternatives to review next month. Significant number of trips
between Tillamook/Wheeler/Nehalem/Manzanita and Cannon Beach. Also, now
stopping in Arch Cape.

NWOTA September 25, 2020 Board Meeting Minutes 3|Page



4 NOW—Debra Smith resigned.

4 Col-Pac—Over next 45 days will be significant amount of funding available to small
businesses affected by the pandemic in Clatsop and Tillamook counties. Important to

get the word out.

Recorded: Mary McArthur, Col-Pac EDD and NWOTA Coordinator

NWOTA September 25, 2020 Board Meeting Minutes 4|Page

-




1 :98eq 20uBLIBA 29 198png QLA/M Hoday qOg AlYruon
%bS T L1TI0681 00°000°861 81868 L1621 €8°L8V'C
%000 00°0ST'SH 00°0ST°SH 000 000 000
%000 00°0STTH 00°0ST°TH 000 000 000
%000 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 000 000 000
%88°S LUTILEPI 00°0SL°TS1 £€8°L86'8 LI'6TLTI €8°L8Y'T
%000 00°000°S 00°000°S 000 L9991y 000
%000 (€8°L8Y°7) 000 £8°L8Y°T 000 €8°L8P'T
%99°8 0000589 00°000°SL 00°00S°9 00°0ST°9 000
%000 00°000°S€ 00°000°S€ 000 L9916C 000
%00°0 00°005°L 00°008°L 000 00°S29 000
%000 00°000°ST 00°000'ST 000 £€°€80°C 000
%000 00°0ST°S 00°0ST'S 000 0S'LEY 000
%0ES (00°005°281) 0070007861 00700501 000 000
2000 (00°000v9) 000009 000 000 000
%00°0 (00°000°C1) 00°000°T1 000 000 00°0
%00'ST (00°00$°1€) 00°000°Ck 00700501 000 000
%000 (00°000°08) 00°000°08 000 000 0070

A4 0UBLIBA 193png 1e10], [enoy 123png pouad [enoy poLad
wuwﬁzm [e1og, Iea A HEO.E:U ﬁ\_o.ESU HEQ.CSQ

0207/0€/6 USNOIYL, 0T0T/1/6 Wol]
BI[[V }SUBI] U03210) 1SOMULION - §0
JUSWSIE)S [BIOUBUL ]

L1 uoneodsuel ], AJuno)) yoowe[i],

0816
0€l16

ocee
961¢
l61¢
061¢
c0I¢
101¢
001¢

8l6¥
I16%
Ty
00¢¢

N P1:LE°€0 0T/L/01 Pred

sasuadxd [e10],
SIaJSuel] [e10]
Teq punq Suipuy paendoiddeun
punj [elauar) 0} Igjsuel]
SIgJSuBl |
SIOIAIIG PUE S[BLIDIBIA [BI0]
ururel] 29 [9ABI]
100f01d $S200Vy JISueI],
uB1sa(1-0Y 2MSqIM
Funayuey
2OUBUSJUIBIA] 9IS M
uoddng sanensiuwpy
SADIAIDG [BUOISSIJOI]
S901AI2G pUE S[BLIIRIN
sasuadxg

S20IN0SY [B10],
pung J[1S WOl Iajsuel],
pung jelauan) wol, I3Jsuel],
UoIBIA U0y 1Bued VIOMN
Tende) unyiop

S92IN0SY

A



NELSON
NYGAARD

MEMORANDUM
To: Doug Pilant, Tillamook County Transportation District
From: Cristina Barone and Oren Eshel, Nelson\Nygaard
Date:  October 15, 2020

Subject: Fare Analysis Project Update

The Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD) fare analysis provides a comprehensive review of
the current fare structure and policies. TCTD is interested in making changes to fare and/or service
policies coordinated with its launch of the Ecolane Deviated Fixed-Route module, planned for early 2021.
The fare analysis includes a review of:

= Existing fare policies

= Relevant fare-related best practices

= Potential impact to ridership and revenue of modeled fare scenarios

= Fare and policy recommendations

Fare scenario analysis is currently in progress. Fare recommendations will incorporate results from
reviewing national best practices, evaluation of fare scenarios, and refining concepts with agency staff.

Project Goals
Specific goals and objectives for the fare study are summarized as follows:

= Simplify and streamline fare structure

= Coordination and seamless integration with other providers

» Increase ridership while balancing fare revenue

= Establish performance metrics, including average subsidy per trip and farebox recovery
»  Evaluate alternatives to in-county multi-zone fare structure

= Explore new fare media, including mobile and electronic ticketing

= Educate operators, board, and public on fares and fare policies

Stakeholder Focus Groups

Two focus group meetings (10 people) were held on September 15 and 16, 2020 to obtain input from
TCTD stakeholders on topics related to the fare study, including the zone structure, fare media, and
discounts. The discussion included general feedback on TCTD’s existing services and opportunities for the
District. Focus group participants included members representing the following agencies:

= Tillamook County Community Action Resource Enterprises
»  Tides of Change
= Tillamook County Veterans Services

621 SW MORRISON ST, SUITE 1250  PORTLAND, OR 97205 503-227-3463 FAX 503-228-2320
www.nelsonnygaard.com “) A



FARE ANALYSIS PROJECT UPDATE
Titlamaook County Transportation District

Oregon Health Authority VISTA

Rinehart Clinic

Marie Mills Center

Northwest Senior and Disability Services

ODOT Public Transportation Division

Columbia Pacific Coordinated Care Organization

Lincoln County Transit

Highlights from the focus groups relevant to the fare analysis are provided in Figure 1.

Figure 1 Summary of Fare-Related Focus Group Comments

Category | Findings
= Zones are arbitrary, cutoffs are challenging (people need multiple tokens)

= People would be delighted to pay a little more to be able to travel outside the existing

Fare zones zones
= Amileage-based fare seems confusing and could get expensive

= Simplicity should be the goal

Fare media / options

= More passes are needed; look for options to fund more passes (PUD donation
program)

= Would be concerned about eliminating tokens/passes (some people don't use
internet/smartphones)

= Multiple options/flexibility to pay fare are beneficial (e.g., credit card, enable buying
tickets/passes electronically, change machine at transit center)

Fare policies = Consider modifying accompanying child policies

Dis

= Consider programs like the following:

o “Honored Citizens" pass (including Medicare/Medicaid and disabled
veterans),

Low-income; ability to apply for discounted access

Fare capping

Youth pass program (through school districts and charter schools)
Children under 5 or 6 years ride free

count programs

O O 0 O

Pass programs

= Expand employer pass programs (PUD, Cheese Factory, Smoker) where employers
provide bus passes

Cross-county = Fare reciprocity would be beneficial (works with pass but not one-way fare)
connections = Easier to establish on agency-by-agency basis than al! at once
Free fares = Strong interest/support

= Support for mobile ticketing as a convenient option for most riders (as long as other
options are maintained); people are doing this for sports and other events

Technology

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Assoctates Inc. | 2




FARE ANALYSIS PROJECT UPDATE
Tillamook County Transportation District

Existing Conditions Assessment

This analysis reviews existing fare structure and policies for TCTD, as well as summarizes revenue trends,
fare media usage, other regional fare policies and practices, and rider demographics to determine
opportunities for modifications to fare policies and structure. Analysis findings are included in Appendix
A. Select opportunities to improve the fare structure include the following:

Discount policies and age thresholds can be simplified and made consistent across all routes
Inconsistent zone boundaries across services may be confusing for riders

Potential opportunity to better market visitor pass for passengers using transit along the coast
— 3 and 7-Day Visitor passes have low usage compared to Route 5 ridership

Offer more ways to purchase fare products, including online or mobile ticket options

Consider intercounty and additional interagency pass options

Consider potential for fare reciprocity among partner providers

Some peer agencies offer additional pass and discount options

Most local services at peer agencies are a flat fare

Streamlining passenger information can make the fare structure more understandable for riders

Fare Scenario Evaluation

Consumption of transit, like other goods and services, reacts to cost. Significant research over time has
examined the sensitivity of transit ridership to fare increases. In transit, the standard measurement of
sensitivity to fare changes means that for every 10% increase in fares, ridership will decrease by 3% (and
vice-versa).

Fare scenarios combine select concepts that can be compared against one another. These scenarios are
preliminary and intended to test alternative approaches; options in some scenarios will be carried through
to be part of the final recommendations while others may not. Seven initial scenarios for fare structure
and pricing changes are proposed to evaluate potential impacts to TCTD ridership and revenue.

Fare scenarios are listed below and compared to project goals in Figure 2.

Scenario 1 — Focus on Simplicity: Implement Flat Fare

Scenario 2 — Focus on Simplicity: Implement Streamlined Zone Fare
Scenario 3 — Focus on Increasing Ridership

Scenario 4 — Achieve Farebox Recovery Thresholds

Scenario 5 — Focus on Regional Fare Integration

Scenario 6 — [mplement Low-Income Fare Program

Scenario 7 — Implement Mileage-Based Dial-a-Ride Fare

Next Steps

Next steps for the project include the following;:

Analyze fare scenarios

Develop fare structure and policy proposal recommendations
Provide TCTD Board briefing and conduct public outreach
Finalize fare structure and policy proposal

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates inc. | 3

g
9]
/



p | o) Sejemossy Buiinsuog preeBANIUOS|BN

aoue)sip
duy uo paseq uondo slej epiy-e-jei] Juswedw] w | £/
aled apiy-e-|eiq paseg-obeappy Juawsjdu)

weiboid ale} sWooUFMO| Jusws|dw| =
we.tboid ase4 awoouj-mo Juswsajdwy

a|qIses} Juaixa ayy
0] 'saiousbe Jojoauuos MmN J8ylo Je seonoeld
junoosip pue Buioud yim saey 1oL ubly e | S

uonesBau| are4 [euolbay uo snao-

Spjoysaiy

%G PUB ‘%07 ‘%G1 SASIYIE puB AlaAcdsl
X0Gie) asealout o} ainonis asey Ajpopy = | ¥
spjoysady | A19A099Y Xogaie SABIYOY

diysispl 9See.oul 0} 3INJINS 8i8f AIIPOIN
diysiepry Buisealou| uo snooy

saoyjod Junoosip Ublly =

a[gissod asaym Ayljduwis Inq saie) SUOZ URIUIBY =
aleq auoz

pautjweasg juswojdw) :Aoljdwis uo snaoq

A

A

A

sal01jod Junodsip ublly =

soadA} aoiasas ssoloe
aley 1e|) e Bupuewsa|duwi Aq Ayonduns sziseydwy = F
ale4 jeld juswadwiy :Ayaipdung uo snaog

aiej auoz Ajunoa
-u| 0} saAljeuls}je
ajen[eay

Konosal
Xogaie} pue duy Jad
Apisqns abelaae
Buipnjouj ‘soLijew
aouewiopad
ysliqels3

anuanal
aute} Bujouejeq
sliym diysiapu

asealou|

sjeo j0afoig

s1apiroad Jaylo ym
uoneiboju) ssajweas
JUOlIBUIPI00Y

alnyngs
alej aurjweas)s
pue Apdung

10L)SHQ uonepodsues | AJUNos) JooWe) |
31VQdN LD3roYd SISATYNY 34v4d

SOlEUads ale4 pasodoid

Z @unbi4

uoljen|eAd 10§ sOlBUIIG dieq pasodoiy

D]



FARE ANALYSIS PROJECT UPDATE
Tillamook County Transportation District

Appendix A Existing Conditions
Findings

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 5

b4

3



-

. QYYVOAN
. NOST3IN

——c—

_ m_mh__mpi
suonipuod) bunsixg aieq _

——



mo_ﬁm gxmz pue mm:__o:_n_ >mv_ ‘9

..|l. ...:I =~

Y

m::m>mm ale4 v:m n__r_mhm_c_w_ Lm

1 . aldi’
! i o L8 K

sisAjeuy ejeq apiy-v-jeiq ‘v




MIIAAIANO LOAroud




suolepuawwoday Aoljod aJe ©
SOlIBUBOS pUB [9po|\ 8leq dojpna( ©
yoeaqnQ
pue Jspjoysiels pue dliqnd ©
SIsAleuy 610z 2uUe|09] =
AJljod 21ed =
suonipuod Bunsix3 ©
"'Spaau SsJapl Yylim ubije Jenaq
0] suondo pue saioljod ale} a)en|eAd

Lo

01 101 bunsisse pieebAN\UOS|ON -

M3IIAAIAO LO3rod



wn

soroljod aJej pue sale} uo 2l|qnd pue ‘pleoq ‘siojeiado ajeonpI
Bunayjol} ojuoJ}08ie pue ajiqow Buipnjoul ‘elpall aie; Mau a1ojdx]
8INjJonJis aley suoz-i}nw AJUNod-Ul 0} SBABUIS)E 8)en|eA]

Aianoosl
xoqaJe} pue duj Jad Apisqns abeisae Buipnjou) ‘soudw souewlopad ysijgelsy

onusAal ale) Bupueleq ajiym diysispl asea.ou|

Siapinoid Jaylo ypm uoljelBajul Ssajwiess pue uoeuiploon

8injonJis aley suljwesal)s pue Andwig

S$TV09 AQNLS Fuvd



FANLONAULS UV ONILSIX3




P~

(paywi) Aunod yinog ©

(paywi) Ajunod yuoN ©

Auno) jenuan o
aply-e-feiq -

X0/ Pue X09 ‘G 8jnoy ©
sSoIN0yY Al0u81U| .

b pue ‘¢ 'z '} sainoy o
92IAISS B)N0J-PaXI) PO)RIAS(] e

ddALl FJIAUIAS ONILSIXI NO A3SVEa SISATVYNY IV



AN ujooul - oouwe|iL
P 9Inoy ©

yoeag

uouue) - BjlUBZUR|\ - YOoowe||i]
€ 9)NoYy ©

SHEeJON - 9pIsuesad() - yoowe||iL
Z 9IN0oYy ©

doo UMO] Yoouwe||iL
| 9Inoy ©

olgnd |esausab
0} 9|ge|ieA. 8q }SNuW SUONEBIAS(] .

awieljowil} Jo 82UB)SIp UIYLIM
sdo}s pappe J0 SUOHBIABP MOV -

Moouwueipg

SN ON

A\

opPISULVE

Apues

uneneIg

ANYILLHOd 240G

weysen

YIANOONYA

esvoddess
SOUOY IIB

SUI|BH Jes
i

SR/N0Y-P3Xi4 pPIjeIARQ

N <

LTy

2

EiUouIen ~

RS ES

LU %)

S9)JN0J-paxi} pajeina(

SAJIAUAS ONILSIX3



=

Aec-
Ao oyoed inoybnouy) suonjeusap ks 088 Fossgaadly/
wioJj pue o} uolieyiodsued) 9auy sapino.d
(Aluo £ 1deg - gaunr) spanys Ajo oyioed - V/N sz$ ssed JoyisiA Aeg-¢
pa|gesip pue sjuspnis
‘(+09) sJoluag 0} saljdde salej peonpay . 0£$ ors ssed Alyjuop
(s@)noJ }seos walsAg 10joauuo) AAN)
$81jUN0Y ujooulT pue yoowe||l ‘dosie|D ul sAep /08 0514 ssed Aleq
/ 10 ¢ 1o} [8Ael) pajiwljun - ssed Aep JOYSIA » dooTumoj sooweii |
(¥ pue ¢ ‘Z ‘L saInoy) aoinIes o S sau0z 9814
snq Ajunod-ui pajwiun smojje ssed AJYIuopy e ; : ssoloedl] —ysep
L @3noy Jo 8sn Ajiep pajwijun : Sau0z OM]
SMo||e ssed Ajleg dooT umol Moowejji| . Sl B ssotoedu| —ysep

¥ pue 62708 051 3u0zZ suo
€ saInoy 0] saljdde Ajuo ainjonuis paseq-auoy7 i uiypmdu) —yseo

(Aunoo ,
[eljus)) 8uoz auo Ul 8jelado g pue | S8jnoy oled paonpoy | eaeg(ing

FANLONYLS V4 LNOA-AIAXId AILVIAIA



oL

9puUOY puels) - wales
X0/ @noy °

wajes - AJID ujooul
X09 dInoy ©

puejuod

-)Ooouwe||l] Jaul|}seo?)
G 9IN0Yy ©

Hede sa|iw +| Ajjeisuab
sdojs pajiwi| Yjim 91n0J paxi- e

%

Biaymal
R i Y
—
Zoyap Addep oBepa HEr A
e
Moo
R .I\J.\c\ﬂ\\l
i s by -
i b r// ok 01D A0S 1\“
Rl i)Y
Sy Sute)g
sauoz siey === L
- ta _.....9\?_...(
xoL a HIANOINEA. SHu :ml{.\/.“r\ll\\\f\ll
xoo i | -

s
saInoy-paxid PAIEIAST [

sajnod Ajouajuj

S3JIAUIS ONILSIX3



LL

VIN
VLOMN © V/N
X09 93N0Y UO SOZIpISqns aqLiL Zjo|iS ©
X0Z pue X09 S93noy e
uo sdii $8ZIpISgNs aqll| SpUOY apuelc) ©
G 8}N0Y UO PUEIO4 PUE Suleld YHON/Sueq .
usamaq sduy S8ZIpISgNS UON}OBUUOYT) SPIY © 05°2$
:8pN|oUl Saley) pazipISqNs |BUOIHPPY e =
X09
10 G S9JN0Y UO WI|ES JO PUB[LO4 WO} }ISEOD 0518
8y} 0} duj punol BUO SMO||Y — ssed Aep IOJISIA «
Ajuo X0/ pue x09 sa1noy o) saiidde 200

21NjoNnJ}s ale4 "IopLod wees-A110) ujoour
Buole seale/seN10 UleW 9aly] U0 pase( Seuoy7 .

0e$

GZ$

0c$

GL$

93

€$

05°1$

ssed Jolisip Ae-2

ssed JONsIA Aeg-¢

duy-punos Xad

Aem-auo Xad

S9U0Z 9a.4)
ssotoe dil] — ysen

Sauoz om}
ssoreduj —ysen

aU0Z suUo
uiypmdu | —ysep

FANLIONAULS FAVd ALIDHALNI



¢l

auI7 Ajunon
UjooUlT] O} peoy a)e] pues
A uno9 yjnog :¢ auozo

(Ipleques
JO "S) JUI0d B||IAUOSqOH
0} sul] Ayjuno) dosie|n
Ajuno9 yuop :z suozo

(MoojweH Jo

'N) peoy ayeT pues o} (Ipjeques

JO "G) JUIOd B||IAUOSqOH
Ayunoy jenuan ;| suoz o

puewsap-uo Jo uopduosgnsg .
SOUBADE Ul POINPAYDS PUR PBAISSOY

uoljepodsuel) gino-0)-qiny «

WIvs

JBZIeN

UINgGPOaAA

DAL

Baagman

FREE -0

ANVIIHOd CICGSHIH

HIANOINYA i

sscoddens

LTTLIETE Y

pUEBIPOOW,

50

Ajuno9 yinog

b

HOOWIG|IL

fAunogjenuan

|
)

Auno) ypioN

9pry-e-jeiq

S3AJIAUIS ONILSIX3



El

S1S00 (191 48A02 0} pasIngulisl/paloBliuod
aJle sdiy Jsnamoy ‘sisbuassed a|qibie Joj
98l] aJe sduy sapiy MN pue spuey Buidjsy

sjuswiulodde

[edIpaw paianod (YHO) Aloyiny yijesH
uobaiQ J1ey} wouj pue o) Buijaaei) siequiswi
0D0dD 01 sapu uoleuodsuel) ssbuelie
dLOoL (0002dD) 0DD 2uioed BIqWN[O)D
8y} 1o} ebeusyoiq (L INTIN) uoneuodsued
|eoipaw Aousbiswe-uou apirold sepry AN

Aeg oouwej|i}
Jo Jod ay} e Ayjioey spue buidjeH ayj pue
JYoouwel|lL ulJeuad lsuel) sy} ussmiaq sdu

9INYs 10} LDl sesinquwial spueH BuidiaH «

41

0c$ 0v$ ssed yosung Q_ﬂ.wnw
YN 03 poieyog opopaded]
/N pPajoeRLU0D SY \mncmww%w__ a\_,wu
Y/N 05°¢21$ auoz-ginwi ysen

Z$ 7% BU0Z dUO ysen

FANLONAULS FdV4 IAN-V-IVId



123

%€E¢E WNnoasiq %€EE UN0osIq
duy punol xad
oL$ 0z$
05°.$ SL$ Aem-8Uo0 X(Jd @seg

(g @3noy) sajynoy Ajiosiaju|

SLNNOOSIa

9]ge} 8y} Ul saunby oy} uey)

JoMo| UaAe g ued sialdiynw 8y} ‘S8ijUNoD 831y} JO
om] ssoloe sdu} Joj piiea ale sassed I0)ISIA asneoag ©

aJe} duj punos 0z$ G 8Inoy pue ssed

8Uj} JO 1S0D BY} UDDMIS] 9OUSIBYIP Y] SI 8Jeys ale} 81nol
-paxij pajeinap oy} jey) swnsse sialjdnnw ssed I0)ISIA o

aJej oseq sk sdin

auoz auo Buisn pajenojes ale pamoys staldinuwi AlYjuop -

VIN 279 1oidninpy
ssed JOJISIA Aed-/
V/N 0L$ = 02$ - 0£$
YIN £'¢ Jandnpy
. ssed JONSIA AeQg-¢
Y/IN G$ = 02$ - Sz$
070 J81dninN 2792 sendnniy
ssed Ajujuopy
0g$ ovs$
5.°0% 05°L$ ale aseg

S9)N0oY-pPaxi4 pajeinaqg

ANV SAa3AINNdILTNIN SSVYd



unpe aig} i} e yym Buljae) Uy

}S00 ssed Ajyjuow JJo 01 $ aA1eda sanljigesip Yyum ajdoad pue ‘sjuspnis ‘siolusg

90INIBS
Spld-e-leig pue X0./X09 S8INoy uo alej jjey aAiedalsapljigesip Yiim ajdoad pue (+09) sioluag

(X0Z pue X09) senoJ Ajioseiul ©
ale} ¥, (sieah g1-9) yinop
G pue ‘¢ ‘g ‘| seinoy o
9ie} 7, L(steah ||-G) uaip|iyd
siesh -0 sejealpul (G-1 $81N0J) 8INY20Ig POUIqUIOD U Aoualsisuoou| o
s8)nol ||y ©

ole} 7, PIIYD [euolippy ©
9all pliyd1sii4 ©

«(s1e9h G-0) pIIUD
sadA} a3IAI8S SSOUOE Sallep

S31J0IM0d LNNOJSIda

[



! 6 5aNN0

1SIMHLHON HLYON

(6530t Y10 Yy paddinbe

83 Aol uoyuauw 3 pip ek o)
|3 10 BUUOIMU MMM
"0 dug Jnoh uoyg

"SJOLD 0} DUOJSY LOLJ JSD0D Husds
81 UMop puD dn siajsuoy aai) payiun
Uk sassd Aop wakas pup aaiy) ajgopIoyy
"SI PuD A0S ‘PUBj0g Lol sasng
duy punol Ayop Suny Joppauuio) gy au]

M

Yseo Ylim sasng uo s|ge|jieae Ajuo sassed I0JISIA
YOOWE||LL ulieang pig

009€ 1e Pajed0| 8210 yojedsip @11 8y} le 1o sesnq
9y uo Apposuip paseyaind aq ueo sassed AJYjuopy

suolea0| Buijjas pauwi

NOILLNARILSIA SSvd



Lt

D> =0T o2<¢ OO
i |, S

femmmpn gt YU P et e sy spmmen

Dxglepssy X sy
SROMARTIT RO TR, AL SRR TN, e ¥ G sveg e 8y
oary, -

a .:. mﬂ.}ﬂ?!ﬁnuﬁiﬂ
fgsnbaﬁﬁagnﬂl .Iﬂk-iu— o 2] =
Prirapinii iy

PRSI oo e v o 2 v

o s 1) ey e e -

Rty ol o st et o oo

Ay PTI) B DRCRN]OM K L g e

q..ﬁdusﬂwﬁivu*.;iﬁt TR I 1£525) AT 92 16 1T

ot e Aergu FETTU 73 1 £ @f £ IR ST
o emedug g W g B e e Sl e -

ory Dy e
il TN T G C9EM 2 W 2 ey

ayur sapis

dooT umo|
Joouwe|j]

L 3LNOY

ey e ——:
B\ =

ubisep |eusieW
pue uoNedIuNWWOD JSISBd 0] pes|
ueo ainjonuys alej Bululjweans .

uoisnjuo9o Jabusssed
0} pes| ued yoiym ‘paulep Aueso
JOU 8Je SaJN0l [|e o} salepunoyg .

8)NnoJ Yyoes 0} sale} a|gesljdde
puelsiapun 0} sisbusassed
Joj Buisnjuoo aq uen o
9UO paulquiod e
ul a|gejieae Ajuo siayio ‘einyoouq
duojepue]s e aABY S9IN0J SWOS -

uoisnjuod aonpa. o} Ajluniioddo jjesang

STVIMIALVIN d3ON3ISSVYd

YOLITHNODMUL



8l

(inpe aie} |0} & Uiim Buliaaes) uaymn)
aseq Z/L . Yoowejjiy/pueiiod
a1ed zfl 01AIBS sng AunoD-u|

pjo S1EdA L1-G
alej Z/L UJpIyD jeuonippy
PIYO 1sii4

ynpe Buihed yum pio siesk p-0

‘seied PIyYD
000Z$ duj punoy
00'g1$ Aep au0

‘puepiogpoowe)iL

051$ 8sM) pauwiun Aeq iy

:dooj umoy yoowejji ]

(sury fiunod ujoaun 1e speis)

Ay ujooui suoz

(su Aunog dosiel) 1e sueig)

yoesag uouue) auoz

aur AJUnoY UjoduUrT O P 9YET pues f BUoZ

{1piequeg Jo 'g) uiod

aAUOSQoH 0} aur Ano) dosieln z suoz
(o0jWaH jo 'N) peoy a%e pues o}

(IplegueD jO *Q) IO DI|IAUOSGOH | BUoZ

05°1$ (Aem suoyauoz 1ad) :seie4 Aunoo-u|

saJe)

G - L 93noy

Ajuo g1 @qUL FPUCY PURID GIIM S8 BDI - XOL
QI [BQUL TSNS 10 SPUOY PURID YIM 9911 OPU - XD

wEdzi SGRYPGESIO YIM SUOSIaG
#(+09) 10wg

A81-9) winox

AS0) PR revompPY

a9l {5-0) PUUYD 15114
Seseq peonpoy

QIR] JORXD JOf A0 YySED 38208 RISALG

Q0'9% SOUOZ §
0TS SQU0Z g
5'is SU0Z L

SIUVL SNA XOL + X09

X0.L/X09 23noy

284z (11-G) uappyo
SIEE (5-0) PUYD teuonIPPY
9314 (5-0) PO 18114

saied piYyo

05°L$ as( pajiwgun Aegq IIv
ssegq Aeq doo umoy,

SaYv4
I @)noy

uoisnyuo? Jjebusssed
PIOAE UBD S3IAISS SSOIOB SJUNOISIP
Jus)sisuod Bupjew pue BulApdwisg «

("01@ ‘ynoA ‘p|iyo |euonippe ‘piiyo) Aldde
SJUNOJSIp uaym siabuassed 1oy} Joises
8Q Ued JI ‘'sainyooiq |enpinipul buiney Ag «

sjeLajew
SS0JOE. SJUNOJSIP 18y deId UaJp|Iyo
ut Aouajsisuoo arosdwi o) AylunuoddQ .

SJUNOISIP YINoA pue ualipjiyo :ajdwexs

STVIRIALVIN 439N3ASSVd



MIAIATY UV ¥33d TYNOIDIY




4

alel el JuaLINd
9y} 0} 8INJONJIS BB} POSBJ-2UO0Z B WO} PaUOolISUE.] Auaoay

(G 14 Q191 019|qeiedwod aie) puefiod G1$) puejuod g Aluno)
BIqWIN|OD 0} O SN PuUe (euo)sy ‘episeas) Ajuno) dos)e|D sanIes

a1 1 o} Jejiwis saiey Alois)ul paseq auoz
Jisuel| easy
uojuag yum diysiauped ul pajesado ssaidxg Asjep 011se0D) .
S9}n0J AJ0J8}U1 1IN0} ‘sdo0o| 81N0J [BOO] OM |

salepunog AJunod Aq pauluLIe}sp ale Sauoy7
awles ayj paoud |je ‘seinol 1no4

181 ateyisaybiy o} o|qeslidde Ajuo aie) paonpay
S8U0Z 8Jej} INoj Ojul papIAIp (HodmaN-Aueq|y) 81not Ajlnla)ul
SHWI} AJUNOD UIYyNIM S| B1N0J [B20T]
usuel] Ajunon
ujooul] yum diysisuped ul psjesado ssaldx Asjjep 011Se0D .
a)noJ Aj10193ut SUO pue [BO0] BUO djelad(

suoleAIBSqO

(Ayunoo-40-1n0)

00°G1$ 0100°6$
poseq-auoz

000L$0100°L$
paseg-auoz

00°'L$
9jey jeld

00°L$
oey 1eld

PadNpay 00°¢ 1000°L$

00'€$10002%
paseg-auoz

P3oNpPay 00°L$

000L$0100°L$
paseg-auoz

ase4 Aloa9)u)

VIN

paoNpay G 0%

G.0%
ajey el

aled (€207

\ ﬂ‘l..,u
L

pusIg
uoneuodsued |
alldw3asung

Hsuels |
Ayuno9 ujoour

Japry Ayjunon
eiquinjo)

lisuel |
esly uojuag

selouaby Jaupied YOLIINNOD MN
FANLINAULS V4



1

sAep / 40} 0£$ pue sAep ¢ 10} G4 ale sossed J0)ISI/ 10}08UU0D MN

881} 9pU Z1-Y sepelb ul syuapnig

Spjoyasnoy awodul

-MO| pue Alejijiw ‘sanijigesip yym ajdoad ‘syuapnis abajjoo
‘(+09) sioluas 0} Ajdde sessed pue saie] pajunoosic

991} |oARI} JapUN pUe G uaipjiyd

‘sjeusjew Jabusssed ul papiaoid
Jjou suwi| sbe o1j10adg "aWooUI-MO| PUB SUBISJSA ‘SIUSPNIS
‘saijijigesip yjm sjdoad ‘sioiusas 10§ Saie) pajunoosi(

sshljigesip yim ajdoad pue (g Japun)
yinoA ‘(+09) siouag :ssaidxg AsjjeA 011Se0D .
G/ sioluas
10} 931} ‘S1epljoH pieD |iel | uobaig/aiedipay
‘'saniigesip yim sjdoad ‘(+59) SIoluag :sSoldXF 66 -
921/u8s Allols)ul SA [e00] U0 A21jod JUNOJSIP JUB)SISUOOY|

Aoijodiunoasiqg

SSed JOUSIA
J0}08UUO0D AAN UL
papn[oul s1821AI8S SIY |

2.ie] paonpal oN

LSSed JOUSIA
J0}oBuu0D AN Ul
papn|oul S1adIAI8s SIY |
(0z1$) ssed Ajyyuopy

(SSed Io)SIA
JO}O3UUOD AN UL
papn[oul s 82IAI8S SIY |
(091$) ssed

18INWWIOD 9PIY-0Z

sassed Aj10a03u]

(0z$) ssed
Alyiuoy peonpay -
(0g$) ssed Ajpuopy
(e$) keq -

(0£$) s1998 3 Ing 8pu-0f

VIN

(8L$) ssed Ajuyuop

sossed (8901

puisig
uonepodsuel |
alidw3 jasung

Jisuel |
Ajuno ujosur

1apry Aljuno)
Blquin|od

Jsuel |
ealy uojuag

salousby Jaulied YOLOINNOD MN
SLNNOOSIA ANV SaASSVd



o

™

L0

siabuassed awooUI-MO| 10} JUNOJSIP Y ©

sonoJ Ayoasyul o) ssed Alyuow y ©

(-1 seINoyY) seoIAIas |e00| o) alel el Y ©
:Jjouopejuswa|dwi sy}l alojdxa p|nod Lol -

}s09 duy Jad 1ebuassed aonpal 0] s19)91] YN
pue sassed Ajyjuow Jayo Jspry AJUno) eiquinjo) pue Jisuel] Baly uojuag ul Sajnods Ajoiaju| .

+G/ SIOIUSS 0} 92IAISS 93l SI9JJ0 JISURI| BaIy UOJUSYg
SI9PH SWODUI-MO| 0] SJUNOISIP JBY0 Joply AJuno) eiquinjo) pue aiidwg }Jasung «

uofjdeoxa ue s| Jisuel] ealy uojusg ©
Aousbe yoes Aq pepiroid seolaes |[e SSOJoe JUS)SISUOD Ajjeleusb aie sa1oijod Junoosiq -

9lej Jejj a1e S80INISS [BD0| }SOW PUB ‘PASE]-aU0Z S| 90IAISS AJIDIS)UI JSO o

SONIANId A3IM M3IA3Y 34V4 ¥33d TYNOIOD3Y



SISATVNY Vivdad didl (INV10923) 3aiy-v-Ivia




PEE@msﬁnm:w%_ﬂm@mwmw__._m..“mwmm_ﬂum%m;wu 10 Apousiul dLOL Jusseldes saul pay ‘Usalb Uiu MOYS 81 S3U0Z 814 ‘0Z0Z-8L0Z

1ano>ee m Jed sdiy suow Jo Z Jo abeiene ‘sdiy spueH BuidjsH 10 SepRIMN BUIpnioul Jou ‘epid-y-Bid Jo susepned diy

LA
o/o.\ .
..I,)mPH

% e

L]

o9piy-v-leld
. Ou_. SO C Eusds al mh. _® —UO L *SU0II3]3S Y31m s10jd/dew 31epdn 03 ,SI31}14 SIND3XT, SSa1d UBYY PUE SUOINII)S xeW 35EI}d
0] pash aq ||IM ele(] » "S30(\ISS Sopi

MN pue 3pRi-y-1eld @131 d3euel 0} pasn si W1SAS 3 | "0Z0Z-8T0T 10§ WaisAs 2Uej033 0101 Wioly si ejeq

+

w3 wouRn g L

W 0
(Mo} wparmriren ol md) yeom o Sy A TP UIN

NinoA ibjsumsi imjn3eg ionss pagaNG

UMOUNLN WIUM RUORERITANAEITOR

Fuddous TIBUENG [AU0TAY YNESH INuar] (K3IpaN

fauna) yocumel wnos

Aune) qocwRp L nass) Awee) yoousg Yoy

fauno) yoouimy L Ginog

furod yoouimy L mauss Aunos yoolueis suon

frpuns Avpimes

duguy Ampuny: Sepssupany Argseny Avpuoyt
PopaIUy NBuR Jo 5A6g

I9Q-TT AGR-TT ROgT 550 Wrwgo

WIr-o unrg) And-50 Jdvesn JeiE0 98470 MO

PopRi sjzuan

OIBC EFOC 2700

HEEEI L Ye ]

ejep 0Z0zZ pue 610z UNM j00] sisAjeuy ejeq auejoos3 pajepdn
qQi¥vOogHSVYA VY1vd INV1023



Ge

pusEa |-
fuoezap) | e
adAl A=Q

6L-AINOD
-a1d puaJ buisealoul

‘Aep Jad sduy +Qp -

POy 2
b1 -
> LA
s g
- e
a..llon‘w...!..
rl‘lh’ﬁﬁu A
‘Il_l\ (‘
e sa w 0
s

"020Z-8102 ‘spueH BuidisH Jo sspRMN Bulpnjoul jou ‘epiy-v-eid 40} eed

B
5 " P 4 s A & 4 PR TR T O T VR T A
A F S S S E Y S LD EIE I PE LPELSLEEE:LELESS
& & a&w F & v & F 5 §F & § F & §F & &F & F &F o oF F F & & a&
& & 5 F s & & T HFE P F 55 T ¥ £ § &£ 5 E P =
PR . ) ' . B . 4 . ' ) T . f " . B . 4 ' » ) ] .
-0
B e o | vy ) | ) o, e e o e e v drs Y :
-
s '
.
= L 0z
- W - . )
. L L - - m-
. Y L » - . L] - L] Py L] - :N.
L e " o - . » - Io o r i s O Fe
b N se® s - - ** an o TR L u-o - Sy ® s ® <
N - '. .. - L] - v - .B - - w . ‘I - ll .t“ o it . Ll .I ™ 'I'd > - e - l’J*
, - . & » - & L L . -w ‘. . " .l ‘~ ‘. - - = - m-
A e B R R M S T S T T T -or 2
[ T 4 al. o e L & B - hﬂ.o & sn o - g inn b B =1
. s gy et * . 2 s T - L - - an * " > e { 1 " 1 ©
" wo ‘R R L e ) el - ® s p - ~ o
> - -'I » L 4 - .. - e -e " - - - - ‘“ . - @ L m
h e ST i L I M - (e . Rl s et | & 23
s % - we'l - “«w » » . 1 =)
. . - e - LN ] =
» b - L . 4+ - - ‘0 - . - o '.
. Me'e " . * . . . L
™ »“eee [
. % " - s . " s -G8
- -. - - - - -
- - .
. L - . > .
" - - . .
.
- L]

uonosies ul sdul # Alleg

0202-810z ‘sdu] Ajreq
IAN-V-1Via



[l

o

sesodind |esipaw Joy
8Je sduy JO pJiy} e JanQD

(1371021

200’9
)

(M

'0Z02-8102 ‘spueH BuidisH 10 seprypN Buipnioul jou ‘epry-v-leid Jo) ejeq

uonosias u| sduy jo ¢
o'y

- T

- [PUDIESDBYEDOS
- @esH ey

- Buddoug

B

~SSEUETE FeRIEg

- SEDE

(uonosjes uy) asoding duy Aq sdu) Jo uonnguisig

0202-810z ‘sdia] Apeq
AAIN-V-1via

asoding dul



LE

(s2gw) aoueisQ Ay
o

S9[lw 0¢
-0 Buipnjoul ‘sduy Jabuoj
Yyonw SaAJas SaPIY MN

(suoz auey 9|buls e uIYLIM
lle Ajeau) abuel ajiw
01-G 8y} ul ajeys |[ews

B Y}IM ‘SS9| 10 SO|lW G

ale sduy apiy-v-|eiq 1SoN

Ajuo sspryMN

sauB)s|Q dy. Jo vopnainelg

H

4
]
FEEAIETE 0 %

(satw) asuersig dul

[ i
" H

spueH Buidjal 10
SapryMN Buipnjauy
Jou ‘apry-y-teiq

SUGIBAISSAQ JO %

saoue]siq dul Jo uopnguisia

0202-8L02Z ‘sadouelsiq sdia]
AdiN-V-1vIa



(sduy spimAlunoD

poddns 0} paubisep

JOU aJe aInonls

3lej pue 99IAISS JUaLND)

Ajunoo yuoN-jenua)n

Ajsow ‘sauoz alej SsS0uD
sdu} Jo aJeys ||[ews vy «

Aluno)) yoouwe|i|
ULION UIUIM BiE %G| -

Ajunod yoouwe|l| |eusD
Ulylim ai1e sduy Jo %G/ »

{t%s°0) 'sdui 5zt

oL

,_

- o T o LY
ki (w00} durs.
nousl

(Gkre) ‘sdivarz)

spuey Buidjay 10
SOPRIMN Buipnjou)
jou ‘epni-v-leig

bl

2U0Z WOl

#%w av%o
W
h% b%
%D nbo
¢ ¢

- Bmos yoowem | ERue)

- 000 RO0WEE | WoN

aloz al

[(%0'0) "3din 9! (x50} sdui 1] - oy yooureg g

auoz Aq xuren uoheunsag-ubuc

SOPIYMN Buipnjoul JoN — 0202-810Z ‘XIe|y uonjeunsag-ulbLQ

AdR™-V-1via



62

Ajuno) yuoN pue Ajunon
Ylnos usamiaq aie 9%,Q< ©

Ayunog yinos uiyum aie o,e~ ©
Ajunoo yinog pue

YLION U2emiaq ale 9,GzZ < ©
Aluno9 yoowe||i|

ULION Uulylim ale 9,01 ©

Aluno)
Moouwe||lL |edjusd uiyim
aJe sdu} SepIYAAN JO %06 < ©

seuoz
9.le} ssoJoe sulsyed puewap
[oAB1) 8)eoipul SAI] SBPIYAAN -

FUOT WOid

[(%zy) wdurois) i) ' ke’ oy weoutm i)
e |
= ey i | (ison) scin s [{50) ‘s 2257 sy e
wre
sl g
[loeL2) aduizze} %zr) .-a:-olom ] - ooy TouT NG
Ajuo sappymN

3uoz Aq xuie uopeulsaQ-UIBUG

fe=mil orzcnen o

SSPIYMN - 0202-8L0Z ‘XLl uoljeunseq-ulbLQ

SAAIMMN

L'l

=unz af



ANNIATYE FAVd ANV dIHSY3AIY




LE

(0Z0Z UnM = 6L0Z INT) 61.0T 189 A [29SI4 O} SpUOdsa.1I0D elEp Ajoial]
61.0C Jeak 1epusied 0} spuodsaliod apiy B [el] PUB S8IN0. PaXly PaleIns(d,

0%
000'05$
AleAnoadsal anuanal
aJe} pue diysiapu JO 9, /7 pue w
%/ | 10} JUNO2oE Sa1N0J A10J8)JU] - 0000018
anuaAal aJey Jo %0G g
Auesu sey spu-e-jeip ‘diysiepu jo 8 oovosts
%€ AJuo 104 Buiyunoooe aydsa(] « 2
S92IAI9S 9IN0J-PaxI) N
palelAnap WOl SBUW0D 9NUSASl
alej Jo 9,6z Alerewixoidde
pue diysispu €10} JO %0/ - oonoszs -

apiy-e-elq

oNUOASY ated = diysiapiym

Ao

8Ino.-pexy peeirag

.ﬁM‘.

0
000'0Z
000'0¥
>
=
>
e
8
. =
000'09 =
(%]
~
2
)
000'08
000001
000024

dAL FJIAHUIS A8 INNIATY JUV4 ANV dIHSYIAIN



2t

"0

aled paonpoym  aled (N4 m

(61L02) diysispry fenuuy
000°05 000'0¥ 000'0¢ 00002 000'0L 0

Aunoo uiyum dug — ysen

$91JUNOD oM} sS0I0E ditf — ysen

SIJUN0D 934y} ssoloe dif — ysen

J[.u

2
Q \A o\o%—\ f_”_._>> ssed Ajleg doo umo] yoowelj | 8
IXau si ssed Ajyyuow Jejnbal ay)
pue ‘diysiapul JO %/ Ylm Smojjo}
ssed Ajyuop
dooT umol yoouwejji| Jejnbay «
diysiapu Jo jjey Alesu sesuduwod i em%ggﬂ ssed Jousi Req-L/

ssed Ajyiuow paonpay .

S31LNO0Y a@3aXId GALVIAIA - 3dAL AUV A9 JdIHSY3AIN



ge

aleq peonpeym aled|nd @

(6L02) snuanay aled fenuuy

000°'0%$ 000°'0¢$ 000°02$ 000'0L$ $

(o]

Aunos uiypm duy — ysen

$91UN0J oM} ssoloe duj — ysen

$81JuNoY aIy} ssoloe du| — ysen

adAy aie4

ssed Ajireq doo umo] yoouwe|r |

anuaAal ale)

10 %,0¢ Al@1ewixoidde Jojjunoooe
sale) Ajunoo-iayul senbay .

ssed Alyjuopy

i[lll

Y/N 81e] painpay|

saiej jejnbal wouy e seg s Ko
S9WO02 BNUBA3I JO %G/ INOQY

S3LNOY aaXI4d @ALVIAIA - I3dAL FUVHd AE SNNIATY JuVL



ve

ale} Jjejnbal
S| diysiapll [e}0} Y} JO %G/ «

(G e1noy)
Aem-suo X(Qd ul sejenusouod
diysiapu [ejo] 8y} JO %,GZISOW|Y »

ale paonpaym aled|n{ =

(6102) diysiepty fenuuy
000/ 000'9 000°S 000’V 000t

o

000¢C 000°t

JIIIL

¥/ 8le4 paonpay

/N @ie4 paonpsy

din-punos xad

-

suoz auo uypm diif — ysen

S8U0Z O M} SSO0J08 dLij — Yyse)

$OU0Z 99y} ssoloe di| — ysen

Aem-auo xqd

adA) aie4

SU0Z U0 UOI|OBULOY) 8pIY

S9UOZ OM} UODBULOD) B3PIy

ssed JOUSIA AB Q- 2/

1equ L

S3LNOY ALIDYUILNI - 3dAL UV A9 dIHSY3AIN



%01 Ajrewixoidde
J0J JUNODJB SBU0Z 98JY] pue oMm]
SsoJoe sduy Jo) sale) paonpay

oanusAal

8le} [B10} JO %G| PAUIqIOD

e Y}IM MOJ|O} SeU0Z 831y) pue
oM} ssoJoe sduy Joj salej Jenboy .

(G ®1noy) dul-punou
pue Aem-auo xqd WoJlj Sawoo
9NuUsA8l 8.} BU} JO 9,0/ 1SOW|Y «

12

ale4 peonpaym eIeH (N4 ®

(6102) enuanay a1e4 enuuy

000'05$ 000°0v% 000'0€$ 000'02% 000'01L$ 0%

000'0.% 000'09%

8U0Z Juo uypm duy — ysen

sauozZom) ssouoe duyp — ysed

S9U0Z 934y} SS040E duj ~ ysed

Aem-2u0 Xad

dui-punos Xad

adA] aue

2UOZ BUO UOJIOBUUDD) Jp(y

S9UOZ OM] UOIIIRUUOY) 9pIYy

N

ale. 2 OMNPS;
N &R P nm ssed JoysIa AeQ-//e

. S1500 Bupessdo X02/X09 SIN0Y J0) |(LDL 9SINGUILL Saglil ZIBIIS PUB SpuUCY opuels) fequy

ALIDYUILNI - SdAL FHV4 A9 INNIATY FJuVv4



o€

G PUE {7 'C ‘Z ‘| S8IN0Y AJUO SpNjou| S)Nsay “Aanins pIeog-uQ $LOZ :82IN0g

adA} srey

aley AJUnoo
uondIsuuOo) 8piy SSBd JOUSIA pied ai 004l are4 doojumo] Aeq |y aled Xad -ut (apry 8buis) Aep suQ ssed Ajyjuon

=== I %0
%0L
%Sl
%0¢
%Gc

%0€

G-1 s8Inoy ul pasn adA} aue} jo usoIad

%GE
YaD¥

%S

4SSN AdAL JAV4



LE
02-61 Ad 01 91-5L Ad spoday SIA ALOL :82n0g

‘6102 AInr ul
pasealoul alam sale) apiy-v-ieiq

(0202 aunr — 6102 AINr st 0202
B 9) s1eah |eosy Jussaldal siesp

'810C ‘/¢ go4 uo

pejuswas|dwi Sem auej0og 81048q
senusnal SepryAN S1etedos
Aliny 03} Ayiqeur syoe|jel 6102

03 Joud eiep apry-y-jeiq 80N

0c0Z= €l0ca gL0cw /L0Z= 9L0Z®m GLOZm
appg-e-elq Anoseyuf paxi peleineq
- - $o

. - - -_ -- %01
%0Z
@
jo
(e}
>
bl
%0E 3
&
<
Y
oy
%0¥ o

%06

%09

OlLVY ANIA0IIY XOog3uvd



8€g

g

02-6L A4 01 91-G1 A4 sHoday SIW ALOL :92n0S

‘6102 AInr ul
pasea.oul alam saue] apiy-y-ielg

"(0Z0z aunr — 610z AN st 0202
““6°9) sieaA |eosyy Jussaidal siesA

‘8102 /¢ 984 uo

pajuswajdwi sem auejoo] a10jeq
senuanal SepIYAN eleledos
Aliny 03 Ajnigeul syos|jel 6102

0} Jold ejep apiy-y-feiq 90N

020Z® 6l0Z®™ 8L0Z® /L0Z= 9L0Z® GiLOgm
apid-e-feiq Ayosouy pexi4 pajemnaq

000%
— : 000L$
P 00'SL$
00°02%

00'52$

duj Jad 1800 Bunesedp Bay

000€$
00'se$

00°0¥$

didl ¥3dd LSOO ONILVYIdO ADVIINVY



6E
02-6L Ad 01 91-G1L Ad sHodey SIAI ALD] 8210

‘6102 Aine
Ul pasealoul alom sale} apiy-v-lelq

(0202 8unr — 6102 AINr st 0202
“"B-o) sieah |eos|y Juasaidal sieo)

8102 '/Z 994 uo psjuswa|du

SeM 8uUej02g 810joq SapPIYAMN
9)jeledas A|In} 01 Ajjigeul s1o9|ie.l
610¢ 0} JoLd ejep spry-y-feiq :9loN

T

0Z0Z# GLOCH 8L0Z® /L0ZB 9LOZE SLOZ®
oprd-e-feiq Ayoseqy| pexi4 pejeinaq

: 0%
EmTEE

_ 0oes

: = 00¥$

. 009%

00'8%

du] Jad pred aleq By

000L$
00Cig

00pLS

didl ¥3d AlVd J4V4d FOVIHIAY



o
02-6L Ad 0} 91-G| Ad sHodey SIA ALDL :@2nog
0c0cm gL0CH glocm /i0cm 9L0Zm GlOcH
apiy-e-e1q Ayseyyl paxi4 pajeineq
‘6102 AInr ul 0008
pOsealoul 81oMm SaJe) apiy-y-elq
1 = 00'6$
"(020z aunr — 6102 AINP st 0202
“B'9) sieaA |eosly Juasaldal siea . - 000L$
z
'810¢ ‘/Z 984 uo o0sis €
pajuswaldwl Sem aue|j09] 240J8(q &
SanusAal SOpPIYAMAN Sleledss 00028 3
Alng 0y Ayjigeur syos|jel 6102 )
0} Joud ejep aply-y-jeiq :8joN 00528
000c$

00'5€$

didl d3d AQISENS A9VIIAVY



Sd3lS LXIN ANV SONIANId AIM




A

B0

salJe)
3y} Jo Bulpuelsispun Jayag e apinoid ued uonewuojul Jobuassed bululjweans

stapinoid Jauped Buowe Ajooidioal aley Joj) [enjuajod JepIsSuo))
suondo ssed Aousbelssjul [euonippe pue AJunodisjul JOPISU0))

suondo
18321} 9]Iqow Jo auljuo Bulpnoul ‘syonpoud aJej aseyoind 0} sAkem alow JalQ
diysispu G ainoy 0} pasedwod abesn mo| aaey sassed Jojisip Ae-/ pue ¢ ©

1seo0d ay) buoje
Jisuels} buisn siebusssed 1o} ssed JojisIA J@yJew Janaq o1 Allunuoddo |enusjod

sJopl Joj Buisnjuod aq Aew s891AI9S SSOIOE SOLIEPUNO(J BUOZ JUS]ISISUODU|

S@)N0J ||e sSsoioe
JUS)SISUOD apew pue palidwis aq ued spjoysalyl abe pue saidijod Junooasi(]

AJIT0d 38V ANINTIAVIAYLS Ol SIALLINNLAOAAO



eV

|lesodoud Aoijod

pue ainjonJ)s aJej azijeui4
Bulieay oignd

pue Buiyelqg pleog 1onpuo)

SuOofjepuUSIWODD.
lesodoud Aoijod
pue ainjonJis ale) dojers(

SOlIBUSDS ale) azAjeuy

SdalS LX3IN



G _'F?\‘.

’Z
0
wn
—
w
Z

N




Regular Meeting 9/17/2020
Tillamook County Transportation District T
Board of Directors Regular Monthly Meeting
Thursday, September 17, 2020 — 6:00PM
Transportation Building
3600 Third Street, Tillamook, OR
Meeting Minutes

1. Call to Order: Board Chair James Huffman called the meeting to order at 6:04pm
2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call:
Present
TCTD Board of Directors (all Directors attended by telephone)
Jim Huffman, Board Chair
Marty Holm, Vice Chair
Gary Hanenkrat, Treasurer
Jackie Edwards, Director
Melissa Carlson-Swanson, Director
Linda Adler, Secretary

TCTD Staff

Doug Pilant, General Manager (in person)
Brent Olson, Superintendent (in person)
Tabatha Welch, Finance Supervisor (in person)

Absent
Judy Riggs, Director
Cathy Bond, NW Rides Brokerage Manager/Board Clerk

Guest

Arla Miller, ODOT Regional Transit Coordinator
Kathy Kleczek, NW Transportation Options
Chris Kell — Public at Large

4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda: None
5. Public & Guest Comments: Kathy Kleczek mentioned the Get There Oregon
challenge Oct 5-18™ encourages participation to earn points and prizes.

Getthereoregon.com. Board Chair Huffman encouraged promotion of her program.

6. Executives Session: None

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

1 %f;)



7.

w

Regular Meeting 9/17/2020

REPORTS

Financial Report: GM Doug Pilant reviewed the August 2020 financial reports. The
District has completed 16% of the Fiscal Year. Director Holm requested information
about the status of Mass Transit payroll tax and Director Adler asked about
professional services being at 41%.

Service Measure Performance Report: GM Doug Pilant provided an overview of the
operations performance measures. YTD Ridership overall has decreased -34.9%
change over the previous year. The YTD passengers per hour are -29.0%; the cost
per trip was +55.5% while the cost per hour was +12.1% and the fare box recovery
was -43.7%. Director Hanenkrat asked about DAR 2019 numbers needing correction.
GM Doug Pilant said correct number should be 1,971 and the correction will be
reflected in next month’s report.

Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance: GM Doug Pilant reviewed the NWOTA meeting
agenda, minutes, finance report with the Board. The September meeting had been
postponed due to fires. Board Chair Huffman asked about a foundation he was part
of, GM Doug Pilant wasn't clear on what he was asking about. Board Chair Huffman
will wait until the next meeting to circle back.

10.Planning & Development:

a. Cape Kiawanda Master Plan — No report.

b. Deviated Fixed Route/ADA Policy: Nelson Nygaard no update to report.

c. STIF Service Alternatives Plan: Kittelson & Associates met with staff to develop
Port of Tillamook Bay service alternatives. Staff will conduct time-tests for the
proposed route in the next few weeks. Director Holm asked about the surveys
and who was being surveyed. GM Doug Pilant said it was to social services
executive director email list to the County and then to stakeholders that we do
business with. Also, a link to the survey was distributed on Facebook to the
District's 800+ followers, which resulted in a lot more engagements. The
survey had 209 responses.

d. Fare Policy Analysis: Rider On/Off study being conducted. GM Doug Pilant
reported a large number of riders commuting between Tillamook County and
Cannon Beach. Nelson-Nygaard conducted 2 focus groups that targeted social
service agencies to get input on development of a new fare policy. Expecting
results in October. '

11.Grant Funding:

a. STIF/STF Consolidation: No report

b. STIF Formula: No report

c. Section 5310 — Ford transit purchase starting production in December and will
take delivery in early 2021.

d. Section 5311 — Intercity buses have been ordered - no scheduled production
date.

e. Section 5339 — No report

f. Submitted an ODOT Cares Act Special Needs grant for VA appts to PDX.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statemenis made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation

marks report a speaker’s exact words.

2 |



Regular Meeting 9/17/2020
12.Facility/Property Management

a. Transit Visitors Center —The partitioning documentation approval process is
back in motion after confusion between the engineering firm and Tillamook
County Planning Department was resolved.

b. Alternative Fuel Facility: No report

c. Building carpet project: Obtaining quotes

13.NW Ride Brokerage
a. Continuing the work with legal counsel to revise the BPA.

14.Miscellaneous Should we take some of these off?
a. County Communication Network — Plan has been completed.

CONSENT CALENDAR
15. Motion to Approve the Minutes of the August 20, 2020 Regular Board Meeting
16. Motion to Accept Financial and Operations Reports: August 2020

Motion by Director Edwards to adopt the Consent Calendar, with recommended

changes. Motion Seconded by Director *. Board Chair Huffman called for further
discussion; followed by none, he called for the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Hanenkrat, Holm, Carlson-Swanson,

Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Huffman.

Director Riggs absent.

ACTION ITEMS

17.Motion to approve determination, findings and sole source acquisition of an additional
12 licenses and related services for Ecolane fixed route/flex deviated route software
system along with self-service trip booking mobile app and SMS text messaging for
Tillamook County Transportation District

GM Doug Pilant explained the Resolution to the Board.

Motion by Director Holm to approve determination, findings and sole source acquisition

of an additional 12 licenses and related services for Ecolane fixed route/flex deviated

route software system along with self-service trip booking mobile app and SMS text

messaging for Tillamook County Transportation District. Motion Seconded by Director

Edwards. Board Chair Huffman called for further discussion; followed by none, he called
for the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Hanenkrat, Holm, Carlson-Swanson,

Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Huffman.

Director Riggs absent.

18.Resolution 20-24 in the Matter of Amending TCTD Policy No. 26 — FTA/ODOT
PROCUREMENT POLICY that increases the micro procurement limit to the current
FTA/ODOT approved level of $10,000; the small purchase limit to the current

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

3

192



Regular Meeting 9/17/2020
FTA/ODOT limit of $250,000; to change the protest period for award notice to 7 days
to align with the default period required by law, and miscellaneous changes to clarify
the policy requirements

GM Doug Pilant explained the Resolution to the Board. Director Adler asked what the
current amount was. GM Doug Pilant stated $175,000 is the current amount, which was
amended after the audit 3 years ago. Director Hanenkrat wanted to confirm that this will
bring our policy up to FTA/ODOT policy standards. GM Doug Pilant explained this meets
FTA/ODOT standards and reduces our administration costs.

Motion by Director Edwards to approve Resolution 20-24 in the Matter of Amending

TCTD Policy No. 26 — FTA/ODOT PROCUREMENT POLICY that increases the micro

procurement limit to the current FTA/ODOT approved level of $10,000; the small

purchase limit to the current FTA/ODOT limit of $250,000; to change the protest period

for award notice to 7 days to align with the default period required by law, and

miscellaneous changes to clarify the policy requirements. Motion Seconded by Director

Holm. Board Chair Huffman called for further discussion; followed by none, he called for
the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Hanenkrat, Holm, Carlson-Swanson,

Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Huffman.

Director Riggs absent.

19.Resolution 20-25 in the Matter of Amending TCTD Policy No. 21 — Purchase Order
Policy to provide a purchase order number when required by a third party to make
purchases

GM Doug Pilant explained the Resolution to the Board.

Motion by Director Holm to approve Resolution 20-25 in the Matter of Amending TCTD
Policy No. 21 — Purchase Order Policy to provide a purchase order number when required
by a third party to make purchases. Motion Seconded by Director Edward. Board Chair
Huffman called for further discussion; followed by none, he called for the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Hanenkrat, Holm, Carlson-Swanson,
Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Huffman.
Director Riggs absent.

DISCUSSION ITEMS
20.Board Staff Comments/Concerns
GM Doug Pilant: None.
Superintendent Brent Olson: None.
Finance Supervisor Tabatha Welch: None.
NWR Brokerage Manager/Board Clerk Cathy Bond: Absent.

21.Board of Directors Comments/Concerns

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

4

3y



Regular Meeting 9/17/2020

Jim Huffman — Complimented Dial-A-Ride driver Mick Anderson's professionalism.

Judy Riggs — Absent.

Marty Holm — Agrees with Director Edwards the GM’s review needs to be completed.
Thanked everyone for continuing the work during these difficult times. Looking

forward to ridership recovering.

Jackie Edwards — Requested clarification about when the Board would complete the

GM’s annual evaluation.

Gary Hanenkrat - Inquired about the status of the Administrative Assistant recruitment

and requested a future discussion about board members voting for themselves.
Linda Adler — Requested information about the incident at the transit center.

Melissa Carlson-Swanson — Thanked Kathy Kleczek for the getthereoregon.com

program information.

UPCOMING EVENTS
Board Training - TBD

Adjournment: Board Chair Huffman adjourned the meeting at 7:05pm.
These minutes approved this 22" day of October, 2020.
ATTEST:

James Huffman, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

5

B



10/5/2020 SDIS Member Portal

SDIS 2020/2021 Best Practices Survey

SDIS 2020/2021

Entity Name

Tillamook County Transportation District

Contact Name

Tabatha R. Welch

Contact Email

twelch@tillamookbus.com

Contact Phone

503-842-0500

Total Discount %

10

Check Yes if
completed Yes Help More Information

Affiliate Membership - 2% Credit. Is your organization a member of:

1 OregonFire (] e (http://www.ofdda.com)
District

Directors
Association
(OFDDA)?

2 Oregon Fire D ? 0 (http://www.ofca.org)
Chiefs

Association
(OFCA)?

3 Oregon Water [ | o(http://owrc.org)
Resources

Congress
(OWRC)?

htips://www.sdis.org/BestPracticesSurvey/Edit/30964?pgm=SDIS

16



10/5/2020

10

"

12

Check Yes if
completed

Oregon
Mosquito and
Vector Control
Association?

Oregon
Recreation
and Park
Association
(ORPA)?

Oregon Public
Ports
Association
(OPPA)?

Oregon
Assaciation of
Clean Water
Agencies
(ORACWA)?

Oregon
Association of
Conservation
Districts
(OACD)?

Cemetery
Assaociation of
Oregon?

Oregon
APCO-NENA?

Oregon
Transit
Association
(OTA)?

Oregon
People's Utility
Districts
Association
(OPUDA)?

Yes

0

U

O

O

SDIS Member Portal
More Information

6 (http://www.omvca.org)

0 (http://www.orpa.com)

Q (http://www.oregonports.com)

e (http://www.oracwa.org)

6 (https://oacd.org)

0 (http://www.oregoncemeteries.com)

6 (http://www.oregonapconena.org/)

0 (http://www.oregontransit.com)

ﬂ (http://www.opuda.org/)

https://www.sdis.org/BestPracticesSurvey/Edit/30964?pgm=SDIS

g

2/6



10/5/2020

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

Check Yes if
completed

Oregon
Association of
Water Utilities
(OAWU)?

Oregon
Library
Association
(OLA)?

Oregon
Economic
Development
District
Association
(OEDD)?

Oregon
PRIMA?

Oregon
Association of
Hospitals and
Health
Systems
(OAHHS)?

Oregon
Association
Chiefs of
Police
(OACP)?

Oregon Rural
Health
Association
(ORHA)?

Yes

O

O

O

SDIS Member Portal

Help More Information

9 (http://www.oawu.net)

9 (http://www.olaweb.org)

6 (http://www.oedd.org/)

? 6 (http://orprima.org)

6 (http://www.oahhs.org/)

6 (http://www.policechief.org)

0 (https://orha.wildapricot.org)

Harassment Checklist - 2% Credit

https://www.sdis.org/BestPracticesSurvey/Edit/30964?pgm=SDIS

40

3/6



10/5/2020

20

21

22

23

Check Yes if

SDIS Member Portal

completed Yes Help More Information

Has your
district
developed and
implemented a
procedure for
employees to
report
incidents of
harassment,
discrimination
or retaliation?

Does your
district have a
follow up

process after

a report was

made or

taken?

Does your
district have
an established
internal
investigation
procedure?

Does your
district have a
documentation
procedure
when handling
the report of
an incident of
harassment,
discrimination
or retaliation?

Harassment Policy - 2% Credit

https://www.sdis.org/BestPracticesSurvey/Edit/309647pgm=8DIS

4/6



10/5/2020 SDIS Member Portal

Check Yes if
completed Yes Help More Information

24 Has your 9

district (hitps://olis.leg.state.or.us/liz/2019R 1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/SB479)
adopted a

written
harassment
policy that
seeks to
prevent
workplace
harassment
required by
the new
changes in the
law from
Senate Bill
4797

Online Training - 2% Credit. To receive credit, you must complete the following online course:

25 Has your
organization
completed the
SafePersonnel
Harassment
Training?

6 (https://www.safepersonnel.com/)

SDAO-SDIS Training - 2% Credit. Has a representative from your organization attended:

26 2020 SDAO
Annual
Conference?
(Pre-
conference
sessions are
also eligible.)

* 0 (http://www.cvent.com/d/chqzr1)

27 SDAO/SDIS
regional
trainings?

6 (https://www.sdao.com/EventList?initial Text=regional)

https://www.sdis.org/BestPracticesSurvey/Edit/30964?pgm=8DIS 5/6



10/5/2020

28

29

©2020-SDIS  Contact Us (/Resources/Support)

https://www.sdis.org/BestPracticesSurvey/Edit’/30964?pgm=SDIS

Check Yes if
completed Yes

SDAO/SDIS [ ]
onsite risk
management
training
conducted by
SDAO risk
management
staff or
management
consulting
staff during
the current
policy year
(2020)?

SDAO/SDIS
webinar

conducted by
SDAO staff

during the

current policy

year (2020)?

SDIS Member Portal

Help More Information

(https://sdao.com)

FAQ (/Pages?page=_NewSiteFAQMember)

SDAO.com



TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT POLICY

POLICY: COST ALLOWABILITY FOR CHARGES AGAINST Number: 25
FEDERAL GRANT AWARDS )
Adopted by the Board of Directors on October 22, 2020 Pages: 2

POLICY

All costs incurred by Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD) under a grant award
from the U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration, shall be
subject to the cost allowability standards articulated in OMB’s Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards.

PROCEDURE

Prior to entry into the general ledger, the Finance Supervisor shall determine the nature of
the cost and determine if the cost satisfies the following three considerations:

. ALLOWABILITY

The cost meets the general requirements established in 2 CFR § 200.403(a)
through §200.403(g). TCTD will maintain a system of internal controls over Federal
expenditures to provide reasonable assurance that Federal awards are expended
only for allowable activities and that the costs of goods and services charged to
Federal awards are allowable and in accordance with the above referenced cost
principles.

In order to be allowable under Federal awards, costs must;

Be necessary and reasonable for the performance of the Federal award and be
allocable thereto under these principles.

Conform to any limitations or exclusions set forth in these principles or in the
Federal award as to types or amount of cost items.

Be consistent with policies and procedures that apply uniformly to both
federally-financed and other activities of the district.

Be accorded consistent treatment.
Be determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Not be included as a cost or used to meet cost sharing or matching
requirements of any other federally-financed program in either the current or a
prior period.

Be adequately documented.

10f2

a



Il. SELECTED ITEMS OF COST

The cost must be consistent with one of the allowability categories for selected
items of costs articulated in 2 CFR § 200.420 through § 200.475.

lll. GRANT BUDGET

The cost must be consistent with the allowable expenses provided for in the grant
agreement.

This procedure will be employed regardless of whether TCTD classifies the expense as a
direct or indirect (F&A) cost. If deemed allowable, the Finance Supervisor shall code the
expense in accordance with the account code established for the FTA grant and record the
amount in the general ledger. If the Finance Supervisor cannot establish the allowability of
an expense, consultation with the General Manager shall be required to make the
determination before any cost is entered in the general ledger. If unable to be resolved by
the General Manager, TCTD shall seek clarification with the Federal awarding agency or
pass-through agency.

If deemed ineligible for reimbursement under the Federal award, the Finance Supervisor
will record the item in Account 01-001-5061, “Ineligible Costs.”

20f2



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Authorizing the General Manager
to Purchase Additional Licenses
for Computer Aided Dispatching
and Scheduling Software from
Ecolane USA, Inc.

e

RESOLUTION NO. 20-26

WHEREAS, the Tillamook County Transportation District previously executed a
Software License and Service Agreement with Ecolane USA, inc. {0 purchase the
Ecolane dispatching and scheduling software and maintenance fees; and

WHEREAS, the District desired to procure an additional twelve (12) licenses and
related services for its Ecolane fixed route/flex deviated route software system along with
self-service trip booking mobile app and SMS text messaging; and

WHEREAS, the District, acting as the Local Contract Review Board, approved a
Sole Source procurement on 9/17/2020; and

WHEREAS, public notice of the Sole Source procurement was published on
ORPIN on 9/23/2020; and

WHEREAS, the District did not receive any protest by October 1, 2020.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors:

That the Board authorizes the General Manager to purchase an additional twelve
(12) licenses and related services for Ecolane fixed route/flex deviated route
software system along with self-service trip booking mobile app and SMS text
messaging for Tillamook County Transportation District in an amount not to exceed
$117,310.00.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 22" day of October 2020.

ATTEST:

By: By:
James Huffman, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

W



AMENDMENT NO. 4
to the
Software License & Services Agreement
Between
Ecolane USA Inc.
And
Tillamook County Transportation District

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 4 ("Amendment") to the Software License & Services
Agreement ("Agreement") dated June 30, 2017, is effective August 7, 2020 ("Effective Date™)
between Ecolane USA Inc. ("Licensor") and Tillamook County Transportation District
(collectively, "the Parties").

NOW THEREFORE, the parties agree to amend the Agreement as follows:

15 Licensor agrees to provide sixteen (12) additional licenses and related services for
Ecolane fixed route/flex deviated route software system along with self-service trip booking
mobile app and SMS text messaging for Tillamook County Transportation District as set forth
in Exhibit A, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein. The amount for the quote is
$117,310 and is due upon signing of this amendment.

2. Tillamook County Transportation District agrees to pay Licensor any additional license
and related service fees as set forth in Exhibit A.

3. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement, as amended herein, shall remain in
full force and effect. Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the
meaning given to them in the Agreement.

4. This Amendment may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, but all of which counterparts collectively shall constitute one (1)
instrument representing this Amendment between the patties. In the event that any signature
is delivered by facsimile transmission or by e-mail delivery of a ".pdf' format data file, such
signature shall create a valid and binding obligation of the party executing (or on whose behalf
such signature is executed) with the same force and effect as if such facsimile or " .pdf
signature page were an original thereof.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]

Page 1 of 5



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each Party has caused this Amendment No. 4 to the
Software License & Services Agreement to be executed by its authorized representative to be
effective as of the Effective Date first written above.

Ecolane USA Inc. Tillamook County Transportation
District
Signature: Signature:
Printed Name: Printed Name:
Title: Title:
Date: Date:
Page 2 of 5



EXHIBIT A

License Terms

This Exhibit A is made part of and incorporated in that certain Software License & Service
Agreement ("Agreement"), by and between Ecolane USA Inc., a Delaware corporation
("Licensor" or "Ecolane"), located at 940 West Valley Road, Suite 1400, Wayne, PA 19087, and
Tilamook County Transportation District ("Licensee") located at 3600 Third Street, Ste. A,

Tillamook, OR 97141.

A,

Pricing/Payment

Revised Price Quote Deviated FR and add ons

{4
Eco ane Ecoine | G10 @ alley B Site 1400 | Wagne PA 15087
HARETO LAMNE | o 10-31200033 | SALESwECOLANE COM

DATE TRANSIT AGENCY NAME ADDRESS CITY, STATE 2iP
R AI2020 Tiliamvss Tounty Transooialoon S S000 Thirf Sieel Sle A Tillarre e OR 971401
PROJECT ATTENTION PHONE E-MAIL
Ravised qunts Deviated FR and Do 2t 50334243175 dpliant@tillanmook.com
Ad bes
BD DIRECTOR E-MAIL PHONE PRICING TERMS
Prealls Vargas priscilla vargas@ecoiane com Z206G-786-057 4 100% due at contract signing

DAYS PRICING IS VALID FOR
G

DATE PRICE EXPIRES

AR I00

initial Licenses

QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
1 S.elf Service Trip Baokings App with credit card capabilities (flat rate} (3rd party charges $29.995.00 $29.995.00
_ will apply) R —
Y SMS Text Messaging Amival Notification License {Includes 10k of SMS Text msg credit $19.995 00 $19,995.00
to start that never expires) (flat rate) e _ el | ERiE
12 F.zixsd Route/Flex (Deviated) Route software license {per route, includes MDT software $4,000.00 $48,000.00
. = lensgeosl)—— — . _—___ - SN R
Inttral licenses subtotal $97,990.00
Additional items
—
QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
12 8" Android Tablet, similar to a Samsun? Galaxy Tab A, 8" (+$100 per for 10" tablet) (if $294.00 VI E R e s
agency purchases separately, price wilt be reduced)
S —=——= e = — it
Vehicle Mounting Hardware (RAM-101U, Otter box type case, and vehicle charger)
12 {additional $100 per for locking mount hardware) (if agency purchases separataly, price $199.00 Tillamook to purchase
will be reduced)
1 SMS Text message credit bundle (10,000/bundle) (Never expires until used up $1,500.00 $1,500.00
____completely} 5 S
Additional items subtotal $1,500.00
Sarvices
QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
1 Relrl'{ote setup r?f Ecolane DRT and MDT software (8 hr. work days), includes remote $690.00 $10,890.00
e . lraining and project management = - - S e B RO A,
7 Onsite Training/Go-live days {8 hr. work days) $990.00 $6,930.00
- . - =
Services subtotal $17,820.00

Page 3 of 5

1



Anmus | icensing Year 1

QUANTITY DESCRIFTION UMIT PRICE AMOUNT
12 All Inclusive Annusal L.lcensmg plan includes support for all licenses hsted above and all Included el oged
items below (pervehicley
Hosting C osfs inciuded
ServerMaintenance Included
2477/365 Support via web, ematil and phone Inctuded
MWap Updatas Included
Upgrades*™ and Updates Inctuded
Free monthly vebinar training and access to Aha! Kea portal to help drive i v
o o B _fundtionality for new development for E colane and its custe: = . - et
Access to Leaming I anagement System (LM S} Ecolane U niversity for afl ga
et Inciuded
selfpaced web-based tmining
Annual ficensing year 1 subitatal Inciuded
*
SUBTOTAL §117,310.00
TOTAL SYSTEM
PURCHASE COSTSFOR $117,310.00
YEAR 1
Annual Licansing for years 2-5 (peryear | Please ask your Biz Dev Direclor aboul pre-patid maintenance discounts!
QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
All Inclusive Annual Licensing plan includes support for all licenses listed above in initial
12 licenses and all items below (per vehicle). $1,633.17 $19,598.04
Hosting Costs Inciuded
Server Maintenance included
24/7/365 Support via web, email and phone Included
Map Updates Included
Upgrades** and Updates Included
Free monthly webinar training and access toma! Idea portal to help drive O
functionality for new development for Ecolane and its customers pelugde
Access to Leaming Management System (LMS), Ecolane University for all staff for nEdsd
self-paced web-based training nglude
(Annual Licensing years 2-5 (per year) subtotal $19,598.04

plans)

Annual licensing will be held at this rate for as long as your agency Is an Ecolane cuslomer. {Based on originally purchased solution. Does not include 3rd party charges or data

‘“ﬁ‘%‘“—‘

8/6/2020

Ryan Larsen, Senior Vice President

Date

Optional ltems | Please ask your Biz Dev Director for more fnfo about thase great options to help your agency grow!

Page 4 of 5



QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE ANNUAL LICENSE COST

1 Ecolane IVR *** {Inilial License cost, fiat rate) (3rd party charges will apply) $40,000.00 $8,000.00
1 Electronic Signature Caplure functionality on MDT *** (initial License cost, per vehicle) $200.00 $40.00
1 Interface fc_:r Public Tra-nsponalion *** (Initial License cost, flat rate) - - -$19.99-5 0-0 . . ¥ _33:,99900
1 Self Service Trip Bookings Website *** (Initial License cost, flat rale) $19.995 00 $3,999.00
1 Customer Service and Feedback module *** {Initial License cost, flat rate} $6,995.00 $1,399.00
1 Centers Management Portal *** (Initial License cost, flat rate) . $19,995 00 1N S-:.%,-SSS.OO
1 Ecolane DRT Brokerage (Primary) *** (Initial License cost, flat rate) $12,995 00 $2,699.00
1 Subcontractor Portal *** (Initial License cost, flat rate) $9,995 00 $1,999.00
1 Subcontractor Reporting Portal “** (Initial License cost, flat rate) - $6,995 00 = _s-;,ssa.oc
1 Least cost scheduling algonithm for brokerage solution *** (Initiat License cost, flal rate) $6,995 00 $1,399.00
1 Order Importer module *** (Initial License cost, flat rate) - $19,995 00 Pl ss_,sa‘;.oo
) 1 tEr:s:l:‘z‘xddifinnal Week onsite over standard 2 weeks Training/Go-live Su_pp-orl_(_lnfdis__ B - $8,700.00 e
1 Annual Review - Up to 10 days of remote review of your system by a Ecolane $6.300.00

Professional Services member and 3 days onsile training (includes travel)

THIS PROPOSAL INCLUDES THE CONDITIONS NOTED

{mplemantaton/Training assumes 8 hrs per day on-site excluding weekends and holidays

All prices are In US dollars All applicable sales/use taxes are addiional and payment of such is the sale respansibility of the purchaser

Cusfamer may purchase Android tablets and artime for Tablets through cellular prowder  Prices for tahlefs range from 30 to $499 depending on carnier  Please coordinate your cellular provider/tablets with
Ecalane prior to ordering hardware

"Dala plan does nof include web browsing. etc  2CB data plan is more than sufficient for the Ecolane Touchscreen MDT Software and Nawgation  Agency is responsible for data plan and any overages unkess
otherwise noted

“*Upgrade and webinar frawning 1s included for upgrades addihonal on site or new employee traning Is charged at Refreshier Traning rate plus travel as applicable

“** All Optional item ficense costs inckide annuat hosting. support & licensing fees due | year from contract signing set at 20%

Page 5 of 5



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

In the Matter of Authorizing the to )
General Manager to Execute an ODOT )
CARES Act Grant Agreement #34418 )
to Purchase Computer Aided Vehicle )
Sanitizing Equipment ) RESOLUTION NO. 20-27

WHEREAS, the federal Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security
(“CARES”) Act provides emergency assistance and health care response for individuals,
families, and businesses affected by the novel coronavirus, COVID-19, pandemic and
provides emergency appropriations to support agency operations during the pandemic;
and

WHEREAS, the CARES Act permits funds to be made available to transit agencies
to maintain service and lost revenue, including the purchase of protective equipment and
paid administrative leave; and

WHEREAS, Tillamook County Transportation District (“District”) applied for an
Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) CARES Act grant application on behalf of
the NW Oregon Transit Alliance (NWOTA) to purchase vehicle sanitation equipment; and

WHEREAS, the State of Oregon, acting by and through its Department of
Transportation, Rail and Public Transit Division, desires to provide and the District desires
to accept grant funds in an amount not to exceed $187,800.00 to assist with the
sanitization of its buses keeping them safe for public transportation; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District's Board of Directors:

that the Board authorizes the General Manager to execute ODOT Grant
Agreement #34418 with the State of Oregon, acting by and through its Department of
Transportation.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 22" day of October 22, 2020.

ATTEST:

By: By:
Jim Huffman, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

100~

45039-27477 4852-6836-1167.1



EXHIBIT A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE STATE OF OREGON, ACTING BY AND THROUGH
ITS DEPARMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, RAIL AND PUBLIC TRANSIT DIVISION
AND TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORATION DISTRICT
AGREEMENT No. 34418

)
45039-27477 4852-6836-1167.1 ] D f)



Misc. Contracts and Agreements
Agreement No. 34418
Capital 5311

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION DIVISION
OREGON DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between the State of Oregon, acting by and
through its Department of Transportation, Rail and Public Transit Division, hereinafter referred to as
"State,” and Tillamook County Transportation District, hereinafter referred to as "Recipient,”
and collectively referred to as the "Parties.”

AGREEMENT

1.

Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective on the later of September 1, 2020
or the date when this Agreement is fully executed and approved as required by applicable
law. Unless otherwise terminated or extended, Grant Funds under this Agreement shall
be available for Project Costs incurred on or before June 30, 2021 (Expiration Date). No
Grant Funds are available for any expenditures after the Expiration Date. State's obligation
to disburse Grant Funds under this Agreement shall end as provided in Section 10 of this
Agreement.

Agreement Documents. This Agreement consists of this document and the following
documents, all of which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference:

Exhibit A: Project Description and Budget
Exhibit B: Financial Information
Exhibit C: Subcontractor Insurance

Exhibit D: Summary of Federal Requirements, incorporating by reference Annual
List of Certifications and Assurances for Federal Transit Administration Grants
and Cooperative Agreements ("Certifications and Assurances") and Federal Transit
Administration Master Agreement

Exhibit E: Information required by 2 CFR 200.331(a), may be accessed at http://
www.oregon.gov/odot/pt/, Oregon Public Transit Information System (OPTIS), as
the information becomes available

In the event of a conflict between two or more of the documents comprising this Agreement,
the language in the document with the highest precedence shall control. The precedence of
each of the documents comprising this Agreement is as follows, listed from highest precedence
to lowest precedence: Exhibit D; Exhibit E; this Agreement without Exhibits; Exhibit A; Exhibit
B; Exhibit C.

Project Cost; Grant Funds; Match. The total project cost is estimated at $187,800.00. In
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, State shall provide Recipient an
amount not to exceed $187,800.00 in Grant Funds for eligible costs described in Section 6.a.
hereof. Recipient shall provide matching funds for all Project Costs as described in Exhibit A.

Project. The Grant Funds shall be used solely for the Project described in Exhibit A and shall
not be used for any other purpose. No Grant Funds will be disbursed for any changes to the
Project unless such changes are approved by State by amendment pursuant to Section 11.d
hereof.

Progress Reports. Recipient shall submit quarterly progress reports to State no later
than 45 days after the close of each quarterly reporting period. Reporting periods are
July through September, October through December, January through March, and April
through June. Reports must be in a format acceptable to State and must be entered into
the Oregon Public Transit Information System (OPTIS), which may be accessed at http://
www.oregon.gov/odot/pt/. If Recipient is unable to access OPTIS, reports must be delivered
to ODOTPTDReporting@odot.state.or.us. Reports shall include a statement of revenues and
expenditures for each quarter, including documentation of local match contributions and
expenditures. State reserves the right to request such additional information as may be

Page 1 of 18

|01



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34418

necessary to comply with federal or state reporting requirements.
6. Disbursement and Recovery of Grant Funds.

a.

Disbursement Generally. State shall reimburse eligible costs incurred in carrying out
the Project, up to the Grant Fund amount provided in Section 3. Reimbursements shall
be made by State within 30 days of State's approval of a request for reimbursement from
Recipient using a format that is acceptable to State. Requests for reimbursement must
be entered into OPTIS or sent to ODOTPTDReporting@odot.state.or.us. Eligible costs are
the reasonable and necessary costs incurred by Recipient, or under a subagreement
described in Section 9.a. of this Agreement, in performance of the Project and that are
not excluded from reimbursement by State, either by this Agreement or by exclusion as
a result of financial review or audit.

Conditions Precedent to Disbursement. State's obligation to disburse Grant Funds
to Recipient is subject to satisfaction, with respect to each disbursement, of each of the
following conditions precedent:

i. State has received funding, appropriations, limitations, allotments or other
expenditure authority sufficient to allow State, in the exercise of its reasonable
administrative discretion, to make the disbursement.

ii. Recipient is in compliance with the terms of this Agreement including, without
limitation, Exhibit D and the requirements incorporated by reference in Exhibit D,

iii. Recipient's representations and warranties set forth in Section 7 hereof are true
and correct on the date of disbursement with the same effect as though made on
the date of disbursement.

iv. Recipient has provided to State a request for reimbursement using a format that is
acceptable to and approved by State. Recipient must submit its final request for
reimbursement following completion of the Project and no later than 60 days after
the Expiration Date. Failure to submit the final request for reimbursement within
60 days after the Expiration Date could result in non-payment.

Recovery of Grant Funds. Any funds disbursed to Recipient under this Agreement
that are expended in violation or contravention of one or more of the provisions of
this Agreement ("Misexpended Funds") or that remain unexpended on the earlier of
termination or expiration of this Agreement must be returned to State. Recipient shall
return all Misexpended Funds to State promptly after State's written demand and no later
than 15 days after State's written demand. Recipient shall return all Unexpended Funds
to State within 14 days after the earlier of expiration or termination of this Agreement.

7. Representations and Warranties of Recipient. Recipient represents and warrants to State
as follows:

a.

C.

Organization and Authority. Recipient is duly organized and validly existing under
the laws of the State of Oregon and is eligible to receive the Grant Funds. Recipient has
full power, authority, and legal right to make this Agreement and to incur and perform its
obligations hereunder, and the making and performance by Recipient of this Agreement
(1) have been duly authorized by all necessary action of Recipient and (2) do not and
will not violate any provision of any applicable law, rule, regulation, or order of any
court, regulatory commission, board, or other administrative agency or any provision
of Recipient's Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws, if applicable, (3) do not and will not
result in the breach of, or constitute a default or require any consent under any other
agreement or instrument to which Recipient is a party or by which Recipient or any of
its properties may be bound or affected. No authorization, consent, license, approval
of, filing or registration with or notification to any governmental body or regulatory or
supervisory authority is required for the execution, delivery or performance by Recipient
of this Agreement.

Binding Obligation. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by
Recipient and constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of Recipient, enforceable in
accordance with its terms subject to the laws of bankruptcy, insolvency, or other similar
laws affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights generally.

No Solicitation. Recipient's officers, employees, and agents shall neither solicit nor

Page 2 of 18

109



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34418

accept gratuities, favors, or any item of monetary value from contractors, potential
contractors, or parties to subagreements, except as permitted by applicable law. No
member or delegate to the Congress of the United States or State of Oregon employee
shall be admitted to any share or part of this Agreement or any benefit arising therefrom.

d. No Debarment. Neither Recipient nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, or
voluntarily excluded from this federally-assisted transaction, or proposed for debarment,
declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participating in this Agreement by any
state or federal agency. Recipient agrees to notify State immediately if it is debarred,
suspended or otherwise excluded from this federally-assisted transaction for any reason
or if circumstances change that may affect this status, including without limitation upon
any relevant indictments or convictions of crimes.

The warranties set in this section are in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other warranties
set forth in this Agreement or implied by law.

8. Records Maintenance and Access; Audit.

a. Records, Access to Records and Facilities. Recipient shall make and retain proper
and complete books of record and account and maintain all fiscal records related to
this Agreement and the Project in accordance with all applicable generally accepted
accounting principles, generally accepted governmental auditing standards and state
minimum standards for audits of municipal corporations. Recipient shall require that
each of its subrecipients and subcontractors complies with these requirements. State,
the Secretary of State of the State of Oregon (Secretary), the United States Department
of Transportation (USDOT), the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and their duly
authorized representatives shall have access to the books, documents, papers and
records of Recipient that are directly related to this Agreement, the funds provided
hereunder, or the Project for the purpose of making audits and examinations. In addition,
State, the Secretary, USDOT, FTA and their duly authorized representatives may make
and retain excerpts, copies, and transcriptions of the foregoing books, documents,
papers, and records. Recipient shall permit authorized representatives of State, the
Secretary, USDOT and FTA to perform site reviews of the Project, and to inspect all
vehicles, real property, facilities and equipment purchased by Recipient as part of the
Project, and any transportation services rendered by Recipient.

b. Retention of Records. Recipient shall retain and keep accessible all books, documents,
papers, and records that are directly related to this Agreement, the Grant Funds or the
Project for a minimum of six (6) years, or such longer period as may be required by
other provisions of this Agreement or applicable law, following the Expiration Date. If
there are unresolved audit questions at the end of the six-year period, Recipient shall
retain the records until the questions are resolved.

c. Expenditure Records. Recipient shall document the expenditure of all Grant Funds
disbursed by State under this Agreement. Recipient shall create and maintain all
expenditure records in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and in
sufficient detail to permit State to verify how the Grant Funds were expended.

d. Audit Requirements.

i. Recipients receiving federal funds in excess of $750,000 are subject to audit
conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR part 200, subpart F. Recipient,
if subject to this requirement, shall at Recipient's own expense submit to State,
Rail and Public Transit Division, 555 13th Street NE, Suite 3, Salem, Oregon,
97301-4179 or to ODOTPTDReporting@odot.state.or.us, a copy of, or electronic
link to, its annual audit subject to this requirement covering the funds expended
under this Agreement and shall submit or cause to be submitted, the annuat audit
of any subrecipient(s), contractor(s), or subcontractor(s) of Recipient responsible
for the financial management of funds received under this Agreement.

ii. Recipient shall save, protect and hold harmless State from the cost of any audits
or special investigations performed by the Secretary with respect to the funds
expended under this Agreement. Recipient acknowledges and agrees that any audit
costs incurred by Recipient as a result of allegations of fraud, waste or abuse are
ineligible for reimbursement under this or any other agreement between Recipient

and State.
Page 3 of 18 F] Db



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34418

9. Recipient Subagreements and Procurements

a.

Subagreements. Recipient may enterinto agreements with sub-recipients, contractors
or subcontractors (collectively, "subagreements") for performance of the Project.

i. All subagreements must be in writing executed by Recipient and must incorporate
and pass through all of the applicable requirements of this Agreement to the other
party or parties to the subagreement(s). Use of a subagreement does not relieve
Recipient of its responsibilities under this Agreement.

ii. Recipient agrees to provide State with a copy of any signed subagreement upon
request by State. Any substantial breach of a term or condition of a subagreement
refating to funds covered by this Agreement must be reported by Recipient to State
within ten (10) days of its being discovered.

b. Recipient shall review the Best Practices Procurement Manual, a technical assistance

manual prepared by the FTA, available on the FTA website: www.fta.dot.gov/
grants/13054_6037.htm|

Subagreement indemnity; insurance

Recipient’'s subagreement(s) shall require the other party to such
subagreements(s) that is not a unit of local government as defined in ORS
190.003, if any, to indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless State and its
officers, employees and agents from and against any and all claims, actions,
liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses, including attorneys' fees, arising from
a tort, as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260, caused, or alleged to be
caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or willful acts or omissions of
the other party to Recipient's subagreement or any of such party's officers,
agents, employees or subcontractors ("'Claims"). It is the specific intention of
the Parties that the State shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely
from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the State, be indemnified by
the other party to Recipient's subagreement(s) from and against any and all
Claims.

Any such indemnification shall also provide that neither Recipient's subrecipient(s),
contractor(s) nor subcontractor(s) (collectively "Subrecipients"), nor any attorney
engaged by Recipient's Subrecipient(s), shall defend any claim in the name of the State
or any agency of the State of Oregon, nor purport to act as legal representative of the
State of Oregon or any of its agencies, without the prior written consent of the Oregon
Attorney General. The State may, at any time at its election, assume its own defense
and settlement in the event that it determines that Recipient's Subrecipient is prohibited
from defending State or that Recipient's Subrecipient is not adequately defending State's
interests, or that an important governmental principle is at issue or that it is in the best
interests of State to do so. State reserves all rights to pursue claims it may have against
Recipient's Subrecipient if State elects to assume its own defense.

Recipient shall require the other party, or parties, to each of its subagreements that
are not units of local government as defined in ORS 190.003 to obtain and maintain
insurance of the types and in the amounts provided in Exhibit C to this Agreement. Any
insurance obtained by the other party to Recipient's subagreements, if any, shall not
relieve Recipient of the requirements of Section 11 of this Agreement. The other party to
any subagreement with Recipient, if the other party employs subject workers as defined
in ORS 657.027, must obtain Workers Compensation Coverage as described in Exhibit C.

Procurements. Recipient shall make purchases of any equipment, materials, or services
for the Project under procedures that comply with Oregon law, as applicable, including
all applicable provisions of the Oregon Public Contracting Code and rules, and in
conformance to FTA Circular 4220.1F, Third Party Contracting Requirements including:

i. all applicable clauses required by federal statute, executive orders and their
implementing regulations are included in each competitive procurement;

ii. all procurement transactions are conducted in a manner providing full and open

competition;
Page 4 of 18 ]U‘l



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34418

iil. procurements exclude the use of statutorily or administratively imposed in-state
or geographic preference in the evaluation of bids or proposals (with exception of
locally controlled licensing requirements);

iv. construction, architectural and engineering procurements are based on Brooks Act
procedures unless the procurement is subject to ORS 279C.100 to 279C.125.

e. Additional requirements

i. Recipient shall comply with 49 CFR sections 37.77(c) and 37.105 regarding
"Certification of Equivalent Service" when purchasing vehicles under this
Agreement. If non-accessible vehicles, as defined by the Americans with
Disabilities Act, are being purchased for use by a public entity in demand responsive
service for the general public, Recipient will certify to State at the time of applying
for a project that, when viewed in its entirety, the demand responsive service
offered to persons with disabilities, including persons who use wheelchairs, meets
the standard of equivalent service.

ii. Recipient shall comply with 49 CFR 663 regarding pre-award and post-delivery
reviews. Every Recipient purchasing rolling stock or facilities under this Agreement
must certify to State that a pre-award and post-delivery review has been conducted
in accordance with ODOT requirements. This review ensures compliance to bid
specifications including, but not limited to, FTA requirements, State requirements,
and Federal Motor Carrier Safety Standards, as applicable to the type of project.
Each Recipient's certification must include assurance that required documents
have been received from manufacturers or vendors of products, or from both,
and that Recipient possesses such documents. Acceptable certification forms are
available from State. Recipient must provide certification forms to State when
reimbursement is requested for vehicles. For facilities projects, Recipient must
provide pre-award certifications to State at time of first payment, and post-delivery
certifications upon completion of the post-delivery review, and in no event later
than with Recipient's request for final payment.

iii. Recipient shall comply with 49 CFR 604 in the provision of any charter service
provided with vehicles, facilities, or equipment acquired with FTA assistance under
this Agreement.

iv. Recipient shall submit an annual vehicle inspection report to State for any vehicle
purchased under this Agreement. Vehicle inspections shall be conducted by a
vehicle maintenance technician certified by a nationally recognized organization in
the field of vehicle service and maintenance. Reports covering required areas of
inspection shall be submitted on forms provided by State.

v. All drivers of vehicles purchased with FTA funds under this Agreement must
complete a standard defensive driving course before operating an FTA-funded
vehicle, and are advised to complete a standard defensive driving course before
operating a State-funded vehicle.

vi. Recipient shall maintain all vehicles, equipment, and facilities purchased under this
Agreement in good condition per manufacturer’s recommendations. Recipients are
required to develop preventive maintenance plans for all rolling stock and facilities
and to provide the plans to State upon request.

vii. Recipient shall be the owner of the property for facility construction projects and of
vehicles purchased under this Agreement. Such ownership shall be recorded on real
property deeds for facility construction projects and on vehicle titles. If Recipient
contracts the operation of vehicles to a third party, then the third party may be
shown as the owner or lessee with Recipient listed as the second security interest
holder or lessor. In all cases, Oregon Department of Transportation, Rail and Public
Transit Division shall be shown as the first security interest holder on vehicle titles.
If Recipient fails to show Oregon Department of Transportation, Rail and Public
Transit Division as the first security interest holder, Recipient shall pay any expenses
to re-submit the necessary documents to Oregon Department of Transportation,
Driver and Motor Vehicle Services (DMV). If a vehicle is damaged or destroyed at
any time when Recipient fails to show Oregon Department of Transportation, Rail
and Public Transit Division, as the first security interest holder, Recipient shall be

Page 5 of 18 ID%



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34418

liable to State for any damage in an amount in the same manner as if Oregon
Department of Transportation, Rail and Public Transit Division, were shown as the
first security interest holder.

viii. Recipient shall bear the cost of insuring assets purchased under this Agreement
based on risk assessment. Recipient shall maintain, in amounts and form
satisfactory to State, such insurance or self-insurance as will be adequate to
protect Recipient, vehicle drivers and assistants, vehicle occupants, and property
throughout the period of use. The minimum that will be approved by State is
comprehensive and collision insurance adequate to repair or replace property
and equipment if damaged or destroyed; liability insurance of $50,000 for
property damage, $200,000 for bodily injury per person, $500,000 for bodily
injury per occasion for maintenance and shop vehicles, and $1,000,000 for bodily
injury per occasion for vehicles providing passenger transportation; uninsured
motorist protection; and personal injury protection as required by ORS Chapter
806. Recipient shall be responsible for all deductibles or self-insured retention.
Recipient's insurance policy covering assets purchased under this Agreement shall
include the Oregon Department of Transportation, Raii and Public Transit Division
as an "Additional Insured". In the event of any ambiguity or conflict between
this section 9.e.viii. and Exhibit C Insurance Requirements ii. Commercial General
Liability and iii. AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE, this section 9.e.viii. shall
control.

ix. Recipient shall file a restrictive covenant with the property deed for all construction
projects and purchases of real estate, with the exception of passenger shelters,
amenities, and right-of-way infrastructure improvements. The restrictive covenant
will limit the use of the building and property to the stated purpose specified in the
statement of work associated with this Agreement.

x. Recipient shall complete all purchases, including installation, and all construction
of capital assets funded under this Agreement prior to the Expiration Date of this
Agreement. If local circumstances prevent purchase, installation, or construction
by the specified date, Recipient will notify State in writing of the circumstances
regarding the delay. Such notification must be received at least forty-five (45) days
prior to the expiration of the Agreement. Agreement amendment for time will be
considered in extenuating circumstances,

10. Termination

a. Termination by State. State may terminate this Agreement effective upon delivery of
written notice of termination to Recipient, or at such later date as may be established
by State in such written notice, if:

i. Recipient fails to perform the Project within the time specified herein or any
extension thereof or commencement, continuation or timely completion of the
Project by Recipient is, for any reason, rendered improbable, impossible, orillegal;
or

ii. State fails to receive funding, appropriations, limitations or other expenditure
authority sufficient to allow State, in the exercise of its reasonable administrative
discretion, to continue to make payments for performance of this Agreement; or

iii. Federal or state laws, rules, regulations or guidelines are modified or interpreted in
such a way that the Project is no longer allowable or no longer eligible for funding
under this Agreement; or

iv. The Project would not produce results commensurate with the further expenditure
of funds; or

v. Recipient takes any action pertaining to this Agreement without the approval of
State and which under the provisions of this Agreement would have required the
approval of State.

b. Termination by Recipient. Recipient may terminate this Agreement effective upon
delivery of written notice of termination to State, or at such later date as may be

Page 6 of 18 \Uq



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34418

established by Recipient in such written notice, if:

i. The requisite local funding to continue the Project becomes unavailable to
Recipient; or

ii. Federal or state laws, rules, regulations or guidelines are modified or interpreted in
such a way that the Project is no longer allowable or no longer eligible for funding
under this Agreement.

Termination by Either Party. Either Party may terminate this Agreement upon at
least ten days notice to the other Party and failure of the other Party to cure within the
period provided in the notice, if the other Party fails to comply with any of the terms
of this Agreement.

11. General Provisions

a.

Dispute Resolution. The Parties shall attempt in good faith to resolve any dispute
arising out of this Agreement. In addition, the Parties may agree to utilize a jointly
selected mediator or arbitrator (for non-binding arbitration) to resolve the dispute short
of litigation.

Responsibility for Grant Funds. Any recipient of Grant Funds, pursuant to this
Agreement with State, shall assume sole liability for that recipient’s breach of the
conditions of this Agreement, and shall, upon recipient's breach of conditions that
requires State to return funds to the FTA, hold harmless and indemnify State for an
amount equal to the funds received under this Agreement; or if legal limitations apply
to the indemnification ability of the recipient of Grant Funds, the indemnification amount
shall be the maximum amount of funds available for expenditure, including any available
contingency funds or other available non-appropriated funds, up to the amount received
under this Agreement.

Amendments. This Agreement may be amended or extended only by a written
instrument signed by both Parties and approved as required by applicable law.

Duplicate Payment. Recipient is not entitled to compensation or any other form of
duplicate, overlapping or multiple payments for the same work performed under this
Agreement from any agency of the State of Oregon or the United States of America or
any other party, organization or individual.

No Third Party Beneficiaries. State and Recipient are the only Parties to this
Agreement and are the only Parties entitled to enforce its terms. Nothing in this
Agreement gives, is intended to give, or shall be construed to give or provide any benefit
or right, whether directly or indirectly, to a third person unless such a third person is
individually identified by name herein and expressly described as an intended beneficiary
of the terms of this Agreement.

Recipient acknowledges and agrees that the Federal Government, absent express written
consent by the Federal Government, is not a party to this Agreement and shall not be
subject to any obligations or liabilities to the Recipient, contractor or any other party
(whether or not a party to the Agreement) pertaining to any matter resulting from the
this Agreement.

Notices. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, any
communications between the Parties hereto or notices to be given hereunder shall be
given in writing by personal delivery, facsimile, email, or mailing the same, postage
prepaid, to Recipient Contact or State Contact at the address or number set forth
on the signature page of this Agreement, or to such other addresses or numbers as
either Party may hereafter indicate pursuant to this Section 11.g. Any communication
or notice personally delivered shall be deemed to be given when actually delivered.
Any communication or notice delivered by facsimile shall be deemed to be given when
receipt of the transmission is generated by the transmitting machine, and to be effective
against State, such facsimile transmission must be confirmed by telephone notice to
State Contact. Any communication by email shall be deemed to be given when the
recipient of the email acknowledges receipt of the email. Any communication or notice
mailed shall be deemed to be given when received.

Governing Law, Consent to Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be governed by and

Page 7 of 18

7



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34418

construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon without regard to principles
of conflicts of law. Any claim, action, suit or proceeding (collectively, "Claim") between
State (or any other agency or department of the State of Oregon) and Recipient that
arises from or relates to this Agreement shall be brought and conducted solely and
exclusively within the Circuit Court of Marion County in the State of Oregon. In no event
shall this section be construed as a waiver by the State of Oregon of any form of defense
or immunity, whether sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, immunity based on
the eleventh amendment to the Constitution of the United States or otherwise, from any
Claim or from the jurisdiction of any court. EACH PARTY HEREBY CONSENTS TO THE
EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION OF SUCH COURT, WAIVES ANY OBJECTION TO VENUE, AND
WAIVES ANY CLAIM THAT SUCH FORUM IS AN INCONVENIENT FORUM.

h. Compliance with Law. Recipient shall comply with all federal, state and local laws,
regulations, executive orders and ordinances applicable to the Agreement or to the
implementation of the Project, as applicable to Recipient, including without limitation
as described in Exhibit D. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Recipient
expressly agrees to comply with (i) Title VI of Civil Rights Act of 1964; (ii) Title V and
Section 504 of the Rehabiiitation Act of 1973; (iii) the Americans with Disabilities Act
of 1990 and ORS 659A.142; (iv) all regulations and administrative rules established
pursuant to the foregoing laws; and (v) all other applicable requirements of federal and
state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations.

i. Insurance; Workers' Compensation. All employers, including Recipient, that employ
subject workers who provide services in the State of Oregon shall comply with ORS
656.017 and provide the required Workers' Compensation coverage, unless such
employers are exempt under ORS 656.126. Employer's liability insurance with coverage
limits of not less than $500,000 must be included. Recipient shall ensure that each of its
subrecipient(s), contractor(s), and subcontractor(s) complies with these requirements.

j. Independent Contractor. Recipient shall perform the Project as an independent
contractor and not as an agent or employee of State. Recipient has no right or authority
to incur or create any obligation for or legally bind State in any way. State cannot and
will not control the means or manner by which Recipient performs the Project, except
as specifically set forth in this Agreement. Recipient is responsible for determining the
appropriate means and manner of performing the Project. Recipient acknowledges and
agrees that Recipient is not an "officer”, "employee", or "agent" of State, as those terms
are used in ORS 30.265, and shall not make representations to third parties to the

contrary.

k. Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement is declared by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining
terms and provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the Parties
shall be construed and enforced as if this Agreement did not contain the particular term
or provision held to be invalid.

[. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts (by
facsimile or otherwise), each of which is an original and all of which together are deemed
one agreement binding on all Parties, notwithstanding that all Parties are not signatories
to the same counterpart.

m. Integration and Waiver. This Agreement, including all Exhibits, constitutes the
entire agreement between the Parties on the subject matter hereof. There are no
understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or written, not specified herein
regarding this Agreement. The delay or failure of either Party to enforce any provision of
this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver by that Party of that or any other provision.
Recipient, by the signature below of its authorized representative, hereby acknowledges
that it has read this Agreement, understands it, and agrees to be bound by its terms
and conditions.

Page 8 of 18



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34418

The Parties, by execution of this Agreement, hereby acknowledge that each Party has read this
Agreement, understands it, and agrees to be bound by its terms and conditions.

The Oregon Transportation Commission on October 20, 2010, approved Delegation
Order Number OTC-01, which authorizes the Director of the Oregon Department of
Transportation to administer programs related to public transit.

On March 1, 2012, the Director approved Delegation Order Number DIR-04, which
delegates the authority to approve this Agreement to the Public Transportation
Division Administrator.

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW

Page 9 of 18



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon

Agreement No. 34418

Tillamook County Transportation District,
by and through its

By

(Legally designated representative)

Name

(printed)

Date

By

Name

(printed)

Date

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY

(if required in local process)

By

Recipient's LLegal Counsel

Date

Recipient Contact:

Doug Pilant

3600 Third Street, Suite A
Tillamook, OR 97141-0188
1 (503) 842-3115
dpilant@tillamookbus.com

State Contact:

Arla Miller

555 13th Street NE

Salem, OR 97301-4179

1 (503) 9862836
Arla.MILLER@odot.state.or.us

State of Oregon, by and through its
Department of Transportation

By
Karyn Criswell
Public Transportation Division Administrator

Date

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED

By Jason Kelly

Date 10/19/2020

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY
(For funding over $150,000)

By

Assistant Attorney General

Name Marvin Fjordbeck by email
(printed)

Date 03/13/2017

Signed Agreement Return Address: ODOTPTDReporting@odot.state.or.us

Page 10 of 18 \ \/7



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon

Agreement No. 34418

EXHIBIT A

Project Description and Budget

Project Description/Statement of Work

Project Title: CARES 5311 (NB) Tillamook County 34418
Provide relief from expenses incurred in response to the COVID-19 pandemic

Item #1: Miscellaneous Equipment

Total Grant Amount Local Match Match Type(s)
$187,800.00 $187,800.00 $0.00
Sub Total $187,800.00 $187,800.00 $0.00
Grand Total $187,800.00 $187,800.00 $0.00

1. BACKGROUND

The federal Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act provides emergency
assistance and health care response for individuals, families, and businesses affected by the
COVID-19 pandemic and provides emergency appropriations to support agency operations
during the pandemic. Funds provided under the CARES Act are available for transit agencies
to maintain service and lost revenue, including the purchase of protective equipment and paid
administrative leave.

2. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

This Agreement provides financial support for general public transportation services in the state
of Oregon to provide relief from expenses incurred in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. The
service provided for under this Agreement is as follows:

Recipient shall purchase 6 portable fogging decontamination units; 6 data logging modules; 121
vehicle mount installation kits consisting of exterior cover, nozzle assembly and tubing; 5 cases
of Active Oxide disinfectant, 15 connecting hoses, 5 hand spray applicators, and 5 tripods.

Recipient shall provide each Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance partner with one unit that
consists of one data logging module, enough kits for their vehicles, one case of disinfectant,

one hand wand, and one tripod. The remaining unit will be stored at Recipient's facility to be
transported to any of the partners, on a first come, first served basis, in the event of equipment
failure.

Total project cost: $187,800

3. PROJECT DELIVERABLES and EXPENSE TYPES

Funding may be used for projects to prevent, prepare for, and respond to COVID-19. Although
operational expenses are the priority, all expenses normally eligible under the Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) Section 5311 Formula Grants to Rural Areas Program incurred on or after
January 20, 2020 are considered to be in response to economic or other conditions caused by
COVID-19 and thus are eligible under this Agreement.

FTA may elect to waive specific Section 5311 requirements. Expenses covered by such a waiver
may be eligible for reimbursement under this grant agreement if otherwise consistent with grant
intent and focus.

Capital Expenses
Capital expenses include the purchase of tangible property with a useful life of more than one
year and an acquisition cost of $5,000 or more. This includes equipment; signs; shelters;

communications devices; radios; wheelchair lifts and restraints; computer software and
hardware; and safety and security equipment.

Page 11 of 18 \ \L\



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34418

Associated services, permits, and permissions needed to put capital items into service; costs
incurred from the procurement process,; delivery charges; and post-delivery inspections are
eligible expenses.

4. PROJECT ACCOUNTING and MATCHING FUNDING

Generally accepted accounting principles and Recipient's own accounting system determine
those costs that are to be accounted for as gross operating expenses. Recipient may not count
the same costs twice if they have multiple agreements for which these costs may be eligible.
The contractor may use capital equipment funded from USDOT- or State-source grants when
performing services rendered through a contract funded by this Agreement. Depreciation of
capital equipment funded from USDOT- or State-source grants is not an eligible expense.

Recipient will subtract revenue from fares, tickets, and passes, either pre-paid or post-paid,
from the gross operating expense of service. Fare revenue includes all revenue generated
by passenger or freight travel in or through Oregon, less contract ticket and freight agent
commissions.

Projects completed under this Agreement will be reimbursed at 100 percent. There is no local
match requirement.

If Recipient receives federal funding, directly or indirectly, from insurance proceeds, the Federal
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency
Assistance Act, or a different federal agency for any portion of a project activity funded under
this Agreement, Recipient will provide written notification to State. State will then deduct that
amount from this Agreement to reimburse FTA for that federal share that duplicates funding
provided by FEMA, another federal agency, or an insurance company.

5. REPORTING and INVOICING REQUIREMENTS

Reimbursement requests may be submitted no more frequently than monthly. Grant Funds
provided under this Agreement must be expended by the Expiration Date.

Recipient agrees to assess and report, as prescribed by State, the condition of all capital
assets purchased or constructed under this Agreement as long as they remain in use for public
transportation service.

Recipient will request reimbursement for covered expenses incurred during each petiod as
prescribed by State and described in Recipient's submitted preventive maintenance plan for

this Agreement. Recipient must maintain and provide supporting documents detailing the total
expenses for allowable maintenance activities incurred during the period. Recipient may list costs
on a form provided by State, or provide vendor invoices.

Copies of invoices for vendor charges must be submitted with reimbursement requests. In-
house charges may be documented in a spreadsheet or with copies of timesheets showing time
specifically associated with the project. In addition, Recipient must submit a cover letter or
summary of the total expenses for work performed.

Expenses incurred will not be reimbursed if the project's scope is changed or altered without the
necessary approval and amendment by State.

Reimbursement under this Agreement may be denied if Recipient does not maintain compliance
with the most up-to-date Oregon Health Authority Guidelines for transit operations. See https://
www.oregon.gov/odot/RPTD/Pages/Coronavirus.aspx "What are the guidelines for transit
agencies operating during the COVID-19 pandemic”.

Page 12 of 18 \ \0)



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34418

EXHIBIT B
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The information below will assist auditors to prepare a report in compliance with the requirements
of 2 CFR part 200, subpart F.

This Agreement is financed by the funding source indicated below:

Federal Program Federal Funding Agency CFDA Number Total Federal Funding
49 U.S.C. 5311 U.S. Department of Transportation | 20.509 (5311) $187,800.00
Federal Transit Administration
915 Second Avenue, Suite 3142
Seattle, WA 98174

Administered By

Public Transportation Division
555 13th Street NE

Salem, OR 97301-4179

Page 13 of 18



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34418

EXHIBIT C

Insurance Requirements

GENERAL - SUBRECIPIENT.

Recipient shall require in its first tier subagreements with entities that are not units of local
government as defined in ORS 190.003, if any, to: i) obtain insurance specified under TYPES AND
AMOUNTS and meeting the requirements under ADDITIONAL INSURED, "TAIL" COVERAGE, NOTICE
OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE, and CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE before performance

under the subagreement commences, and ii) maintain the insurance in full force throughout
the duration of the subagreement. The insurance must be provided by insurance companies or
entities that are authorized to transact the business of insurance and issue coverage in the State
of Oregon and that are acceptable to State. Recipient shall not authorize work to begin under
subagreements until the insurance is in full force. Thereafter, Recipient shall monitor continued
compliance with the insurance requirements on an annual or more frequent basis. Recipient shall
incorporate appropriate provisions in the subagreement permitting it to enforce compliance with
the insurance requirements and shall take all reasonable steps to enforce such compliance. In
no event shall Recipient permit work under a subagreement when Recipient is aware that the
contractor is not in compliance with the insurance requirements. As used in this section, "first tier"
means a subagreement in which the Recipient is a Party.

TYPES AND AMOUNTS.

i. WORKERS COMPENSATION. Insurance in compliance with ORS 656.017, which requires all
employers that employ subject workers, as defined in ORS 656.027, to provide workers'
compensation coverage for those workers, unless they meet the requirement for an exemption
under ORS 656.126(2). Employers liability insurance with coverage limits of not less than $500,000
must be included.

ii. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY. Commercial General Liability Insurance covering bodily injury,
death, and property damage in a form and with coverages that are satisfactory to State. This
insurance shall include personal injury liability, products and completed operations. Coverage shall
be written on an occurrence form basis, with not less than the following amounts as determined
by State:

Bodily Injury, Death and Property Damage:

$1,000,000 per occurrence (for all claimants for claims arising out of a single accident or
occurrence).

iii. AUTOMOBILE Liability Insurance: Automobile Liability. Automobile Liability Insurance covering
all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles. This coverage may be written in combination with the
Commercial General Liability Insurance (with separate limits for "Commercial General Liability"
and "Automobile Liability"). Automobile Liability Insurance must be in not less than the following
amounts as determined by State:

Bodily Injury, Death and Property Damage:

$1,000,000 per occurrence (for all claimants for claims arising out of a single accident or
occurrence).

ADDITIONAL INSURED. The Commercial General Liability Insurance and Automobile Liability
insurance must include State, its officers, employees and agents as Additional Insureds but only
with respect to the contractor's activities to be performed under the Subcontract. Coverage must
be primary and non-contributory with any other insurance and self-insurance.

"TAIL" COVERAGE. If any of the required insurance policies is on a "claims made" basis, such as
professional liability insurance, the contractor shall maintain either "tail" coverage or continuous

Page 14 of 18



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34418

"claims made" liability coverage, provided the effective date of the continuous "claims made"
coverage is on or before the effective date of the Subcontract, for a minimum of 24 months following
the later of: (i) the contractor's completion and Recipient's acceptance of all Services required
under the Subcontract or, (ii) the expiration of all warranty periods provided under the Subcontract.
Notwithstanding the foregoing 24-month requirement, if the contractor elects to maintain "tail"
coverage and if the maximum time period "tail" coverage reasonably available in the marketplace
is less than the 24-month period described above, then the contractor may request and State may
grant approval of the maximum "tail" coverage period reasonably available in the marketplace.
If State approval is granted, the contractor shall maintain "tail" coverage for the maximum time
period that "tail" coverage is reasonably available in the marketplace.

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE. The contractor or its insurer must provide 30 days' written
notice to Recipient before cancellation of, material change to, potential exhaustion of aggregate
limits of, or non-renewal of the required insurance coverage(s).

CERTIFICATE(S) OF INSURANCE. Recipient shall obtain from the contractor a certificate(s) of
insurance for all required insurance before the contractor performs under the Subcontract. The
certificate(s) or an attached endorsement must specify: i) all entities and individuals who are
endorsed on the policy as Additional Insured and ii) for insurance on a "claims made" basis, the
extended reporting period applicable to "tail" or continuous "claims made" coverage.

GENERAL -~ RECIPIENT.

Recipient shall: i) obtain insurance specified under TYPES AND AMOUNTS (except TYPES AND
AMOUNTS paragraph I applies only to Recipient's subcontractors who employ subject workers)
and meeting the requirements under ADDITIONAL INSURED, "TAIL" COVERAGE, NOTICE OF
CANCELLATION OR CHANGE, and CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE before performance under this
Agreement commences, and ii) maintain the insurance in full force throughout the duration of this
Agreement. The insurance must be provided by insurance companies or entities that are authorized
to transact the business of insurance and issue coverage in the State of Oregon and that are
acceptable to State.

TYPES AND AMOUNTS.

i. WORKERS COMPENSATION. Insurance in compliance with ORS 656.017, which requires all
employers that employ subject workers, as defined in ORS 656.027, to provide Workers'
Compensation coverage for those workers, unless they meet the requirement for an exemption
under ORS 656.126(2). Employers liability insurance with coverage limits of not less than $500,000
must be included.

ii. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY. Commercial General Liability Insurance covering bodily injury,
death, and property damage in a form and with coverages that are satisfactory to State. This
insurance shall include personal injury liability, products and completed operations. Coverage shall
be written on an occurrence form basis, with not less than the following amounts as determined
by State:

Bodily Injury, Death and Property Damage:

$1,000,000 per occurrence (for all claimants for claims arising out of a single accident or
occurrence).

iii. AUTOMOBILE Liability Insurance: Automobile Liability. Automobile Liability Insurance covering
all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles. This coverage may be written in combination with the
Commercial General Liability Insurance (with separate limits for "Commercial General Liability"
and "Automobile Liability"). Automobile Liability Insurance must be in not less than the following
amounts as determined by State:

Bodily Injury, Death and Property Damage:

$1,000,000 per occurrence (for all claimants for claims arising out of a single accident or

occurrence).
Page 15 of 18 \\%



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34418

ADDITIONAL INSURED. The Commercial General Liability Insurance and Automobile Liability
insurance must include State, its officers, employees and agents as Additional Insureds but only
with respect to the Recipient's activities to be performed under this Agreement, Coverage must be
primary and non-contributory with any other insurance and self-insurance.

"TAIL" COVERAGE. If any of the required insurance policies is on a "claims made” basis, such as
professional liability insurance, Recipient shall maintain either "tail" coverage or continuous "claims
made" liability coverage, provided the effective date of the continuous "claims made" coverage is
on or before the effective date of this Agreement, for a minimum of 24 months following the later
of: (i) Recipient's completion and State's acceptance of all Services required under this Agreement
or, (ii) the expiration of all warranty periods provided under this Agreement. Notwithstanding the
foregoing 24-month requirement, if Recipient elects to maintain "tail" coverage and if the maximum
time period "tail" coverage reasonably available in the marketplace is less than the 24-month period
described above, then Recipient may request and State may grant approval of the maximum "tail"
coverage period reasonably available in the marketplace. If State approval is granted, Recipient
shall maintain "tail" coverage for the maximum time period that "tail" coverage is reasonably
available in the marketplace.

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE. Recipient or its insurer must provide 30 days' written
notice to State before cancellation of, material change to, potential exhaustion of aggregate limits
of, or non-renewal of the required insurance coverage(s).

CERTIFICATE(S) OF INSURANCE. State shall obtain from Recipient a certificate(s) of insurance
for all required insurance before the effective date of this Agreement . The certificate(s) or an
attached endorsement must specify: i) all entities and individuals who are endorsed on the policy
as Additional Insured and ii) for insurance on a "claims made" basis, the extended reporting period
applicable to "tail" or continuous "claims made" coverage.

Page 16 of 18



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34418

EXHIBIT D

Summary of Federal Requirements and Incorporating by Reference
Annual List of Certifications and Assurances for FTA Grants and
Cooperative Agreements ("Certifications and Assurances") and Federal
Transit Administration Master Agreement ("Master Agreement")

Recipient and Recipient's subrecipient(s), contractor(s), or subcontractor(s), at any tier, if any,
must comply with all applicable federal requirements contained in the Certifications and Assurances
available at www.transit.dot.gov. The Certifications and Assurances, including as they may be
changed during the term of this Agreement, are by this reference incorporated herein.

Recipient further agrees to comply with all applicable requirements included in the Master
Agreement that is signed and attested to by State. This Master Agreement is incorporated by
reference and made part of this Agreement. Said Master Agreement is available upon request from
State by calling (503) 986-3300, or at www.transit.dot.gov. Without limiting the foregoing, the
following is a summary of some requirements applicable to transactions covered by this Agreement
and the funds described in Exhibit A:

1. Recipient shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 State 252, 42 U.S.C. §
2000d) and the regulations of the United States Department of Transportation (49 CFR 21,
Subtitle A). Recipient shall exclude no person on the grounds of race, religion, color, sex,
age, national origin, or disability from the benefits of aid received under this Agreement.
Recipient will report to State on at least an annual basis the following information: any active
lawsuits or complaints, including dates, summary of allegation, status of lawsuit or complaint
including whether the Parties entered into a consent decree.

2. Recipient shall comply with FTA regulations in Title 49 CFR 27 Nondiscrimination on the Basis
of Disability in Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance which implements
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 49
CFR 37, and 49 CFR 38.

3. Recipient shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the award
and performance of any USDOT-assisted contract or in the administration of its DBE program
or the requirements of 49 CFR Part 26. Recipient shall take all necessary and reasonable steps
under 49 CFR Part 26 to ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of USDOT-
assisted contracts. Recipient's DBE program, if applicable, as required by 49 CFR part 26
and as approved by USDOT, is incorporated by reference in this agreement. Implementation
of this program is a legal obligation and failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as a
violation of this agreement. Upon notification to State of its failure to carry out its approved
program, the Department may impose sanctions as provided for under part 26 and may,
in appropriate cases, refer the matter for enforcement under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or the
Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 (31 U.S.C. 3801 et seq.).

4. Recipient must include the following language in each subagreement Recipient signs with a
subcontractor or subrecipient:

The contractor, subrecipient or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color,
national origin, or sex in the performance of this Agreement. The contractor, subrecipient,
or subcontractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award
and administration of USDOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor, subrecipient, or
subcontractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which
may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as Recipient deems
appropriate.

5. By executing the Agreement, Recipient and contractors receiving in excess of $100,000 in
federal funds, other than Indian tribes, certify to State that they have not and will not use
federal funds to pay for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of
any federal department or Agency, a member of Congress, or an employee of a member of
Congress in connection with obtaining any federal grant, cooperative agreement or any other

Page 17 of 18

N0



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34418

federal award as well as the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment or modification
of any federal contract, grant, loan, cooperative agreement, or other federal award. This
certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
Agreement was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for
making or entering into this Agreement imposed by Section 1352, Title 31 of the U.S. Code.
Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of
not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. If non-federal
funds have been used to support lobbying activities in connection with the Project, Recipient
shall complete Standard Form LLL, Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying and submit the form
to State at the end of each calendar quarter in which there occurs an event that requires
disclosure. Restrictions on lobbying do not apply to influencing policy decisions. Examples of
prohibited activities include seeking support for a particular application or bid and seeking
a congressional earmark.

Page 18 of 18



For Board Meeting of October 22, 2020
Agenda ltem # 20

MEMO TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FROM: DOUG PILANT, GENERAL MANAGER(Dﬁ"’a,
SUBJECT: REPLACE TCTD ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATIONS

FACILITY CARPET

Issue

Shall the Board authorize the General Manager to award a contract to Daniel E. Kephart
to replace and dispose of the carpet in the TCTD Administrative and Operations
Facility?

Background and Findings

1. TCTD had planned to replace the carpet in the Administrative and Operations
Facility in the 2017 Facility Repair & Renovation Project. The carpet replacement
was removed from the Project due to it being over budget.

2. The District's FY 2020-21 budget planned included $30,000 to replace the carpet
throughout the Administrative and Operations Facility to match the carpet installed in
the renovated portions of the Facility.

3. The TCTD Purchasing Policy #30 classifies this project as a small purchase and
requires the District attempt to obtain 3 Bids from qualified vendors.

4. District staff reached out to the following qualified vendors to obtain bids. A
summary of the Bid amounts is listed in the table below:

Kephart NW Daniel E.
Flooring Endeavors Kephart
Bid Estimates No Bid $46,448 $30,249

Recommendation

Staff recommends the Board adopt Resolution #20-28 authorizing the General Manager
to award the TCTD Carpet Replacement Project contract to Daniel E. Kephart.

|



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

In the Matter of Authorizing the General )
Manager to Award the TCTD Administration )
and Operations Facility Carpet )
Replacement Contract to Daniel E. Kephart ) RESOLUTION NO. 20-28

WHEREAS, the Tillamook County Transportation District acquired the
Administrative and Operations Facility with Federal Transit Administration (FTA) grant
funding and is required to perform ongoing maintenance to ensure the facility is
maintained throughout its lifecycle; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager and District Board evaluated the facility needs
in 2016 and documented them in the TCTD Facility Repair & Renovation Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Board adopted the TCTD Facility Repair & Renovation Plan as
recommended by the General Manager and authorized the General Manager to take
steps to fund and implement the Plan; and

WHEREAS, replacement of the facility carpet was included in the TCTD Facility
Repair & Renovation Plan and included in the District’'s FY 2020-21 Annual Budget, and;

WHEREAS, the General Manager and District staff have solicited three (3) Bids
from qualified carpet installation vendors listed on the Memo to the Board; and

WHEREAS, the anticipated life-cycle costs of this contract support a finding by the
Board that it is in the best interest of TCTD to award the contract David E. Kephart, and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors:

that the Board authorizes the General Manager to award the TCTD Carpet
Replacement Contract to Daniel E. Kephart in an amount not to exceed $30,249.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 22" day of October 2020.
ATTEST:

By: By:
James Huffman, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

\ah



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT

This contract for professional services is entered into by and between TILLAMOOK
COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT, a special district of the State of Oregon,
hereinafter referred to as TCTD, and Daniel E. Kephart, hereinafter called the
CONTRACTOR to replace the TCTD Administrative and Operations Facility carpet. The
following provisions shall comprise this Contract:

l. SCOPE

This Contract covers the personal services as described in the Scope of Work, incorporated
by reference and attached as Appendix A. Work shall be performed in accordance with a
schedule approved by TCTD. The CONTRACTOR shall meet the highest standards
prevalent in the industry or business most closely involved in providing the appropriate goods
or services. The Contract shall commence upon contract execution and continue through
March 31, 2021.

I. COMPENSATION

A. TCTD agrees to compensate the CONTRACTOR on a fee-for-services basis as
detailed in this Contract. Invoices submitted for payment in connection with this Contract
shall be properly documented and shall indicate pertinent TCTD contract and/or purchase
order numbers. All charges shall be billed monthly and will be paid net 30 days from receipt
of invoice. The maximum compensation authorized under this Contract shall not exceed
$30,249.

B. The CONTRACTOR is engaged hereby as an independent contractor and will
be so deemed for purposes of the following:

1 The CONTRACTOR will be solely responsible for payment of any
Federal or State taxes required as a result of this Contract.

2, This Contract is not intended to entitle the CONTRACTOR to any
benefits generally granted to TCTD employees. Without limitation, but by way of
illustration, the benefits which are not intended to be extended by this Contract to the
CONTRACTOR are vacation, holiday and sick leave, other leaves with pay, tenure,
medical and dental coverage, life and disability insurance, overtime, Social Security,
Workers' Compensation, unemployment compensation, or retirement benefits (except
insofar as benefits are otherwise required by law if the CONTRACTOR is presently a
member of the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System).

3. If the CONTRACTOR has the assistance of other persons in the
performance of this Contract, and the CONTRACTOR is a subject employer, the
CONTRACTOR shall qualify and remain qualified for the term of this Contract as an
insured employer under Oregon Revised Statutes (“ORS”) Chapter 656.

C. The CONTRACTOR certifies that, at present, he or she, if an individual is not a
program, TCTD, or Federal employee.

Page 1 - Personal Services Contract Carpet Replacement_Kephart docx\DP/10/22/2020 ?\’J-L\



D. The CONTRACTOR, if an individual, certifies that he or she is not a member of
the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System.

il CONTRACT CONDITIONS

A. Failure to Perform

TCTD may, subject to the provisions of paragraph (4) below, by written notice of
default to CONTRACTOR, terminate the whole or any part of this Contract in any one of the
following circumstances.

1. If CONTRACTOR fails to make delivery of the supplies or to perform the
services within the time specified herein or any extension thereof; or

2. If CONTRACTOR fails to perform any of the other provisions of this
Contract, or so fails to make progress as to endanger performance of this Contract in
accordance with its terms, and in either of these two circumstances does not cure
such failures within a period of ten (10) days (or such longer period as TCTD may
authorize in writing) after receipt of notice from TCTD specifying such failure.
CONTRACTOR'S failure to perform the scope of work identified or failure to meet
established performance standards shall be subject to consequences that include but
are not limited to:

° Reducing or withholding payment;

© Requiring CONTRACTOR to perform, at CONTRACTOR'S sole
expense, additional work necessary to perform the identified scope of
work or meet the established performance standards; or

° Declaring a default, terminating the Contract and seeking damages and
other relief under the terms of the Contract or other applicable law.

3. In the event TCTD terminates this Contract in whole, or in part, as
provided in paragraph (2) above of this clause, TCTD may procure, upon such terms
and in such manner as TCTD may deem appropriate, supplies or services similar to
those terminated, and CONTRACTOR shall be liable to TCTD for any excess costs for
such similar supplies or services; provided, that CONTRACTOR shall continue the
performance of this Contract to the extent not terminated under the provisions of this
clause.

4, CONTRACTOR shall not be liable for any excess costs if the failure to
perform the Contract arises out of causes beyond the control of and without the fault or
negligence of CONTRACTOR. Such causes may include, but are not restricted to,
acts of God or of the public enemy, acts of TCTD in either its sovereign or contractual
capacity, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes
and unusually severe weather; but, in every case, the failure to perform must be
beyond the control of CONTRACTOR and without CONTRACTOR'S fault or
negligence. CONTRACTOR shall not be liable for excess costs for failure to perform,
unless the supplies or services to be furnished were obtainable from other sources in
sufficient time to permit CONTRACTOR to meet the required performance schedule.

Page 2 — Personal Services Contract Carpet Replacement_Kephart docX\DP/10/22/2020 \\ (;_)



5. The rights and remedies of TCTD provided in this clause shall not be
exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or
under this Contract.

6. As used in this Contract, the terms "subcontractor" and "subcontractors"”
mean subcontractor(s) at any tier.

B. Termination for Convenience

This Contract may be terminated by either party upon at least ten (10) days written
notice to the other.

C. Compliance with Applicable Law

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all federal, state and local statutes, regulations,
administrative rules, executive orders, ordinances and other laws applicable to the Services
under the Contract, in effect at the time the Contract is executed and as may be amended,
revised, enacted or adopted thereafter. Changes in these legal requirements after the
execution of the Contract may or may not be the basis for modifications to CONTRACTOR'S
schedule, scope and fee, depending on a reasonable assessment of the nature of the
change, the extent to which the change was anticipated by CONTRACTOR or the Parties,
and other circumstances then existing.

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, CONTRACTOR expressly agrees to
comply with: (i) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; (ii) Section V of the Rehabilitation Act
of 1973, (iii) the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, (iv) Section 306 of the Clean Air Act
(42 U.S.C. 1857 (h); (v) Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1368; (vi) Executive
Order 11738; EPA regulations (40 CFR part 15) and ORS 659.425; (vii) Copeland Anti-
Kickback Act (18 U.S.C. 874) as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR
Part 3); (viii) Executive Order 11246 entitled Equal Employment Opportunity as amended by
Executive Order 11375 and as supplemented in 41CFR chapter 60; (ix) Davis-Bacon Act (40
U.S.C. 3141-3148) as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5), (x)
Sections 103 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327-
330) as supplemented by Department if Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5); (xi) Energy Policy
and Conservation Act (pub.L. 94-163, 89 Stat. 871); (xii) all regulations and administrative
rules established pursuant to the foregoing laws; and (xiii) all other applicable requirements of
federal and state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations.

If conflicts are discovered among federal, state and local statutes, regulations,
administrative rules, executive orders, ordinances and other laws applicable to the Services
under the Contract, CONTRACTOR shall in writing request TCTD to resolve the conflict.
CONTRACTOR shall specify if the conflict(s) create a problem for the design or other
Services required under the Contract.

D. Reporting Requirements

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the reporting requirements of TCTD including but
not limited to Progress, Status and Performance reports necessary to support progress
payments or cost reimbursements.

Page 3 — Personal Services Contract Carpet Replacement_Kephart.docx\DP/10/22/2020 \l\{)



E. Records Maintenance; Access

CONTRACTOR, and its Subcontractors, shall maintain all fiscal records relating to the
Contract in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. In addition,
CONTRACTOR shall maintain all other records pertinent to the Contract and the Project and
shall do so in such a manner as to clearly document CONTRACTOR'S performance.

TCTD and the federal government and their duly authorized representatives shall have
access, and CONTRACTOR shall permit the aforementioned entities and individual's access,
to such fiscal records and other books, documents, papers, plans and writings of
CONTRACTOR that are pertinent to the Contract to perform examinations and audits and
make excerpts and transcripts.

CONTRACTOR shall retain and keep accessible all such fiscal records, books,
documents, papers, plans, and writings for a minimum of 3 years, or such longer period as
may be required by applicable law, following final payment and expiration or termination of
the Contract, or until the conclusion of any audit, controversy or litigation arising out of or
related to the Contract, whichever date is later.

F. Patents; Copy Rights; Rights in Data

Any discovery or invention that arises during the course of the Contract shall be
reported to TCTD. The CONTRACTOR shall promptly disclose inventions to TCTD, within 2
months, after the inventor discloses it in writing to the CONTRACTOR'’S personnel
responsible for patent matters. The rights in the invention/discovery shall be allocated
consistent with “Government Patent Policy” and FAR Part 27.

The CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements and regulations for Copy
Rights and Rights in Data pursuant to FAR Part 27.

IV. CONSTRAINTS

The CONTRACTOR agrees:

A. If the services to be provided pursuant to this Contract are professional and/or
consultative, the CONTRACTOR shall not delegate the responsibility for providing those
services to any other individual or agency.

B. Pursuant to the requirements of ORS 279B.020 and 279B.220 through
279B.235 and Article Xl, Section 10, of the Oregon Constitution, the following terms and
conditions are made a part of this Contract:

1. CONTRACTOR shall:

a. Make payments promptly, as due, to all persons supplying to the
CONTRACTOR labor or materials for the prosecution of the work provided for
in this Contract.

Page 4 —Personal Services Contract Carpet Replacement_Kephart doc\DP/10/22/2020 g\(‘\



b. Pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund
from such CONTRACTOR or subcontractor incurred in the performance of this
Contract.

C. Not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against
TCTD on account of any labor or material furnished.

2, If the CONTRACTOR fails, neglects or refuses to make prompt payment
of any claim for labor or services furnished to the CONTRACTOR or a subcontractor
by any person in connection with this Contract as such claim becomes due, the proper
officer representing TCTD may pay such claim to the person furnishing the labor or
services and charge the amount of the payment against funds due or to become due
the CONTRACTOR by reason of this Contract.

3. The CONTRACTOR shall pay employees for work in accordance with
ORS 279B.020 and ORS 279B.235, which is incorporated herein by this reference.

All subject employers working under the Contract are either employers that will
comply with ORS 656.017 or employers that are exempt under ORS 656.126.

4. The CONTRACTOR shall promptly, as due, make payment to any
person or co-partnership, association or corporation furnishing medical, surgical and
hospital care or other needed care and attention incident to sickness and injury to the
employees of the CONTRACTOR, of all sums which the CONTRACTOR agrees to
pay for such services and all moneys and sums which the CONTRACTOR collected or
deducted from the wages of the CONTRACTOR'S employees pursuant to any law,
contract or agreement for the purpose of providing or paying for such services.

5. This Contract is expressly subject to the debt limitation of Oregon
counties set forth in Article XI, Section 10, of the Oregon Constitution, and is
contingent upon funds being appropriated therefore. Any provisions herein which
would conflict with law are deemed inoperative to that extent.

6. The CONTRACTOR agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and defend
TCTD, its officers, commissioners, agents and employees from and against all claims
and actions, and all expenses incidental to the investigation and defense thereof
(including attorney’s fees), arising out of or based upon damage or injuries to persons
or property caused by the errors, omissions, fault or negligence of the CONTRACTOR
or the CONTRACTOR'S employees or agents.

7. The CONTRACTOR'S failure to perform the scope of work identified or
failure to meet established performance standards shall be subject to consequences
that include, but are not limited to:

a. Reducing or withholding payment;

b. Requiring the CONTRACTOR to perform, at the CONTRACTOR'S
sole expense, additional work necessary to perform the identified scope of work
or meet the established performance standards; or

-

Page 5 — Personal Services Contract Carpet Replacement_Kephart docx\DP/10/22/2020 \)ﬁ«



C. Declaring a default, terminating the Contract and seeking
damages and other relief under the terms of the Contract or other applicable
law.

8. All subject employers working under the Contract are either employers
that will comply with ORS 656.017 or employers that are exempt under ORS 656.126.

V. OWNERSHIP

Upon fulfillment of the Contract Terms, TCTD will have legal title to all the facility
improvements.

VL. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

A. Commercial General Liability
X Required by TCTD [ ] Not required by TCTD

The CONTRACTOR agrees to furnish TCTD evidence of commercial general liability
insurance in the amount of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit per
occurrence/$2,000,000 general annual aggregate for personal injury and property damage
for the protection of TCTD, its officers, directors, agents and employees against liability for
damages because of personal injury, bodily injury, death or damage to property, including
loss of use thereof, in any way related to this Contract. The general aggregate shall apply
separately to this project/ location. TCTD, at its option, may require a complete copy of the
above policy.

B. Automobile Liability
Xl Required by TCTD [ ] Not required by TCTD

The CONTRACTOR agrees to furnish TCTD evidence of business automobile liability
insurance in the amount of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit for bodily injury and
property damage for the protection of TCTD, its officers, directors, agents and employees
against liability for damages because of bodily injury, death or damage to property, including
loss of use thereof in any way related to this Contract. TCTD, at its option, may require a
complete copy of the above policy.

C. Professional Liability

[ ] Required by TCTD DX Not required by TCTD
D. Pollution Liability Insurance
[ ] Required by TCTD Xl Not required by TCTD

E. Such insurance shall provide sixty (60) days' written notice to TCTD in the
event of a cancellation or material change and include a statement that no act on the part of
the insured shall affect the coverage afforded to TCTD under this insurance. This policy(s)
shall be primary insurance as respects to TCTD. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained
by TCTD shall be excess and shall not contribute to it.

Page 6 — Personal Services Contract Carpet Replacement_Kephart docx\DP/10/22/2020 \ :L\
{



F. If the CONTRACTOR has the assistance of other persons in the performance of
this Contract, and the CONTRACTOR is a subject employer, the CONTRACTOR agrees to
qualify and remain qualified for the term of this Contract as an insured employer under ORS
656. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain employer’s liability insurance with limits of $100,000
for each accident, $100,000 per disease for each employee, and $500,000 each minimum
policy limit.

G. If any other required liability insurance is arranged on a “claims made” basis,
“tail” coverage will be required at the completion of this Contract for a duration of thirty-six
(36) months or the maximum time period the CONTRACTOR’S insurer will provide “tail”
coverage as subscribed, whichever is greater, or continuous “claims made” liability coverage
for thirty-six (36) months following the Contract completion. Continuous “claims made”
coverage will be acceptable in lieu of “tail” coverage, provided its retroactive date is on or
before the effective date of this Contract.

H. The insurance, other than the Workers’ Compensation, Professional liability and
Pollution liability insurance, shall include TCTD as an additional insured. Proof of insurance
must include a copy of the endorsement showing TCTD as a scheduled insured.

l. CONTRACTOR shall require that all of its subcontractors of any tier provide
insurance coverage (including additional insured provisions) and limits identical to the
insurance required of the CONTRACTOR under this Contract, unless this requirement is
expressly modified or waived by TCTD.

Vii. SUBCONTRACTS

The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible to TCTD for the actions of persons and firms
performing subcontract work. The CONTRACTOR certifies that the CONTRACTOR has not
discriminated and will not discriminate against any minority, women or emerging small
business enterprise in obtaining any subcontract.

Viil. MEDIATION

CONTRACTOR and TCTD agree that any dispute that may arise under this Contract will be
submitted first to a mediator agreed to by both parties as soon as such dispute arises, but in any
event prior to the commencement of litigation or arbitration. Such mediation will occur at
Tillamook, Tillamook County, Oregon, and the mediator's fees and expenses will be shared
equally by the parties who agree to exercise their best efforts in good faith to settle all disputes.

IX. SEVERABILITY

If any term, condition or provision of this Contract or the application thereof to any circumstance
is determined to be invalid or unenforceable to any extent, the remaining provisions of this
Contract will not be affected but will instead remain valid and fully enforceable.

X. AMENDMENT

Page 7 — Personal Services Contract Carpet Replacement_Kephart.doc\DP/10/22/2020 \"})0



A. This Contract and any amendments to this Contract will not be effective until
approved in writing by an authorized representative of the Tillamook County Transportation

District, acting as fiscal agent for the TCTD.

B. This Contract supersedes and cancels any prior contracts between the parties

hereto for similar services.

The undersigned, by its signature, agrees to perform the scope of work as described in
the Contract documents and meet the performance standards set forth therein. By their
signatures below, the parties to this Contract agree to the terms, conditions, and content

expressed herein.

Daniel E. Kephart
PO Box 838
Tillamook, OR 97141

By:

Authorized Signature

Name/Title (Printed)

Date

Telephone/Fax Number

CCB License # (if applicable)

Oregon Business Registry

Entity Type/State of Formation

Page 8 — Personal Services Contract

Tillamook County Transportation District
3600 Third Street, Suite A
Tillamook, OR 97141

By:

Authorized Signature

Name/Title (Printed)

Date

Approved as to Form

District Counsel

Carpet Replacement_Kephart.docx\DP/10/22/2020



Appendix A

Scope of Services

Page 9 — Personal Services Contract Carpet Replacement._Kephart.docx\DP/10/22/2020 \ q fa,



